Page

12

16

70
72
74
76
78
80
85

103
129
149
173
178
183

186
192

193
205

209

226

Municipality of
Magnetawan

AGENDA - Regular Meeting of Council
Wednesday, April 10, 2024
1:00 PM

Magnetawan Community Centre

OPENING BUSINESS

1.1 Call to Order

1.2 Adoption of the Agenda

1.3 Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest
1.4 Adoption of Previous Minutes

PROCLAMATION
Moose Hide Campaign & Stop Gender Based Violence

PLANNING ACT MEETING
Zoning By-law Amendment Application - Goodjohn - 1388 Ahmic Lake Road

STAFF QUARTERLY REPORTS

Report from Fire Chief Derek Young

Report from By-law Enforcement Officer Jason Newman
Report from Chief Building Official Tyler Irwin

Report from Public Works Superintendent Scott Edwards
Report from Deputy Clerk Erica Kellogg

Report from Deputy Clerk Laura Brandt

YTD Budget 2024 from Treasurer Stephanie Lewin

STAFF REPORTS, MOTIONS AND DISCUSSION

2.1 Consent Application - Mcllroy - Part Lots 69 & 70 Con B Spence

2.2 Consent Application - Stevenson - 46 Thompson Road

2.3 Consent Application - Antonik - 354 Simmons Lake Road

2.4 Consent Agreement -Seibels - Croft CON 4 PT LOTS 6&7 RP 42R17369 PARTS 6 & 7

2.5 Consent Agreement - Langford - Chapman CON 1 LOT 26&27 42R-22370 PART 5

2.6 Correspondence from the Township of Perry Ontario Provincial Police (OPP) Detachment
Board

2.7 Report to Council Deputy Clerk Laura Brandt 2024 Public Art Project

2.8 DRAFT Motion Northern Ontario Heritage Fund Corporation (NOHFC) Fire Hall

2.9 DRAFT Hawkers and Peddlers By-law

2.10 DRAFT Set Tax Ratios for Municipal Purposes and Levy the Rates of Taxation for the
Year 2024

MUNICIPAL BOARDS AND COMMITTEE MINUTES

3.1 District of Parry Sound Social Services Administration Board (DSSAB) Chief Administrative
Officer's Report March 2024

3.2 Almaguin Highlands Health Centre (AHHC) Minutes March 7, 2024




230
232
233
237
238
242
244
246
256
257
266
267
279
2901
304
305
306
307

308

315
320
325

329

CORRESPONDENCE

41 Municipality of Brighton Rideshare Services

4.2 Township of Amaranth Highway 413

4.3 Town of Aurora Amenity Sharing MOU with School Boards for Gymnasium Use
4.4 Township of Amaranth Operating Budgeting Funding

4.5 District of Parry Sound Social Services Board Reaching Home Funding

4.6 MADD Message Certificate

4.7 Mary Jane Campbell Thank You Card

4.8 Broader Public Sector (BPS) Reporting Submission

4.9 Treasurer's Statement of 2023 Council Remuneration

410  Successful Outcome of Enabling Accessibility Grant Funding

4.11  Unsuccessful Outcome of United Way Grant Funding

4.12  Tender RFT 2024-01 Gravel (A+B)

4.13  Proposal RFP 2024-01 Slurry Seal Surface Treatment

4.14  Proposal RFP 2024-02 Surface Treatment (Double Lift Tar & Chip)

4.15 HAZMAT DAY 2024 Poster

4.16 2024 Public Art "Out of Water" Poster

4.17  Call for Concession Stand Operators Poster

4.18 ICYMI Council Highlights March 13, 2024

ACCOUNTS

5.1 Accounts in the amount of $435,232.94

BY-LAWS

6.1 Consent Agreement -Seibels - Croft CON 4 PT LOTS 6&7 RP 42R17369 PARTS 6 & 7
6.2 Consent Agreement - Langford - Croft CON 1 LOT 26&27 42R-22370 PART 5
6.3 Set Tax Ratios for Municipal Purposes and Levy the Rates of Taxation for the Year 2024

CONFIRMING BY-LAW AND ADJOURNMENT

7.1

Confirm the Proceedings of Council and Adjourn



Municipality of
Magnetawan

COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
March 13, 2024
10:00 am

The meeting of the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Magnetawan was
held at the Magnetawan Community Centre on Wednesday March 13, 2023, with the
following present:

Mayor Sam Dunnett

Deputy Mayor John Hetherington
Councillor Bill Bishop

Councillor Jon Hind

Councillor Brad Kneller

Staff: CAO/Clerk Kerstin Vroom, Treasurer/Tax Collector Stephanie Lewin, Public Works
Superintendent Scott Edwards and Deputy Clerk Recreation and Communications Laura
Brandt were present for the entire meeting.

OPENING BUSINESS
1.1 Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m.

1.2 Adoption of the Agenda

RESOLUTION 2024-60 Hetherington-Kneller

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan adopts the agenda
as presented.

Carried.

1.3 Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest

Mayor Sam Dunnett stated that should anyone have a disclosure of pecuniary interest
that they could dectare the nature thereof now or at any time during the meeting.

Page 3 of 329



2.1 Draft Budget #2
Memo from Treasurer

Reserves and Reserves Funds

Provisional Budget Report Operating and Capital
Draft #2 Municipal Budget Narrative
RESOLUTION 2024-61 Hind-Hetherington
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan directs Staff to
finalize the 2024 budget as directed and to prepare the By-law to set and levy the rates
of taxation for passing at the April 10, 2024 meeting;
AND FURTHER Council thanks Staff for their good work on preparing the 2024 budget.
Carried.

3.1 Adjournment

RESOLUTION 2024-62 Hind-Bishop

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan that this 2024
Draft Budget #2 meeting is now adjourned at 10:45 am to meet again for the regular
meeting of Council on Wednesday, March 13, 2024 at 1:00 pm.

Approved by:

Mayor Clerk

Page 4 of 329



Municipality of
Magnetawan

COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
March 13, 2024
1:00 pm

The meeting of the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Magnetawan was
held at the Magnetawan Community Centre on Wednesday March 13, 2024, with the
following present:

Mayor Sam Dunnett

Deputy Mayor John Hetherington
Councillor Bill Bishop
Councillor Jon Hind

Councillor Brad Kneller

Staff: CAO/Clerk Kerstin Vroom, Deputy Clerk Recreation and Communications Laura
Brandt, and Public Works Superintendent Scott Edwards were present for the entire
meeting. Deputy Clerk Planning and Development Erica Kellogg was present for her
respective sections in the meeting.

OPENING BUSINESS
1.1 Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 1:00 p.m.

1.2 Adoption of the Agenda

RESOLUTION 2024-63 Hetherington-Bishop

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan adopts the agenda
as amended to include item 2.5 Verbal Update Habitat for Humanity.

Carried.

1.3 Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest
Mayor Sam Dunnett stated that should anyone have a disclosure of pecuniary interest
that they could declare the nature thereof now or at any time during the meeting.

1.4 Adoption of the Previous Minutes

RESOLUTION 2024-64 Bishop-Kneller

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan adopts the
minutes of the Council meeting on February 21, 2024, at 10am and February 21, 2024
at 1pm as copied and circulated.

Carried.

Page 5 of 329



DEPUTATION

Jim Shedden Repairing and Improving Baseball Field Croft Recreational Park
RESOLUTION 2024-65 Hetherington-Bishop

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan thanks Jim
Shedden for his deputation Repairing and Improving Baseball Field Croft Recreational
Park;

AND WHEREAS Council passed Resolution 2023-07 and 2023-78 supporting the concept
of a baseball team to play in the Almaguin League;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan
gives permission for a group of parents and contractors to make improvements to the
baseball park provided that contractors provide proof of S5 million dollar liability
insurance coverage naming the Municipality as additional insured on their insurance
policy and that all improvements are made with prior consultation of the Parks and
Maintenance Manager as required.

Carried.

PLANNING ACT MEETING

Minor Variance Application — Zwierschke — 75 Audrey Smith Road

RESOLUTION 2024-66 Hind-Hetherington

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan recesses the
regular meeting to hold a public meeting pursuant to Sections 34 of the Planning Act to
consider a Zoning By-law Amendment Application described as:

e Concession 4 PT Lots 27 & 28, commonly known as 75 and 85 Audrey Smith Road
(Zwierschke ) seeking relief from lot area and lot frontage, as a condition of
consent.

Carried.

RESOLUTION 2024-67 Kneller-Bishop
WHEREAS a Minor Variance application from Robert and Janet Zwierschke — Plan 593
CON 4 PT Lots 27 & 28 Part 1 and municipality known as 75 Audrey Smith Road,
Municipality of Magnetawan (Roll #4944 010 00138800) Zwierschke - was received to
seek relief from the Municipality of Magnetawan Zoning By-law 2001-26 as amended,
Section 4.2.2 i) for a minimum lot area from 1.0 hectares to approximately 0.3 hectares
and ii) minimum lot frontage from 90 metres to approximately 50.9 metres;
AND WHEREAS the subject lands are currently developed with a residential dwelling
that will still satisfy the required setbacks within the Residential Shoreline Zone;
AND WHEREAS Council is satisfied the application meets the four tests of a Minor
Variance;
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of
Magnetawan provisionally approves the Minor Variance with the following conditions:

e That all taxes and monies owning to the Municipality are paid to date;

e Decrease the lot area from 1.0 hectares to approximately 0.3 hectares; and

e Decrease the lot frontage from 30 metres to approximately 50.9 metres.
Carried.

Page 6 of 329



RESOLUTION 2024-68 Hind-Hetherington

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan adjourns the
Planning Act public meeting and returns to the regular meeting.

Carried.

STAFF REPORTS, MOTIONS AND DISCUSSION

2.1 Consent Application — Eisses — 36768 Hwy 124

RESOLUTION 2024-69 Bishop-Hetherington

WHEREAS the Municipality of Magnetawan has received a request to support an
application for consent for creation of 1 new lot located at Miller Road which is a
municipally maintained road, Magnetawan (Eisses - 4944 010 00211800). The property
is legally described as CON 9 Lot 27 PT Lot 26 Township of Chapman hereinafter referred
to as “the Lands”;

WHEREAS the Municipal planning consultant has provided a report in support of the
application with conditions;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan
supports in principle the consent application for the Lands, which is valid only for a period
of six (6} months; subject to the following conditions:

. That the foregoing conditions be fulfilled within two years of the notice of decision
of the Planning Board;

. Draft Reference Plan to be approved by the Municipality prior to registration;

J Two (2) true certified paper copies of the registered plan and an electronic version
for the proposed severed lot be prepared by an Ontario Land Surveyor with a certification
that it is a true copy be provided to the Municipality for review and approval which
conforms substantially with the application as submitted;

. Draft copy of the deeds (with all schedules) to be approved by the Municipality
prior to registration;

» A copy of the original executed transfer (deed) with all schedules be provided to
the Municipality;

» Confirmation from the North Bay Mattawa Conservation Authority (NBMCA) that
the proposed Severed and Retained Lots can be adequately serviced by individual on-site
septic systems;

. Payment of all taxes, municipal legal fees, planning fees and fees as per the current
Fees and Charges By-law, Park Land Dedication By-law and all other fees associated with
the processing of this application;

. That the Applicant receive confirmation from the Municipality of a suitable
location for an entrance to the severed lot;

. The Applicant provide confirmation that there are no buildings that could house
livestock and/or livestock in the surrounding area that would have an impact on the
proposed severed and retained lot with respect to the Minimum Distance Separation
{MDS) requirements;

J That a Zoning By-law Amendment be submitted to rezone the proposed severed
lot to address the deficient lot area.

Carried.

Page 7 of 329



2.2  Report from Deputy Clerk Erica Kellogg, Blue Box Transition to Producer
Responsibility

RESOLUTION 2024-70 Bishop-Hind

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan receives the report

Blue Box Transition to Producer Responsibility, from Deputy Clerk Erica Kellogg as

presented and directs Staff to advise Circular Material of the Municipality’s conditional

decision regarding Blue Box Transition to Full Producer Responsibility to Opt In for

curbside collection of blue box material and to Opt In — Operations Agreement for depot

{landfill) collection.

Carried.

RESOLUTION 2024-71 Kneller-Hind

WHEREAS under Ontario Regulation 391/21: Blue Box Producers are fully accountable
and financially responsible for their products and packaging once they reach their end
of life are disposed of, for ‘eligible’ sources only;

AND WHEREAS ‘ineligible’ sources which producers are not responsible for include
businesses, place of worship, daycares, campgrounds, public-facing and internal areas
of municipal-owned buildings, and not-for-profit organizations, such as shelters and
food banks;

AND WHEREAS should a municipality continue to provide services to the ‘ineligible’
sources, the municipality will be required to oversee the collection, transportation, and
processing of the recycling, assuming 100% of the costs;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality supports the
Township of Perry’s resolution and hereby requests that the province amend Ontario
Regulation 391/21: Blue Box products from all sources;

AND FURTHER THAT this resolution be forwarded to the Honourable Doug Ford,
Premier of Ontario, the Honourable Andrea Khanjin, Minister of the Environment,
Conversation, and Parks, the Honourable Graydon Smith, MPP Parry Sound-Muskoka,
and to all Ontario municipalities through AMCTO.

Carried.

2.3 Correspondence from the Township of Perry & Ministry of the Solicitor General
Ontario Provincial Police {OPP} Detachment Board

RESOLUTION 2024-72-Kneller-Hetherington

WHEREAS the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan receives the Correspondence

from the Township of Perry, Ministry of the Solicitor General Ontario Provincial Police

{OPP) Detachment Board;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of

Magnetawan is in favour of the Township of Perry remaining the lead for the OPP

Almaguin Highlands Detachment Board;

AND FURTHER for the requirement of a Council member to represent Sundridge,

Magnetawan and Strong on the OPP Detachment Board, nominates the following

Magnetawan Council member for consideration by Sundridge and Strong: Jon Hind

Carried.

Page 8 of 329



2.4 Donation Request Magnetawan Horticultural Society

RESOLUTION 2024-73 Hetherington-Bishop

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan appreciates the
great work of the Magnetawan Horticultural Society;

AND FURTHER authorizes a donation in the amount of 51,800 for 2024.

Carried.

2.5 Verbal Update Habitat for Humanity

MUNICIPAL BOARD AND COMMITTEE MINUTES

3.1 Central Almaguin Planning Board Minutes January 10, 2024

3.2 Town of Parry Sound EMS Advisory Committee Minutes February 22, 2024
RESOLUTION 2024-74 Kneller-Hetherington

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan receives the
Municipal Boards and Committee Minutes as copied and circulated.

Carried.

CORRESPONDENCE

4.1 County of Lambton Uploading of Municipal Highway Infrastructure to the
Province of Ontario

4.2 Town of Lincoln Urgent Need for Increased Funding to Libraries and Museums in
Ontario

4.3 County of Renfrew Affordability of Water and Wastewater Systems

4.4 Correspondence form Director Consumer Policy and Liaison Branch Kelly
Houston-Routley, Funeral, Burial and Cremation Services Act, 2022

45 Correspondence from Prime Minister Trudeau, Cost Sharing Provincial
Firefighting

4.6 Ministry of Transportation Memo to Chief Administrative Officers License Plate
Renewal

4.7 Ontario Land Tribunal Notice of Meeting Camp Klahanie — ZBLA - 1680 Lakeside
Trail

4.8 OPP MPB Financial Service Unit October to December 2023 Detachment
Revenues

4.9 Correspondence from Municipality of Whitestone, Whitestone and Area Nurse
Practitioner — Led Clinic Report to Council February 29, 2024

4.10 FONOM Executive Award Call for Nominations

4.11 Payroll Compliance Professional (PCP) Designation Natalie Travaglini

4.12 Successful Outcome of NOHFC Grant Funding Ahmic Lake Dock Improvement
Project

4.13 Unsuccessful Outcome of Ontario Trillium Foundation Grant Funding

4.14 Unsuccessful Outcome of Investment Ready Funding

4.15 Almaguin Baseball League Magnetawan Poster

4.16 ICYMI Council Highlights February 21, 2024

RESOLUTION 2024-75 Bishop-Hind

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan receives the

correspondence items as copied and circulated.

Page 9 of 329




RESOLUTION 2024-76 Hetherington-Kneller

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan endorses and
supports item 4.1 County of Lambton Uploading of Municipal Highway Infrastructure
to the Province of Ontario;

AND FURTHER THAT this resolution be circulated to the Honourable Doug Ford, Premier
of Ontario, Sarnia-Lambton MPP Bob Bailey, the Honourable Prabmeet Singh Sarkaria,
Ontario Minister of Transportation, the Association of Municipalities of Ontario, and all
Ontario municipalities through AMCTO.

Carried.

RESOLUTION 2024-77 Bishop-Hetherington

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan endorses and
supports item 4.2 Town of Lincoln Urgent Need for increased Funding to Libraries and
Museums in Ontario;

AND FURTHER THAT this resolution be circulated to the Province, the Minister of
Tourism Culture and Sport, the Niagara Region, the 12 Local Area Municipalities in
Niagara, the Association of Municipalities of Ontario, and all Ontario Municipalities
Ontario municipalities through AMCTO.

Carried.

RESOLUTION 2024-78 Hind-Bishop

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan endorses and
supports item 4.3 County of Renfrew Affordability of Water and Wastewater Systems;
AND FURTHER THAT this resolution be circulated to the Honourable Doug Ford, Premier
of Ontario, the Honourable Kinga Surma, Minister of Infrastructure (Ontario), the
Honourable Dominic Leblanc, Minister of Intergovernmental Affairs, Infrastructure and
Communities (Canada), the Honourable Paul Calandra, Minister of Municipal Affairs and
Housing, the Honourable Andrea Khanjin, Minister of the Environment, Conversation and
Parks (Ontario), Cheryl Gallant, MP, Renfrew-Nipissing-Pembroke, John Yakabuski, MPP,
Renfrew-Nipissing-Pembroke and Parliamentary Assistant to the Minister of the
Environment, Conversation and Parks, the Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM),
the Association of Municipalities of Ontario, and all Ontario Municipalities Ontario
municipalities through AMCTO.

Carried.

ACCOUNTS

5.1 Accounts in the amount of $248,740.31

RESOLUTION 2024-79 Kneller-Hetherington

BF IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan approves the
accounts in the amount of $248,740.31 as presented.

Carried.

Page 10 of 329



CLOSED SESSION
In accordance with Section 239(2) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.0. 2001, c25, as
amended, Council shall proceed into Closed Session in order to address matters
pertaining to:

(b) personal matters about an identifiable individual

(i) information explicitly supplied in confidence to the municipality by a third

party

RESOLUTION 2024-80 Hetherington-Bishop
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan moves to a closed
session at 1:45 pm pursuant to Section 239(2) of the Municipal Act, 2001, 5.0. 2001,
.25, as amended, Council shall proceed into Closed Session in order to address matters
pertaining to:

(b) personal matters about an identifiable individual

(h) information explicitly supplied in confidence to the municipality
Carried.

RESOLUTION 2024-81 Hetherington-Hind
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan returns to open

session at 2:50 pm.
Carried.

RESOLUTION 2024-82 Bishop-Kneller

WHEREAS the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan thanks the residents for
their nominations for the Ontario Senior of the Year Award 2024;

AND WHEREAS Council has carefully considered each nomination and is grateful to
have and extends its thanks to all of our super senior volunteers in our community;
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of
Magnetawan nominates Harvey Sohm for the Ontario Senior of the Year Award 2024
and directs Staff to forward Council’s nomination to the Province.

Carried.

CONFIRMING 8Y-LAW AND ADJOURNMENT

7.1 Confirm the Proceedings of Council and Adjourn

RESOLUTION 2024-83 Hind-Hetherington

BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan that the Confirming
By-law is now read a first, second and a third time, passed, signed by the Mayor and the
Clerk, sealed with the seal of the Corporation and engrossed in the by-law book;

AND FURTHER THAT, this meeting is now adjourned at 2:55 pm to meet again on
Wednesday April 10, 2024, at 1:00 pm or at the call of the Chair.

Carried.

Approved by:

Mayor Clerk

Page 11 of 329



Laura Brandt
L.

Subject: FW: Participate in the Moose Hide Campaign & stop gender-based violence

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Moose Hide Campaign <info@moosehidecampaign.ca>
Date: Tue., Mar. 26, 2024, 9:35 a.m.

Subject: Participate in the Moose Hide Campaign & stop gender-based violence
To: <sdunnett2@gmail.com>

MOOSE HIDE
CAMPAIGN
CAMPAGNE

MOOSE HIDE

Dear Mayor Dunnett,

Canada is facing a crisis of Intimate Partner Viclence (IPV) with more

than 4 in 10 women having experienced it in their lifetime. This epidemic cuts across all
demographics but is especially harmful to Indigenous women who are twice as likely to
experience violence from their current or former partners.

The Moose Hide Campaign is an Indigenous-led grassroots movement that allows
people to take steps towards reconciliation and eliminate IPV in Canada.

Wearing the free gift of Indigenous medicine - the moose hide pin - is a way to show
your solidarity with victims and to make a commitment to honour and protect the
women in your life.

All levels of government are are choosing to embrace the Moose Hide Campaign. Last
year, mayors across Canada took part in the Campaign by sharing videos of support
and making proclamations - including Ottawa Mayor Mark Sutcliffe, Edmonton Mayor
Amarjeet Sohi, Halifax Mayor Mike Savage, and many more.

HOW YOU CAN SUPPORT: We are honoured to invite you to support the Moose Hide
Campaign, raise your voice to end gender-based violence and help foster positive
change in your community. Here are some ways you can take part:

¢ Participate in the Mayoral Social Media Challenge: Post a video on social
media between May 1 and May 16, showing your support for the Campaign,
wearing a moose hide pin and challenging another mayor in Canada to
participate. Respond to this email if you would like a script and moose hide pins
sent to you.

Page 12 of 329



¢ Make a Proclamation: Proclaim May 16, 2024 to be Moose Hide Campaign
Day in your community to coincide with our Canada-wide day of ceremony.

e Order Moose Hide pins: Order moose hide pins to wear and share with
Council and Staff,

Now, more than ever, Canadians and Indigenous people need their leaders to stand
together and state unequivocally that violence against women and children has no
place in our societies. Your participation in Moose Hide Campaign Day is an
opportunity to contribute to our collective healing journey.

Please let us know you if can participate and we will send you supporting materials.

Thank you for your support and leadership.

Sincerely,
e
e,
Raven Lacerte David Stevenson
National Ambassador and Chief Executive Officer
Co-Founder

ungubscribe from Moose Hide Campaign correspondence

Page 13 of 329



RIGHT NOW, IN CANADA, THE UNACCEPTABLE IS STILL
HAPPENING

VIOLENCE AFFECTS TOO MANY OF OUR MQOTHERS, SISTERS, WIVES, DAUGHTERS AND FRIENDS. THIS
IS SOMETHING THAT IS COMPLETELY PREVENTABLE.

The Moose Hide Campaign recognizes that all forms of violence are
unacceptable, regardless of gender. We see the disproportionate
number of women who are victims and the importance of engaging
men and boys in addressing this issue. We also know that “shame
and blame” isn’t the answer.
Did you know?
« Every year there are over 60,000 physical or sexual assaults against
women in BC - more than 1,000 per week
« Oneinthree women will be sexually assaulted in her lifetime (Stats
Canada, 2006)
» In 2014 there was a daily average of 7,969 women and children
staying in shelters across Canada because it was not safe at home
(Statistics Canada)

« There were 1,181 cases of missing or murdered Aboriginal women in
Canada between 1980 and 2012, according to the RCMP, with BC
recording more than any other province (Native Women's
Association of Canada, 2010). However, according to grassroots
organizations the number is much higher, closer to 4,000

« Domestic violence is preventable.

Page 14 of 329



bose dide
7’7 Mec&cme 7

EACH PIN SPARKS 5 CON,@{'ERSATIONS

MOOSE HIDE PINS SHINE A LIGHT INTO THE SHADOWS OF A DEVASTATING SOCIAL ILLNESS
IMPACTING ALL CANADIANS

Worn as a commitment to honour, respect and protect the women and
children in your life, pins are completely free and come in batches of 25 so
you can spread the word of the campaign. We also offer the option of
animal-free pins.

We provide these pins and information cards as a free gift of medicine. In
return, we ask you to not sell them for any amount of money - and
consider doing the following:

« Share a photo of yourself wearing a pin on social media and tagging
us!

« Carry extra pins with you to share with those who ask you about it.

« Donating towards future moose hide pin production and
distribution.

Page 15 of 329



RESOLUTION NO. 2024 - APRIL 10, 2024

Moved by:

Seconded by:

WHEREAS the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan receives the report of Patrick Towns
and Jamie Robinson, Planners MHBC Planning, for a Zoning by-law Amendment Application from
John Jackson (Agent) for Mark Goodjohn — Lot 19 & 20 Concession 3 & 4, Municipally known as
1388 Ahmic Lake Road Municipality of Magnetawan to refine the Environmental Protection (EP)
Zone boundary following the submission of an Environmental Impact Study (EIS) by FRI Corp;

AND WHEREAS the EIS outlines recommended mitigation;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council defers a decision on this matter until the
mitigation recommendations are completed.

Carried Defeated Deferred

Sam Dunnett, Mayor

Recorded Vote Called by:

Recorded Vote
Member of Council Yea Nay Absent
Bishop, Bil
Hetherington, John
Hind, Jon

Kneller, Brad

Mayor: Dunnett, Sam

Page 16 of 329



MURNICIPAUTY OF MAGNETAWAN
NOTICE OF COMPLETE APPLICATION and PUBLIC MEETING FOR A ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT

TAKE NOTICE that the Municipality of Magnetawan has received a complete application to amend the
Municipality’s Zoning By-law under Section 34 of the Planning Act of the Planning Act, R.5.0., 1950. The
Corporation of the Municipality of Magnetawan will hold a Public Meeting on:

April 10, 2024
At 1:00 pm. at the
Municipality of Magnetawan Community Centre, 4304 Hwy #520, Magnetawan, Ontario

THE PURPOSE OF THE PUBLIC MEETING is to consider a Zoning By-law Amendment application to amend Zoning
By-law No. 2001-26 of the Municipality of Magnetawan, pursuant to Section 34 of the Planning Act, R.5.0. 1990,
Chapter P. 13. A key map showing the location of the property affected by the Zoning By-law Amendment is
attached to this notice.

DESCRIPTION OF THE LANDS The application for Zoning By-law Amendment applies to the subject property
located at 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, and is legally described as Part of Lots 19 and 20, Concession 3 and 4, Part
of 42R-16810, Municipality of Magnetawan.

THE PURPOSE of the proposed Zoning By-law Amendment is to rezone the subject property to refine the boundary
of the Environmental Protection {EP) Zone mapping following the submission of an Environmental Impact Study.
The subject property is currently located within the Shoreline Residential {RS} Zone and the Environmental
Protection (EP) Zone,

THE EFFECT of the application is to facilitate the applicant in establishing a building envelope for a proposed
residential dwelling, dock and boathouse along the shoreline on the subject property.

INFCRMATION AVAILABLE

Information relating to the proposed Zoning By-law Amendment application is available for public review on
the municipal website — www .magnetawan.com — or by request during business hours, Monday to Friday from
8:30 am to 4:30 pm, at the Municipality of Magnetawan Municipal Office (4304 Hwy #520 Magnetawan,

Ontario, POA 1P0) or by emailing: planning@magnetawan.com

NOTICE OF DECIS!ON

If you wish to be notified of the decision of Municipality of Magnetawan on the proposed Zoning By-law
Amendment you must make a written request to Erica Kellogg, Deputy Clerk — Planning and Development at the
Municipality of Magnetawan.

ORAL AND WRITTEN SUBMISSION — APPEAL

If a person or public body would otherwise have an ability to appeal the decision of the Council of the Municipality
of Magnetawan to the Ontario Land Tribunal but the person or public body does not make oral submissions at a
public meeting or make written submissions to the Municipality of Magnetawan before the by-law is passed, the
person or public body is not entitled to appeal the decision.

If a person or public body does not make oral submissions at a public meeting, or make written submissions to
the Municipality of Magnetawan before the by-taw is passed, the person or public body may not be added as a
party to the hearing of an appeal before the Ontario Land Tribunal unless, in the opinion of the Tribunal, there are
reasonable grounds to do so.

Individuals who make written submissions should be aware that their submission and any personal informaticn
in their correspondence will become part of the public record and made available to the Applicant, Committee
and Council,

Please see reverse for key map

PLEASE SUBMIT ANY WRITTEN COMMENTS TO ERICA KELLOGG
Quoting File No: GOCDJOHN ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT

Erica Kellogg, Deputy Clerk — Planning and Development
Municipality of Magnetawan
P.0. Box 70
Magnetawan, Ontario, POA 1P0
705-387-3947 ext. 1011
lanning @magnetawan.com

DATED at the Municipality of Magnetawan this 21* day of March, 2024

Page 17 of 329



KEY MAP OF SUBJECT PROPERTY:

KEY MAP OF SUBIECT PROPERTY:

Zoning Schedule “A”

N\

Page 18 of 329



STAFF REPORT

TO: Erica Kellogg, Deputy Clerk — Pianning & Development
Municipality of Magnetawan

FROM: Patrick Townes, BA, BEd and Jamie Robinson, BES, MCIP, RPP
MHBC Planning Limited

DATE: April 10, 2024

SUBJECT Zoning By-law Amendment Application — Goodjohn
1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan

Recommendation
Based on the land use planning analysis contained in this Staff Report, MHBC
Pianning. Limited recommends:

THAT Council receive the Staff Report dated April 10, 2024 respecting the Zoning By-
law Amendment application for 1388 Ahmic Lake Road (Goodjohn); and,

THAT Council approves the Zoning By-law Amendment and passes a By-law.

Proposal /Background

A Zoning By-law Amendment application has been submitted by John Jackson
Planner Inc. (Agent) on behalf of the property owner, Mark Goodjohn. The subject
property is municipally known as 1388 Ahmic Lake Road in the Municipality of
Magnetawan and is legally described as Part Lots 19 and 20, Concession 3 and 4,
Geographic Township of Croft, Municipality of Magnetawan, District of Parry Sound.
The location of the subject property is shown in Figure 1.

Figure 1: Location of Subject Property

Page 19 of 329



The subject property is currently located within the Shoreline Residential {RS) Zone
and the Environmental Protection (EP) Zone. The purpose and effect of the proposed
Zoning By-law Amendment application is to rezone the subject property to refine the
boundary of the Environmental Protection (EP) Zone mapping following the
submission of an Environmental Impact Study. The application is to facilitate the
applicant in establishing a building envelope for a proposed residential dwelling, dock
and boathouse along the shoreline on the subject property.

The subject property is currently vacant and appears to contain an existing driveway
as shown in the aerial photography. An aerial image of the subject property is shown
in Figure 2. The boundary of the subject property appears to include lands that are
now flooded along the shoreline.

Figure 2: Aerial Image of Subject Property

Area Context

The following is a summary of the surrounding land uses:

North: Existing shoreline residential
East: Existing shoreline residential
South: Existing rural residential and shoreline residential
West: Existing rural residential and shoreline residential

Page 20 of 329



Policy Analysis

Provincial Policy Statement

The Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) is a document that provides policy direction on
matters of Provincial interest concerning land use planning. Ontario has a policy led
planning system and the PPS sets the foundation for regulating the development and
use of land in the Province. Policies are set out to provide for appropriate development
while also protecting resources of provincial interest, public health and safety, and the
quality of the natural and built environment. When making land use planning decisions,
Planning Authorities must ensure that all planning decisions are consistent with the
PPS.

The subject property is located on Rural Lands within the Municipality. Section 1.1.5.2
of the PPS includes permitted uses on Rural Lands. The proposed use is considered
as a resource-based recreational use (recreational dwelling) on the shoreline and is a
permitted use in the context of the PPS.

Section 1.1.5.4 of the PPS indicates that “development that is compatible with the rural
landscape and can be sustained by rural service levels should be promoted”. The
Proposed Zoning By-law Amendment is compatible with the existing rural landscape
of the surrounding lands and can be sustained by rural service levels.

Section 1.6.6.4 provides policies that apply to development serviced by individual on-
site sewage and water services. The PPS states that individual on-site sewage
services and individual on-site water services may be used for a new development
provided that site conditions are suitable for the long-term provision of such services
with no negative impacts. The subject property will be serviced by private on-site
sewage and water services when it is developed with the future proposed residential
use.

Section 2.0 of the PPS contains policies related to the wise use and management of
resources. Ontario’s long-term prosperity, environmental health, and social well-being
is dependent on protecting water and natural heritage features. Section 2.1 of the PPS
further states that natural heritage features shall be protected for the long term.
Accordingly, an Environmental Impact Study (EIS) was prepared by FRi Ecological
Services, dated October 2023, to assess the potential impact of proposed
development on the subject property, including the refinement of the Environmental
Protection (EP) Zone mapping to accurately reflect the natural heritage features
identified on the subject property. Currently, the EP Zone mapping encompasses the
majority of the subject property and there is limited areas for development.

Section 2.1.6 of the PPS states that “development and site alteration shall not be
permitted in fish habitat except in accordance with provincial and federal
requirements”. The EIS identified areas of wetlands and fish habitat on the subject
property. The conclusions of the EIS provide support to refine the EP Zone mapping
to provide a building envelope for a future residential dwelling on the property, as well
as a dock and boathouse on the northern portion of the subject property. The previous
EP Zone mapping was overestimated and the site specific study confirmed the
appropriate EP Zone boundary based on a review of the relevant policies and natural
heritages features present.

Page 21 of 329



The proposed Zoning By-law Amendment is consistent with the PPS.
Municipality of Magnetawan Official Plan

The Municipality's Official Plan provides policy direction on growth and development
within Magnetawan. The policies in the Plan address the environment, cultural and
built heritage, natural resources and servicing and transportation. Schedule A {Land
Use Map) of the Official Plan identifies the subject property as being designated
“Rural” and a small portion “Shoreline”. The proposed future residential use is entirely
located within the Rural designation. Figure 3 includes an excerpt of Schedule A of
the Official Plan.

Figure 3: Excerpt of Schedule A of Official Plan

e

Section 5.2 of the Official Plan contains policies for Rural Areas in the Municipality and
states that the permitted uses include agriculture and residential dwellings provided
they are in close proximity to other residential uses and existing roadways. The subject
property is bound by neighbouring residential uses and will be accessed by an existing
roadway via Ahmic Lake Road.

Section 4.4 of the Official Plan states that new development or site alteration shall
have no negative impact on the natural features or ecological functions of significant
habitat of endangered or threatened species, other significant wildlife habitat, fish
habitat, a Provincially Significant Wetland or other significant natural heritage feature
or function. The Official Plan does not identify any natural heritage features on the
subject property, however the EIS that was completed identified unevaluated wetlands
on the subject property and fish habitat along the shoreline.

Section 4.7 of the Official Plan states that Type 1 Fish Habitat must be protected to
ensure a healthy population of sports fish in the Municipality and the watershed.
Setbacks of 30 meters from cool or cold-water streams and 15 metres from other
streams are required. The proposed future residential use falls outside of the

Page 22 of 329



delineated boundary of the Type 1 Fish Habitat which was identified in the EIS. The
boundary of the Type 1 Fish Habitat and Type 2 Fish Habitat is shown on Figure 4.

Figure 4: Location of Fish Habitat

The EIS completed on the subject property has identified unevaluated wetlands and
Fish Habitat on the subject property and along the shoreline. The conclusions of the
EIS support the refinement of the EP Zone mapping that allows for a building envelope
for a future residential dwelling; and established an area on the north portion of the
shoreline for a future dock and boathouse. The location of the proposed residential
dwelling and proposed dock and boathouse are shown in green on Figure 4 and are
located outside the wetland features, and located outside the Type 1 Fish Habitat that
has been identified.

The proposed Zoning By-law Amendment conforms to the Official Plan.
Municipality of Magnetawan Zoning By-law

The subject property is currently located within the Shoreline Residential (RS) Zone
and the Environmental Protection (EP) Zone. The current zoning is shown in Figure 4.

Page 23 of 329



Figure 4: Excempt of Zoning By-law

p Neighick Lake

| w WRrr 7

R RR
E pal

The purpose and effect of the proposed Zoning By-law Amendment application is to
rezone the subject property to refine the boundary of the Environmental Protection
(EP) Zone mapping following the submission of an Environmental Impact Study. The
application is to facilitate the applicant in establishing a building envelope for a
proposed residential dwelling, dock and boathouse along the shoreline on the subject
property.

The Draft Zoning By-law Amendment is included as Attachment 1 to this Report. The
portion of the subject property to be rezoned from the EP Zone to the RS Zone it
outlined in red on Figure 5. The only portion of the subject property where future
shoreline structures are permitted is outlined in green on Figure 5. Additional EP Zone
mapping as recommended in the EIS is outlined in orange on Figure 5.

Page 24 of 329



Figure 5: Updated Zone Mapping

The proposed amendment includes a refinement to the EP Zone mapping in
accordance with the results of the EIS, resulting in an enlarged RS Zone to provide a
suitable building envelope for a residential dwelling, well and septic system. Further,
the proposed amendment establishes a specific area on the subject property where a
future dock and boathouse is permitted. The remaining shoreline of the subject
property is to be protected and no shoreline structures are permitted. The proposed
Zoning By-law Amendment is supported by the EIS.

Comments from Departments

Please note that no comments were received at the time this Staff Report was
prepared.

Road Department: No comments received as of the date of this report.
Fire Chief: No comments received as of the date of this report.

Building Department: No comments received as of the date of this report.

By-law Department: No concerns.

Page 25 of 329



Summary

The proposed Zoning By-law Amendment is consistent with the Provincial Policy
Statement, conforms to the Municipality's Official Plan, is appropriate and represents
good planning. The proposed Zoning By-law implements the findings of an EIS that
was prepared to establish building envelopes on the subject property for a residential
dwelling, dock and boathouse.

Respectfully submitted,

e J—

Patrick Townes, BA, BEd Jamie Robinson, BES, MCIP, RPP
Planning Consultant Planning Consultant
MHBC Planning MHBC Planning

Page 26 of 329



Scoped Environmental impact Study
1388 Ahmic Lake Road

October 2023

®

Page 27 of 329



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

Contents
I O O I st o v L e s b v T o SN K i v o Y R A s e s g e 3

Approach e e S S e e S e s e T e

Background INFOFMALION ... s s <
FIElt INVRSTIEATION L.erteirriercr i ressh st msm st e a s eSS e b s re8 S e 4
EXIStINE COMTITIONS ..ottt eb bt e b b b S bR S8 20 4
ECOIORICA SEEUIME -.o.eovrererunrrrmescssisnrtcone s st emassss resae eSS S h bR a 2 e £ 4
Ecological Land Classification. ... 3
[ e 1 LSOO PO UU OO UP PO PPUR PSSR SPPS PP ERS 5

TErr Rt T al E O o st o i o oL b s A i A i i 5 S g B B T b

LT Y Tl Tt T | 2 OO O S AT SO PO PSP PP PP e 9
ORI TGS, (e v isuiuisiiviesti divingis nnsdasins initniatnse fstns amsdh 4§ ordss SHHANKIR SN SRR =Y apnn sasmn na aramt serdms Lins smmmsssansas 1
EXISTINE DOCK 1. veieeitaniinnnsinmrire bt sa st saa s et n s e s s 440 4R LA RS S R A 11
Proposed Boat HOUSE LOCAEION. .ottt s s 12
Proposed DOCK LOCATIDN ..ot ieraretisaisitesiiasns s bassssubasasnrassarassssissst HATIE A AR i smE a2 smErTpasbds4 00 bes 13

Natural Heritage CONSIAEIAtIONS .........oooiri it b 15
Environmental Protection ZONINE ... ... e simamiisnsiississasisssenssssbisssssssssssassssssns esssarasas eienss 15
Fis e DAt oo e i e S e T A K i A R S Py e o e PN T S 18
Deer WINTEFINE ATBA ...ooiiiiccniiriasirises s sernss s et ans a2 s e a it na e st e sanon 442 es s s s asrean e 20

Proposed DevelOPMIENT .. ... s st sns s sms st n s s s ma st s 22

Cottage and Accessory BUIlAINS ..ottt e 22

2 To T T Lo LV =SSP SR PSP 22

RO M i s T i T T o T v T BB e PN i A e o T R 22

Recommended MIHZATION ...........oiiiimiiiimiieiii e sensnssssenersas b sas bt s s saam s ara s erbanapid s 22
U TTNTTIAL VR i 80 i R A i 54 S i S AN SRS A AF L S s i o S ke o4 AR AT 23
Appendix A: Sketch of the Proposed Development ..o 24

FRi Ecological Services Page 2 of 24

Page 28 of 329



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

Introduction

The subject property is an approximate 4.5-hectare parcel, (10.4 ha as more than half is flooded
land) with approximately 650 metres frontage of shoreline on Neighick Lake {formerly Beaver
Lake). The property is described as 1388 Ahmic Lake Road (Figure 1). A large portion of the
property is zoned Environmental Protection (EP), and the entire shoreline frontage is identified as
fish habitat. Both designations preclude development of a cottage and associated infrastructure.
Based on the available aerial information, it appears that the current zoning and fish habitat
designations may be incorrect.

Figure 1: The location and boundary of the subject property is shown in a red outline.

The landowner wishes to establish a development envelope for future residential use and will
potentially require a zoning by-law amendment to facilitate this. A sketch of the proposed
development is included in Appendix A.

FRi was retained to complete 3 scoped EIS to assess the existing conditions and provide an opinion

on the extent and type of habitat available. The background information consolidation, field work
and reporting were guided by a Preconsultation Memo from July 21, 2023. The memo indicated

FRi Ecological Services Page 3 of 24

Page 29 of 329



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

that an Environmental impact Study be prepared identifying the nature of the EP zone and the fish
habitat, the limits of the fish habitat areas and providing recommendations regarding the
preservation of habitat. The memo also noted that the property is within Stratum It deer wintering
habitat.

This report will address Stratum |l deer wintering habitat, the extent of the EP zone based on the
natural heritage values, the extent of fish habitat and a suitable dock and boathouse location. For
all three considerations, an assessment of impact and recommendations for avoiding negative
impacts are included.

Approach

FRi took a two-part approach to assessing the existing conditions on the property. They include
both background research and in-person field investigation.

Background Information
FRi completed a thorough search and consolidation of the existing background information. This
included a review of the following:

e Municipal planning documents — Official Plan, Zoning By-law and associated schedules*

¢ Land Information Ontario Geohub? - GIS layers

e Leaf-off 2018 orthoimagery

e Fisheries Protection Program — Request for Review’

¢ Fisheries and Oceans — Species at risk critical habitat; aquatic species at risk GIS data®

e FishOnline®

Field Investigation

A single in-person field visit was conducted on August 29, 2023, by two FRi biologists. The entire
property was walked, including a cruise of the entire shoreline frontage. The ecosites on the
property were assessed and the type and extent of fish habitat was similarly assessed.

Existing Conditions

Ecological Setting

The subject property is within the Ontario Shield Zone, Georgian Bay Ecoregion {5E). This ecozone
occupies more than half of Ontario and contains both boreal forest and non-boreal Great Lakes —
St. Lawrence Forest regions. It experiences long cold winters and short warm summers. There

1 https://magnetawan.com/residents/planning-zoning
2 https://gechub.lio.gov.on.ca/
3 https://www.dfo-mpo.gc.ca/pnw-ppe/measures-mesures-eng.htmil

* https:/fwww.lioapplications Irc.gov.on.ca/AgMaps/Index.himi?viewer=AgMaps.AgMaps&locale=en-CA
5 hitps://www licapplications.Ire.gov.on.ca/fishonline/Index.html?viewer=FishONLine. FishONLine&locale=en-CA

FRi Ecologica!l Services Page 4 of 24

Page 30 of 329



scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

are a wide range of temperatures, precipitation and diverse surficial geology and substrates, as
well as complex drainage patterns.®

It is more specifically within the Huntsville Ecodistrict {SE-8). The climate in this ecoregion is cool
temperate and humid; with mean annual temperatures ranging from 2.8 to 6.2°C and a growing
season between 183 and 219 days. Mean precipitation ranges between 771 and 1134 annually. ’
The Huntsville Ecodistrict is situated on the southern edge of the Precambrian Shield and is
comprised of gneissic and granitic bedrock. Exposed bedrock is common, as is bedrock covered by
limited unconsolidated matter; reflecting the bedrock-controlled geology of the region. There are
localized pockets of clay and silt scattered throughout the ecodistrict; wetlands are present in
lower areas adjacent the upland bedrock knobs. The forest composition in this region is dominated
by mixed forest with pure deciduous and coniferous stands.

Ecological Land Classification

The ecosites on and within 120 metres of the subject property, to the extent possible respecting
adjacent private property, were determined and are described in detail below. The represented
ecosites correspond to potential habitat and natural heritage features and could reflect the
rationale for the EP zoning. They are described below.

Ecosites

Ecological land classification or ‘ecosites’ are determined by assessing the soil and vegetation
characteristics of a site. An ecosite is a contiguous area that shares soil, moisture, and vegetation
characteristics, and is at least 0.5 hectares in size. Areas smaller than 0.5 ha are typically not
considered standalone ecosites and are included as part of the larger landscape ecosite. However,
where small, unique areas are present on the landscape, they are assessed and delineated as
ecoelements.

There is one (1) terrestrial ecosites and two (2) wetland ecosites represented on the subject
property. The terrestrial ecosite is represented in the tali-treed {Tt) condition, while the wetland
ecosites are represented in shrub (S) and open (N) condition. The adjacent properties are other
private land, and in the absence of permission to access these lands, the ecosites are assumed
contiguous with the assessed types and boundary apparent from the available imagery and
observation in the field.

There is a change in forest type along a narrow section of parts of the shoreline where balsam fir
and occasional Eastern white cedar (Thujo occidentalis) are present in the forest canopy and
understory. They are visible in the aerial imagery; however, they were not large enough (>0.5ha)

& Crins, William 1., Paul A. Gray, Peter W. C. Uhlig, and Monique C. Wester. 2009. The Ecosystems of Ontario, Part 1: Ecozones and
Ecoregions. Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources, Peterborough Ontario. Inventory, Monitoring and Assessment, SIV TER IMA TR-
01, 71pp.

7 Ibid.

FRi Ecological Services Page 5 of 24

Page 31 of 329



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

to be considered as a separate ecosite and since the soils were the same as the larger G058
ecosite, they are assumed under the G058 description.

There is an area of flooded land which represents the ‘channel’ between Neighick Lake and
Crawford Lake downstream. This open water channel does not align with an ecosystem in the
provincial framework, rather it is a watercourse.

=4 Ecosites
GOSSTE Maple Hardwood
G1475 Shrub Share Fen
GL48N Mineral Shallow Marsh

Figure 2: Ecosites on the subject property.

Terrestrial Ecosites
e GOS58Tt Dry to Fresh, Coarse: Maple Hardwood

FRi Ecological Services Page 6 of 24

Page 32 of 329



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

GO58Tt Dry to Fresh, Coarse: Maple Hardwood

This upland terrestrial ecosite is represented on almost all of the non-flooded subject property,
about 4.5 hectares. It is characterized by fresh mineral soils, a coarse sandy loam, with inclusions
of bedrock at or near the surface. There are very occasional boulders at the surface, and a
moderate understory. The canopy is dominated by sugar maple (Acer saccharum), with occasional
yellow birch (Betula alleghaneiensis), American basswood (Tilia americana) and black cherry
{(Prunus nigra).

The understory herbaceous vegetation includes young sugar maple seedlings, wood fern
(Dryopteris sp.), wild sarsaparilla {Arafia nudicaulis), honeysuckle (Lonicera sp), grasses {Poa sp.)
and leaf litter. Exposed sandy loam soils were apparent in the forested ecosite. There is occasional
balsam fir (Abies balsameay) in the understory, in particular along the shoreline.

/ . . - R e .I:r:L-r' s @
Figure 3 & Figure 4: Coarse sandy loam soils at representative locations in the GO58 maple
hardwood ecosite. Note the soils over bedrock, sometimes exposed.

Figure 5: Sandy foam soils in GOS8 ecosite.

FRi Ecological Services Page 7 of 24

Page 33 of 329



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

r e
ool e h

Figure 8: Typical GO58 maple hardwood showing the coarse loamy soils, understory and canopy.

FRi Ecological Services Page 8 of 24

Page 34 of 329



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

Wetland Ecosites
e G1475 Shrub Shore Fen
e (148N Mineral Shallow Marsh

G147S Shrub Shore Fen
The shrub shore fen ecosite is represented in a narrow band along the shoreline - upland
interface. It experiences seasonal flooding and is represented by floating mats of low shrubs about
0.8 hain size. The size of this ecosite is influenced by water level fluctuations; the Ahmic system
can fluctuate as much as 1.5 metres annually.® Species include leatherleaf {Chamaedaphne
calyculata), sweet gale (Myrica gafe), and occasional speckled alder and willow species.
Herbaceous vegetation includes sedges (Carex sp.), marsh cinquefoil (Comarum palustre), and
bluejoint grass (Calamagrostis canadensis).

- © o

Figure 9: (left) Shoreline with shrub shore fen in foreground, shallow marsh in background.
Figure 10: (right) Close up of shrub shore fen vegetation.

2T A
-., ’ L N % X
# e §

® http://fwww.muskokawaterweb.ca/water-101/water-quantity/operating-regime

FRi Ecological Services Page 9 of 24

Page 35 of 329



scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

G148N Mineral Shallow Marsh

The G148 N mineral shallow marsh is represented on approximately 4.61 ha of the subject
property. It is entirely within the wetted/flooded lands along the eastern and northern
boundaries. There are extensive areas of emergent aquatic vegetation including pickerelweed
(Pontederia cordata), sedges (Carex sp.), rushes (Scirpus sp.), cattails (Typha sp.) and a few floating
species including white-water lily (Nymphaea afba) and floating heart (Nymphoides cordata).

Figure 13: View of the G148 ecosite in the foreground, narrow band of G147 followed by G058
upland maple hardwood ecosite on the subject property. View from the bridge on Ahmic Lake
Road looking northeast from the southeast corner of the subject property.

FRi Ecological Services Page 10 of 24

Page 36 of 329



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

Shoreline Cruise

A shoreline cruise was completed during the August 29 field investigation. Biologists walked the
entire frontage of the shoreline on the subject property, with particular attention to the locations
identified for both a dock and boathouse. The riparian area and substrate were assessed, the type
and extent of aquatic vegetation, and the potential presence of fish habitat features.

Existing Dock

There is an existing floating dock at the north end of the subject property. It is a small floating
dock with two sections. The planned development includes the construction of a boathouse at
this dock location, with the floating dock relocated to a different |ocation along the shoreline.

The water depths drop quickly at this location; approximately 70 cm in depth at the shore. The
substrate is mostly bedrock, with some organic accumulation but also small cobble and sand.

Figure 14. Existing floating dock looking north; note the relative absence of floating and
emergent aguatic vegetation,

Figure 15: View of the bedrock at shore, standing on the existing floating dock. Note the
immediately deep water and relative absence of aguatic vegetation {August 29, 2023). This is an
ideal location for a boathouse.

FRi Ecological Services Page 11 of 24

Page 37 of 329



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

Figure 16: (left} View from upland toward existing floating dock; terrestrial upland is largely
bedrock and elevation rise as one moves away from the lake. Figure 17: {right) View to the
immediate west of the existing dock; note the bedrock shoreline and the relative absence of both
floating and emergent aquatic vegetation at the dock focation.

Proposed Boat House Location

The landowner wishes to construct a boathouse at the current dock location. According to plans
provided by Custom Home Designs, the architect for the landowner, the proposed boat house will
be approximately 32’ by 24’ or 9.75 metres by 7.3 metres,

The proposed location for the boat house coincides with the existing location of the dock and the
nearshore area with the least amount of both emergent and floating aquatic vegetation. It also
falis outside of the delineated ‘Type 1 fish habitat’. See Figures 28 & 29 for mapping of the
identified fish habitat.

FRi Ecological Services Page 12 of 24

Page 38 of 329



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

Figure 18: {left) To the immediate west of the existing dock location and proposed boat house.
Figure 19: (right) View to the front and west of the existing dock and proposed boat house.

Figure 20: {left) View to the front and east of the existing dock and proposed boat house. Figure
21: {right) View to the east of the existing dock and proposed boat house.

Proposed Dock Location

The landowner is proposing a floating dock, on the east side of the subject property; specifically
at a location where the upland slopes gently to the shoreline.

Figure 22: (left) View looking south to gently sloping upland and Figure 23: (right) View looking
north at gently sloping upland to lake and location of proposed floating dock.

FRi Ecological Services Page 13 of 24

Page 39 of 329



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

/ | i H
Figure 25: Existing condition at proposed floating dock location. Note fluctuating water levels will
result in dock sections being temporarily stranded. Any proposed in-water and nearshore works
will require a Request for Review be submitted to Fisheries and Oceans.

FRi Ecological Services Page 14 of 24

Page 40 of 329



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

Natural Heritage Considerations

The following natural heritage features were identified and addressed as directed in the pre-
consultation memo from July 21, 2023.

Environmental Protection Zoning

A large portion of the subject property is presently zoned environmental protection or EP
according to the zoning bylaw schedules. Both Schedule A-1 from the 2018 Zoning By-law and the
interactive municipal mapping® show more than half of the upland (unflooded lands) as ‘EP’. The
reason for this zoning is not entirely clear, although it is suspected that it is related to the fish
habitat and wetlands in the wetted areas of the property.

Municipality of Magnetawan Community Map
Find a Busmgss Firud an Acaress

i mwma

Figure 26: Zoning by-law interactive mapping showing ‘EP’ on a large portion of the non-wetted
area of the subject property.

Field investigations confirm the absence of both wetlands and fish habitat on the subject property
to the extent shown in the Zoning Bylaw mapping. It is our opinion that the EP designation for
most of the terrestrial upland area is incorrect and should be adjusted to reflect the nature of the
subject land. The upland area is mature maple hardwood bush and does not provide either
wetland or fish habitat values.

The EP boundary should be adjusted to reflect the high-water line and known elevations based on
the water control and associated fluctuations. The system is regulated, and the levels are known.
Field investigations confirm the presence of this ‘line’ by the upland terrestrial vegetation and a

* http://www.cgis.com/cpal/ ’map=Magretawan

FRi Ecological Services Page 15 of 24

Page 41 of 329



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

clear boundary on the ground separating the upland areas from the seasonally or occasionally
wetted areas. This report supports rezoning any area identified as G058 Maple Hardwood from
EP (Environmental Protection) to RS (Shoreline Residential) — identified in pink hatching in Figure
26.

s =] GOsSTt Maple Hardwood
G147S Shrub Shore Fen
G148N Mineral Shallow Marsh

Figure 27: The pink hatching represents the upland terrestrial ‘maple hardwood’ forest on the
subject property. This report supports the rezoning of this entire forested polygon to RS —
Shoreline Residential — from EP — environmental protection.

FRi Ecological Services Page 16 of 24

Page 42 of 329



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

The proposed cottage and accessory buildings will be entirely within the upland terrestrial area,
which will be appropriately zoned to RS (shoreline residential) accommodate the proposed

development.

G1475 Shrub Shore Fen

' G148N Mineral Shallow Marsh

10 220 Meters 3

Figure 28: Location of proposed cottage development and accessory buildings; wholly within the
area to be rezoned from EP to RS — which permits the planned shoreline residential development.

FRi Ecological Services

Page 43 of 329

Page 17 of 24



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

Fish Habitat

Fish and fish habitat are protected under the federal Fisheries Act. This Act has undergone
considerable changes over the past 20 years, which are not always reflected in municipal planning
framework including Official Plans, Zoning and policies related to fish and fish habitat protections.

Presently, a large portion of the flooded land is identified as ‘Type 1 Fish Habitat’. The remaining
wetted areas along the shoreline of the property are identified as Type 2 Fish Habitat. The
Province of Ontario provided the Town with ‘information identifying the location and typing of fish
habitat’. Fish habitat typing is an historic approach to fish habitat management dating back to the
1990's. The province has certain delegated responsibilities assigned by the federal government
under the Fisheries Act e.g., Fishing Regulations, but the province is not directly responsible for
fish habitat protection. This falls under the purview of the federal government. The federal
Fisheries Act is the legislation which provides protection provisions for fish and their habitat.

The recently revised Fisheries Act (1985) prohibits activities that ‘result in the death of fish” or
‘result in the harmful alteration, disruption or destruction of fish habitat’. The Act has exceptions
to these prohibitions which include authorizations and prescribed work (detailed in the
Regulations).

Sections 34.4 and 35 of the Fisheries Act represent the current legislative framework that protects
fish and their habitat. These sections include prohibitions on activities which ‘result in the death
of fish’ or ‘result in the harmful alteration, disruption or destruction of fish habitat’ (HADD). Fish
habitat ‘typing’ is irrelevant to inform the sensitivity of a fish habitat since the Act prohibits both
the death of fish and the harmful alteration, disruption or destruction of fish habitat. The Act
treats all fish and fish habitat equally — it does not differentiate or assign levels of sensitivity based
on the thermal regime or species of fish present in a watercourse.

FRi Ecological Services Page 18 of 24

Page 44 of 329



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

Figure 29: Overview of fish habitat ‘typing’ fronting the subject property. Note the majority of the
shoreline is designated ‘type 1°; however, the location of the existing dock and proposed boat
house are wholly within Type 2 fish habitat.

Note that the entire upland cottage and associated development envelopes are outside of any
identified fish habitat.

FRi Ecological Services Page 19 of 24

Page 45 of 329



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

The proposed boat house is situated entirely outside of the identified Type 1 fish habitat. This
meets any natural heritage considerations from the municipal planning perspective. The federal
Fisheries Act protects fish and fish habitat and provides a self-assessment tool for which
proponents can assess whether their project avoids harm to fish and/or fish habitat. FRi
recommends the landowner complete a self-assessment and Request for Review, if necessary, in
advance of boat house construction. If a Request for Review is necessary, Fisheries and Oceans
(DFO) will review the work and provide either a letter of advice to proceed or recommendations
to seek an authorization. Regardless, the process will ensure the municipality has met their listed
requirements under the Provincial Policy Statement and their Official Plan.

Deer Wintering Area

The subject property is overlapped by Stratum Il deer wintering area, specifically the Oranmore
Deer Yard. These areas are identified by the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry and are
reflected in municipal planning documents.

The Significant Wildlife Habitat Criteria Schedules for Ecoregion S5E° (SWHCS) and the Significant
wildlife Habitat Mitigation Support Tool'! (SWHMIST) provide details on the function and
composition of winter concentration areas for white-tailed deer. Deer wintering or yarding areas
are areas where deer move to at the onset of colder temperatures and snow. The ‘yard is
described as two distinct stratums, referred to as Stratum I and Stratum |l

Stratum | represents the ‘core’ of the yard, areas where deer will concentrate during the winter
when snow depths reach 30+ cm. Stratum | areas are critical for survival during the winter and
are primarily composed of coniferous trees {pine, hemlock, cedar, spruce) with a canopy cover of
more than 60%.

Stratum |l is typically a deciduous or mixed forest with abundant woody browse available for food.
Deer move into Stratum 1l areas in the fall and early winter, usually when snow depths reach 20
cm. Deer use the Stratum || habitat to move to Stratum | habitats during winters with heavier
snowfalls; Stratum [l functions as a staging and movement area,

19 significant Wildlife Habitat Criteria Schedules for Ecoregion SE, January, 2015, Ontaric Ministry of Natural Resources and
Forestry. 46 pp.
1 gignificant Wildlife Habitat Mitigation Support Tool, Version 2014. Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry. 533 pp.

FRi Ecological Services Page 20 of 24

Page 46 of 329



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

Chikopl

&
B
.

figure 31: Oranmore deer yard; stratum | in purple, stratum Il in green. The subject property is
wholly overlapped by stratum Il deer wintering habitat,

In Northern Ontario, Stratum Il habitat staging areas are on lands surrounding core wintering
areas. According to the SWHMIST, single-lot development is not expected to have significant or
serious impacts on deer wintering habitat and its function. However, the guide cautions that the
practice of depositing food for deer to enhance viewing opportunities by people should be
discouraged. The practice of winter-deer feeding affects the animal’s normal migration to a deer
wintering area and concentrates deer in areas where they would not normally spend the winter.
Supplemental feeding can also contribute to localized traffic hazards and negative human-wildlife
interactions.

FRi recommends that landowners refrain from supplemental feeding of white-tailed deer in the
winter. This will ensure deer continue to follow their natural migration patterns. The proposed
small-scale cottage development should not negatively impact the ability of white-tailed deer to
move through the identified Stratum Il habitat to the ‘core’ yard during the winter months.

FRi Ecological Services Page 21 of 24

Page 47 of 329



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

Proposed Development

Cottage and Accessory Buildings

The proposed cottage and accessory buildings including the septic system are situated in mature
maple hardwood forest. They exceed the minimum planning setbacks from the shoreline and
adjacent properties according to the plans provided by the landowner’s architect.

Boathouse

As noted above, the best location for the proposed boathouse is the location of the existing
floating dock. This location is ideal given the relative absence/minimal aguatic vegetation, the
bedrock substrate and the immediately suitable water depths to accommodate watercraft. It is
also entirely outside of the identified ‘type 1’ fish habitat.

The planned boat house should undergo a ‘self assessment’ following the guidance found on the
Fisheries Protection website.  https://www.dfo-mpo.gc.ca/pnw-ppe/reviews-revues/reguest-
review-demande-d-examen-004-eng.htm! If determined through the self-assessment process, a
Request for Review may be required. Regardless, the proposed boathouse generally meets the
municipality’s planning requirements.

Dock

The existing floating dock location is proposed to be replaced by a boathouse. This necessitates
moving the floating dock to another suitable location. Most of the shoreline is identified ‘type 1’
fish habitat; however, an explanation was given, providing context in the current legislative
framework. In short, a float dock will not likely negatively impact fish or fish habitat. It is assurmed
that the proposed dock will include a narrow footpath, not more than 3 metres wide to
accommodate access to the dock.

FRi recommends the landowner submit a Request for Review to Fisheries and Oceans, requesting
their review and approval of the proposed dock location. This approach is consistent with the
Provincial Policy Statement {PPS) and associated municipal planning framework.

Recommended Mitigation
The following are recommended respecting the proposed development at 1388 Ahmic Lake Road:
s Self assessment of the proposed dock and boat house following the Fisheries Protection
Program guidance
o https://www.dfo-mpo.gc.ca/pnw-ppe/reviews-revues/request-review-demande-
d-examen-004-eng.himt
e Submit a Request for Review for any in-water and riparian work e.g., boat house and dock,
following self-assessment if required;
¢ Timing of tree clearing and vegetation removal for the development envelopes restricted
to October 1 through March 31 to protect wildlife values; e.g., breeding birds;

FRi Ecological Services Page 22 of 24

Page 48 of 329



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

¢ Delineate development areas to minimize disturbance to adjacent undeveloped areas on
the subject property.

s Refrain from supplemental feeding of wildlife to discourage human-wildlife conflicts,
including winter feeding of white-tailed deer.

Summary

This report supports the rezoning of all identified terrestrial upland areas at 1388 Ahmic Lake Road
from EP (environmental protection) to RS (shoreline residential). If the above noted
recommendations are implemented and the suggested timing is adhered to, the proposed cottage
development and associated accessory buildings including a boat house and floating dock, will not
negatively impacts the natural heritage values on the subject property. This applies to those
proposed development envelopes as shown in the appended sketch and reproduced in the figures
in this report.

Respectfully submitted,

oo

Rebecca Geauvreau
FRi Ecological Services
Species at Risk Biologist

FRi Ecological Services Page 23 of 24

Page 49 of 329



Scoped Environmental Impact Study, 1388 Ahmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan, October 2023

Appendix A: Sketch of the Proposed Development

FRi Ecological Services

s £y
£l g |[E3,%
i 2 oW,
g 3| g i
PO = LU
3 i AL
L b .1\_1_‘_;
4/.1 .‘
- !
o
1
1
k
i
A
‘:\i\
‘ ]
: it /
: el /
1 s /
] i :
PART LOTS ® AND 20
CONCESSION 3 AND ¢
/GFOGRAPHIC TGWNSHIR OF CROFT
MUN CIPALTY G MAGNE"AWAN
DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND
PARTIS PAR™ 16 i
I -‘.:-"I
5‘6" ’
& /
s
/3
&
P
Q\d
=B
: e
1 / ’
\:? 4 &
y
t;‘k ¢
:i._
e
e,
w4

Page 24 of 24

Page 50 of 329



Erica Kelloag

From: Simon Gitalis <simon@gitalis.com>

Sent: April 2, 2024 8:53 AM

To: Erica Kellogg

Subject: GOODJOHN ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT

Attachments: Magnetawan By-law 2016-10 Langford ZBL Amendment (1).pdf; EA AMIC FISH_001
(1).pdf

PLEASE SUBMIT ANY WRITTEN COMMENTS TO ERICA KELLOGG
Quoting File No: GOODJOHN ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT
Erica Kellogg, Deputy Clerk — Planning and Development
Municipality of Magnetawan

P.O. Box 7 Magnetawan, Ontario, POA 1P0

705-387-3947 ext. 1011

planning@magnetawan.com

March 31, 2024
This letter is submitted and representing the following owners and properties:

1} 1422 Ahmic Lake Road, Jordan Goodman, Simon Gitalis
2} 1516 Ahmic Lake Road, 2737101 ONTARIO LTD.
3} 1422 Ahmic Lake Road, Joan Laws, Brian Laws

After reviewing the submission noted above, we are of the opinion that there should be no Boathouse or
Dock allowed for this Property.

Attached you will find the Supplementary Fish Habitat Impact Assessment for Seasonal Shoreline Lot Creation
Part Lot 19, Concession 3, Geographic Township of Croft, Municipality of Magnetawan, Prepared for Mark
Langford when he rezoned and subdivided the 2 lots {S1 & S2) off Lost Forest Park Lane right across from the
subject Property. | am also attaching the resulting By-Law No. 2016-10 passed on March 239, 2016 by The
Corporation of the Municipality of Magnetawan.

These same measures should exist for the opposite side of the channel as it is included and is the same area
referred to as “CRITICAL FISH HABITAT” in the Fish Habitat Impact Assessment. There is tons of vegetation and
wildlife that utilize this channel. Fish, Turtles, Birds, Deer, Muskrats, Wolf, Bugs, etc...There are three
established Beaver Lodges along the Shoreline of the subject Property, they can even be seen in Figure 1.

Why would the other side of the channel be different? They are both “FISH HABITAT” the same guidelines
should apply.

The Big Rock where they want to build a (very to large) Boathouse is called the Honey Pot by everyone as it
and the shoreline hold many fish all the time.

The spot where they want to squeeze in a floating dock was, is and always will be in the heart of the Fish
Habitat. The proposed changes from EP to RS have blurred the lines from the established EP areas for the

Page 51 of 329



proposed Boathouse and Dock to look like they are not in the EP zone anymore. They have shuffled the lines
around to confuse the issue at hand. Yes the EP zone does not seem to make sense for the wooded lot area
but the shoreline is still a Critical Fish Habitat. All the owners in this letter understand this and that the
property was designated by the EP zoning and never expected this type of density to be there let alone a
Boathouse and Dock. This is very surprising and distressing.

We strongly recommend reviewing the materials attached, taking more time to consider this Bylaw
Application and have more discussion about the matter as some of the owners will not be able to attend the
short notice for the April 10" date.

Kindly confirm receipt.

Cordially,

Simon Gitalis

Mobite: 416.592.0263

Page 52 of 329



Sirnon Sifalis

_publ ic. Com mmf’
Ottachment™ 7

Supplementary Fish Habitat Impact Assessment
For Seasonal Shoreline Residential Lot Creation
Part Lot 19, Concession 3, Geographic Township of
Croft
Municipality of Magnetawan

Prepared for

By Blythe and Associates
December, 2015

Page 53 of 329



1.0 Introduction and Background Information

In 2013 the proponent. Mr. Mark Langtord. prepared an application to sever and
rezone & l-hectare shoreline lot as seasonal shoreline residential. The proposed lot
creation was located on the shoreline of Neighick (Beaver) 1.ake that is part of’ Ahmic
Lake. and the greater Magnetawan River system (L' TM centroid coordinate 17 |
599174 5052522).

Subsequently. in 2015, Mr. Langford amended his lot creation application to increase
the number of seasonai-residential lots from the original application of one (1) to
three 13) lots in the amended application. The shoreline fronting all of the proposed
lots has been given a fish habitat importance designation of Type | - the highest
level of protection.

Blythc and Associatcs was originally retained by Mr. Langford in 2013 to prepare a
fish habitat impact assessment report on his initial 1-lot application. This report found
that although the fish habitat typing was technically correct. the habitat was of
marginal value to overall Ahmic Lake fishery and any potential negative impacts to
the fish habitat could be easily mitigated by implementing the appropriate standard
shoreline development protocols and procedures as stipulated in the local municipal
by-laws. provincial septic system standards, and Fisheries and Oceans Canada (DFO)
regulations.

1.1 Location

All three lots, as shown on the proponent’s Jot creation application sketch, are in close
proximity to one another (Attachment 1). They are located at the narrow isthmus of

a peninsula that projects northward into Neighick Lake: terminating at Pleasant Point

{UTM centroid coordinate 17 7 5399191 5053 132).

The original lot for which the 2013 report was wrilten — for the purposes of this
repont designated as [.ot O — was located on the gagt side of the isthmus (L'TM
centroid cuordinate 17 T 599174 5052522). As previously stated, the fish habita
characteristics of Lot O were marginal.

Lot O {fronts on a shallow back bay with:

s shallow-water depth varying from 0.5 m 1o 1.5 m deep.

* lake bed substrates of a soft organic soil cover by a scatiering of woody debris
ranging from fine twig and leaf debris with a few scattered submerged logs.

e sparsely vegetated with a mixture of the aquatic plants.

* und a north-facing aspect that limits aquatic vegetation growth and suitability as
warm-water [ish spawning habitat.

Page 54 of 329



2.0 Existing Lakefront Conditions of Lots S1 and S2

The two newly proposed fots in Mr. Langiord's amended application — designated as
Lots §1 and S2 for the purposes of this report — are located on the west side of the
peninsula’s isthmus (UTM centroid coordinate 17 T 599087 5052311} (Attachment
1). The fish habitat in ihis area is significantly differem from that of Lot O and is
more important to the overall Ahmic Lake fishery.

3.0 Fish Habitat Characteristics of Lots SI and S2

Lots St and $2 front on a narrow — 155 metre wide — channel that connects
Neighick Lake and Crawford Lake (Attachment |). The channel between Neighick
Lake and Crawford Lake is approximately 2 kilommetre long and heavily vegetated
with aquatic plants . This is the main outflow channel trom Crawford Lake. The flow
is northward into Beaver Lake : thence. into Ahmic Lake and the greater Magnetawan
River system.

Crawford Lake receives inflow waters from a relatively large watershed that includes:
Belis, Simmons, and Newell Lakes — via Wylie Creck. In addition. it also reccives
inflow from the Neighick River and its extensive watershed catchment area that
includes Scguin (Wolif) Lake: approximately 8 kilometres to the south.

The 2-kilometre long outflow channel. in front of the proposed lot development,
sustains an aquatic-plani species rich. lacustrine marsh. At the peak of the summer
growing season — late July — the navigable portion of the channel is very narrow —
approxtmately 5 m — and is choked with submerged and floating aquatic vegetation.

This type of lacustrine marsh is relatively uncommon within the Precambrian Shield
environment. The open-water marsh is dominated by aquatic plamt species such as:
water horsetail (Equisefum fluviatile). floating burreed (Sparganium fluctuans).
pickercl weed (Pontederia cordata), floating heart (Nymphoides cordata). water
shield (Braseniu Schreberi) . fragrant water lily (Nymphaea odorata) . purple
bladderwon (Utriculata purpurea) and an assortment of pondweeds ( Potamogeton
spp). Along its margins, there is a band of common cattail { Tvpha larifolia).

This extensive area of aquatic vegetation provides critical habitat for both fish and
assorted wildlife species. It also provides valuable staging and feeding habitat for
migratory waterfow.

In particular. the following game-fish species are found in abundance here: northern
pike: smalimouth bass: largemouth bass: and yellow perch. The extensive lacustrine
marsh. and the flow channel itself, provides at least ane of the following critival
habitats for the aforementioned species — foraging. spawning. and nursery habitat.
(iame-fish species spawned and grown here would ultimately migrate into other parts
of Ahinic Lake. In essence. the Crawford and Neighick lake open-water marshes are
a fish-producing factory for the rest of Ahmic Lake.

Page 55 of 329



For these reasons this uncommon and valuable aquatic environment requires a higher
level of protection than is usually accorded the normal rocky near-shore cnvironment
ol most Precambrian Shield lakes.

4.0 Potential Negative Impacts of the Proposed Shoreline
Development

Shoreline scasonal-residential lot creation inherently assumes that there will be some
development of the lot in terms of the construction of a seasonal dwelling structure
and attendant shoreline structures such as a boathouse. dock. and storage buildings.
These developments may. if done improperly and without due regard to the
shoreline’s natural heritage features. result in negative impacts to fish habitat. This is
particularly, true in the case of Lots St and S2, where the usual expectations of
shoreline structures will have to be attenuated in order to proteet the critical fish
habitat of the lacustrine marsh.

The shallow water and dense vegetation of the open-water marsh. fronting i.01s S1
and $2. will preclude any mototized watercraft access from the lot’s shoreline 10 the
main navigable channel — approximately 80 metres out from the lot. Similarly. there
can be no provision for a swimming area. To achieve either of these objectives would
require dredging of the marsh and some amount of destruction of its of critical fish
habitat.

The destruction of critical fish habitat of this type tends to be incremental and may
take place over a long period of time. To allow any loss of the open-water marsh
vegetation to shoreline development would set a precedent; wherein, future shoreline
developers would expect similar opportunities 1o dredge boat channcls, create
swimming beaches, or remove aguatic vegetation, The open-water marsh
environment would be slowly diminished. as would the Ahmic Lake spon fishery.

5.0 Site Specific Mitigation Measures To Protect Critical Fish
Habitat

Mr. Langford is proposing a stringent set of environmental constraints to allow the
development of Lots ST and S2 1o proceed. Specifically:

* o dredging will be permitted:
e no infilling of the shoreline below the seasonal high-watermark will be permitied:

* no remmval of aquatic vegetation by any means will be permitted in front of the
lots:

¢ in order o provide access 1o the navigable portion of the lake. the lots will have a
decded right-of-way 1o a common access point on Neighick $ake on the east side
of the isthmus adjoining Lot O, where motorized watercraft may be launched and
docked:

Page 56 of 329



¢ all forms of motorized watercrafl including standard propeller-driven and
Jet-propelled watercraft will be launched from and docked. at this site:

* on the west-side of the isthmus, each lot will have a provision for the placement of
a 25 m* floating platform attached to the shoreline from which would exiend a 2 m
wide by 10 m long, steel-pile-supported duck suitable for the launching of non-
motorized watercraft -— canoes. kayaks. punts etc. — to access the marsh
environment:

¢ the entire floating platform and canoe dock will extend out into the marsh
a maximum of |5 metres from the shoreline:

 and in order to protect the marsh environment from disruption. the
placement of the steel-piles and dock construction will take place in the
winter months, when equipment and materials can be placed on the ice.

6.0 General Fish Habitat Protection Measures

In addition. to prevent harm to fish habitat. the following standard protocols and
procedures are recommended:

* seasonal-residential building envelopes will be sited at least 15 metres back from
the edge of the lake as is specified in the Municipality of Magnetawan's shoreline
setbacks for areas of warm-water fish habitat:

* any fill materials used to elevate the building site will be protected with adequate
sediment and erosion control measures that will be maintained until the arcas of
disturbed and unconsolidated soils are re-vegetated. or stabilized by other
permanent methods:

* construction equipment will be fuelled off-site — at least 50 metres away from the
shoreline — fuel and oil spill clcanup materials should be readiiy available on-site
during the construction phase:

* no shoreline alteration should occur in terms of the removal of shoreline trees.
shrubs. or emergent shoreline herbaceous species:

e it may. however. be necessary 1o remove a few individual shoreline trees
to enhance the water view. however. vegetation removal should be kept to
an absolute minimum; the pruning of tree limbs is preferable to the
removal of trees:

¢ and a shoreline vegetation buffer zone of 5 metres should be maintained in a

natural state, save for periodic pruning of brush 1o facilitate access to the non-
motorized watereraft dock.

Page 57 of 329



7.0 Report Author’s Qualifications and Experience

Biythe and Associates was established in 1989. Chris Blythe is the principat of
Blythe and Associates: he specializes in providing expertise in primary ficld biology.
This includes fish habitat assessments. as well as botanical and wildlife habitat
surveys. Based in Magnetawan. Ontario. he works on projects throughout the
province with both public and private sector clients. He is accredited as a wetland
evaluator by the Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry (OMNRF).

He is also registered under the Ontario Ministry of Transportation’s (M 10} Registry.
Appraisal, Qualification System (RAQS) as a:
e Naral Sciences Specialist.
» Fisheries Assessment Specialist under the DFO/MTO/MNR
Fisheries Protacol.
» and Fisheries Contract Specialist under the DFO'MTO/MNR
Fisheries Protocol.

Blythe and Associates is registered as a Prime Consultant {or these natural heritage
specialities in the RAQS sysiem

Chris Biythe provides botanical and wildlife assessments for a range of clients.
including various municipalities, and the govermment of Ontario. In this vein, he has
conducted numerous botanical. and wildlife surveys for proposed highway widening
and road improvement projects. For over a decade he has worked on Highway 69/400
expansion corridor for M10 providing assessments of proposed right-of-ways for
threatened or endangered species of flora and fauna. These assessments have
included comprehensive ground searches for: Eastern Massasauga, Liastern Hognose
Snakes. Fastern Foxsnake. Blanding’s Turtle. Spotied Turtle. Wood Turtle. Whip-
poor-will. Common Nighthawk, Canada Warbler, and Olive-sided I'lycatcher . His
most reeent project in this area involved providing expertise with herpetofauna on a
special joinl-research project on Eastern Massasauga sponsored by MTO and Wildlife

Preservation Canada, a non-government organization concerned with rare species
conscrvation,

He is also recognized by MTO and OMNREF as a qualitied trainer to provide all
species Ontario Endangered Species Act training for all levels of highway
construction personnel on the Highway 69/400 expansion corridor. In additions.
within the Highway 69/400 expansion corridor, he has also worked on First Nations
lands under the provisions of the federal government’s Spevies at Risk Act (SARA).

In 2001 and 2002, he was retained by the OMNRI to conduct site reconnaissance
surveys of 17 proposed conservation reserves, under the Ontario Living Legacy
program and prepare a detailed life science report on cach conservation reserve. This
project invalved assessment of the botanical. wildlife and historical attributes of
approximately 34.521 hectares of Crown land within the Parry Sound/Muskoka area.

In addition to providing field biology expertise, he has also been contracied by several

federal government agencies 1o conduct research into arcas of fisheries and botany.
From 1998 tu 2002, he was retained by Fisheries and Oceans Canada (DFO) 10

6

Page 58 of 329



Alacsl

Cominon access poinl amd
otk 10 Neighich ke iy

4 OO EU Wale o

=

T
i A

&7 .
) o)

| &3" _ ...'_:.

Sketch
Part o
Geogra
Dis

Scal

S1-Severedl =1
52 -Severed2 =2
Retained = 18.6+

This is not a Plan .
discussion purpos.
approximate and |
plans. No field su.
the measuremet

Page 59 of 329



Slmoh Q,+Q'l S
Public COer)gn‘{"

Q H al h men “*
M Uun Zj}(;"l;ba [ ny Te:(705) 387-3947 3

Corperation of the

Fax: (705} I87-4873
W MAgRE A o

M agn et a wa n Tncorpararcd 2000 Diserect of Parry Sound 0. Box 70 Magnetavan, Ontario POA 170

THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF MAGNETAWAN
BY-LAW NO. 2016- 10

Being a By-law to amend By-law No. 2001-26, as amended, the Zoning By-law for the Corporation of
the Municipality of Magnetawan with respect to lands located in Part of Lot 19, Concession 3, in the
former geographic Township of Croft, now in the Municipality of Magnetawan, Plan 42R-20119
Parts 2,3,5 and 6 and municipally known as 1516 Akmic Lake Road, Municipality of Magnetawan.

WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Magnetawan is empowered to pass By-
laws to regulate the use of land pursuant to Section 34 of the Planning Act, R.5.0. 1990;

AND WHEREAS the owner of the subject lands has filed an application with the Municipality of
Magnetawan to amend By-law 2001-26 as amended;

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Magnetawan enacts as

follows:

L. Schedule "Al’, to Zoning By-law No. 2001-26 as amended, is further amended by zoning a portion of lands
legaliy described as Part of Lot 19, Concession 3, Plan 42R-20119, Parts 2,3,5 and 6 in the former Township of
Croft, now in the Municipality of Magnetawan and munmicipally known as 1516 Ahmic Lake Road,

Municipality of Magnetawan from the Extractive Industrial (MX) Zone to the Shoreline Residential Exception
RS-23 Zone as shown on Schedule *A-1" attached forming part of this By-law.

2. One 25m’ floating platform per lot is permitted. The entire floating platform and canoe dock will extend out
into the marsh 2 maximum of 15 metres from the shoreline. The floating platform will be attached to the
shoreline from which would extend a 2 metre wide by 10 metre long, steel-pile supported dock suitable for the
launching of non-motorized watercraft to access the marsh environment.

3. To prevent harm to fish habitat, the following standard protocols and procedures shall be followed, as included
in the December 2015 Supplementary Fish Habitat Impact Assessment prepared by Blythe and Associates :
a. Seasonal-residential building envelopes shall be sited at least 15 metres back from the edge of the lake;

b. Any fill materials used to elevate the building site shall be protected with adequate sediment and erosion
control measures that shall be maintained until the areas of disturbed and unconsolidated soils are re-
vegetated or stabilized by other permanent methods; and

¢ A shoreline vegeration buffer zone of 5 metres shall be maintained in a natural state, save for periodic
pruning of brush to facilitate access to the non-motorized watercraft floating platform.

4. Inall other respects, the provisions of By-law 2001-26, as amended shall apply.

This By-law take effect on the date of its passage. subject to the provisions of Section 34 (30) and (31) of the
Planning Act (Ontario).

READ A FIRST, SECOND, AND THIRD TIME, passed, signed and the Seal of the Corporation affixed
hereto, this 23% day of March, 2016

THE CORPORATION OF THE
MUNI?BA’LITY OF MAGNETAWAN

ol B _—
Mayor

;_ / =4 e
(g Ay

Clerk-Administrator

Page 60 of 329



Schedule ‘A-1'

Part Lot 19, Concession 3

GEOGRAPHIC TOWNSHIP OF CROFT
Municipality of Magnetawan

LOT18COND

LOTI9CON 2

MX

RU

LOTI9CONZ

R

Lands to be rezoned from the Extractive Industrial {MX) Zone
to the Shoreline Residential Exception Twenty Three (RS-23) Zone

This is Schedule 'A-1' to Zoning By-law 2016- 10

P}a:eyi 23" dayof 2016
=
i — /ﬂ// «//

Mayor Cletk-Administrator

—rt-

Page 61 of 329



Ree jdm M1t
PAyrrent “J00 Lo

o The Corporation of the 7. 5 DO
12 Municipality of Magnetawan Z MIZ:

i Box 70 4304 Hwy 520
.___::@-— Magnetawan ON  POA 1PO
o Phone 705 337 3947 Fax 705 387 487>

WWAY [Raw ALY £om

APPLICATION FORM

ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT

Date Recewved by Municipality:

1) APPLICATION INFORMATION

Name of Applicant  John Jackson Pianner Inc. {Aaent)
Mailing Address: 2-1 Mall Drive, Parry Sound, ON P2A 3A9
Telephone Number (Home): Fax Number
Telephone Number (Business): 705-746-5567 Fax Number

2) REGISTERED OWNER

if the Applicant is not the Registered Owner of the subject lands. then authonzation from the
Owner is required, as well as the following information:

Owners Name: _Mark Goodpohn

Mailing Address.
Telephone Number (Home): 519 855-9725 Fax Number:
Correspondence to be sent to: G Owner X Agent G Both

3) MORTGAGES, CHARGES OR OTHER ENCUMBRANCES

Name:

Mailing Address:

Name:

Mailing Address:

4) SUBJECT LANDS

Geographic Township: Magnatawan Concession: 384 Lot: 19220
Reference Plan: 42R-16810 Part/Block/Lot: 1% 16
Strest Name and Number: 1388 Ahmic Lake Road
(If corner lot, please include both Strect Names)
Water Access only:
{Name of Waterbody]
Area of subject lands (ha): 45 Frontage [m): 555 Depth {m): £123
Page 1 of 5

Page 62 of 329



) OFFICIAL PLAN / ZONING STATUS

What is the current designation of the subject lands n the approved Qfficial Plan?
Waterfront

What 18 the enrrent Zoning?

RS

6) REASONS FOR REQUEST

Please s rhe the reasona fur and extent of. the requss:
The scoped environmental impacl assessment (FR1 Corp October 2023) accuratly identified

the inner imit of the EP area The upland area, shown as EP can be rezoned to RS

7)  ACCESS

Are the subject lands accessible by:

U] Provincial Highway

a Municipal Road {seasonal maintenance)
Murnicipal Road ( year round maintenance)
Raght of Way
Unopened Road Aliowance
Water Access
Other ideseribe}

Ppooo-

Ahmic Lake Road

8) BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES AND USES
What are the existing buildings on the sub:ect land® HNone

What are they used for? N/A

Please complete the following for each building or structure.

Budl Oue Bullding Two Bullding Three

Typoe of Bullding
Sethack from Front Lot Line

Setback from Rear Lot Lina

Setback from Side Lot Line

Setback from Side Lot Line

Height (metres)

Pimensions

Ploor Area

Date of Construction

Page2of 5

Page 63 of 329



What 1s the proposed future use of the subject lands: Cottage / Residential

Are anv buildings or structures to be Luild on he subject lands?

yes dno

I{ yes, please ~amplete the fallowing for each burlding or strucure

Buildiug One Buudi.nE Two Buuding Three

Type of Buildiag Dwe ling Bunke 1 Bunkie 2
Setback from Front Lot Line 274 l 104 120 I
Sotback from Rear Lot Line 428 : 411 395

Setback from Side Lot Lins 7 98 %9

Sethack from Side Lot Line 76 14 15

Height [metres)

Dimensions See pan 48x87 48x87

Floor Area 877 ¥4 42

Date of Construetion

When were the subject lands acquired by the current owner?

How long have the “existing uses® continued on the subject lands? Y

9) SERVICING

Municipal Private Other
Water Supply Q . ul
Sewage Disposal a * a
Frontage on Road Q 2 Q
Is storm drainage provided by: Q Sewer O Ditch Q Swale

X Other {describe) Natural

10) OTHER APPLICATIONS
Are the subject lands alse the subject of an application under the Planning Act for approval of a
Plan of Subdivision or a Consent? Qyes < no

If yes, what is the file number?
What is the status of the application?

Have the subject lands ever been the subject of an application under Section 34 of The Plannung

Act (rezoning)? O yes * no

If yes, please provide a briel explanation:

Page 3 of 5

Page 64 of 329



11}

lease

DRAWINGS

‘nclude a sketch showing the following:

o] the boundaries and dimensions of the subject land;

a the locanion, siz¢ and type of all existing and proposed buildings and structures on
the subject land, indicating the distance of the building or structures frem the
front yard 1ot line. rear yard lot line and side vard lot lines:

2 the approximate location of all natural and artificial features on the subject land
and on jand that is adjacent io the subject tand that, in the opinion of the
applicant, may affect the application. Examples in-lude: buildings, raitways,
raods, watercourses, drainage ditches. river of stream banks, wetlands, wooded
areas, wells and septic tanks;

o] the current uses on land that is adjacent o the subject land;

] the location, width and name of any roads withinor abutting the subject land,
indicating whether it is an unopened road allowance. a public travelled road, a
private road or a right-of-way,

J if arcess to the subject land 15 by water only, the tocation of the parking and
docking facihities to be used; and

a the location and nature of any easement affecting the subject land.

Required Sketch

Required 8ketch should include the following:

# Lot dimensions / Buildings and Structures
¢ Major Physical Features # Sewage and Water Systems
# Surrounding Land Uses

Page 4 of 3

Page 65 of 329




12) PERMISSION TO ENTER

| hereby authorize, the Members of StafT and/or Elected Members of the Council of the Municipelity of

Magnetawan, 10 enter upon the subject lands and premises for the imited pyr of evaluating the merits
of this application. This is their authority for doing so. e b&apb\ x

January 22,2024 L M —
Date Signature of Registercd Owner(s) or Agent

13)  FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

| hereby provide authority for any infonnation contained in this application, tg.be released in accordance
with 1l:e Freedom of Information Act XS é +

&8
January 22, 2024 el Grod— s

Date Siguslure of Registered Owner(s) or Agent

14) PAYMENT OT FEE AND DEPOSIT
El Agpplicalion Fee As per the current Fees and Charges By-law
i Residential Deposit Fee As per the current Fees and Charges By-law
O Commercial/industrial Deposit Fee As per the current Fees and Charges By-law

The “deposit “shall be used (or expenses as defined below. As for the date of this application, | further
hereby agree to pay for and bear the entire ¢cost and expense for any engineering, legsl, lundscape,
architectural and/or planning consulting expenses incurred by the Municipality of Magnetluwan during the
processing of this Application, in addition to the Application Fee set by the Municipality of Magnetawan.

An additional depssit shall be required if the deposit is i?im:le lete the Application.
Jonuary 22, 2024 / YeR— x
Dalc [ Signdture of Registored Owner(s)

Note:  All lnvoices for payment shall be sent Lo the person(s) indicated in Section 2) Owner of this
application, unless otherwise requested.

If the Applicant/Owner is a Corporalion, the Applicant/Owner shall provide certification that he/she has
the authority to Bind the Corporation.

15)  AFFIDAVIT

I, Mark Goodjohn of the Municipaiity of Magnetawsn in the

Distilct of Fariy Seand solemnly declare that all of the above statements
contained herein and in all exhibits transmitted herewith are true and | make this solemn declaration
conscicntiously believing it to be true and knowing that it is of the same force and effect as if made under
oath and by virtue of “The Cenada Evidence Act”,

DECLARED BEFORE ME a| 700 of Pany Sound — inthe

District

of , Parry Sound this 2 dayof/snuasy .
é‘m

Signntur of Registored Owner(s) or Agent

Date
/ﬁ%- Page S of 5

mx;J?f% ?:u?ﬂn' a Commisaloner, stc.,
L] L] , for Jah
Expirus Dotobar 12,2028 T e (40

January 22, 2024 v

Page 66 of 329



I\' v :II:'.
1 "
\.luj

3 g, | \.-*.-g_
= B, T i :_




e A

QE‘M

PART LIS 19 AND 1)
CONCESSION 3 AN 2
GEQOGRAPHIC TOWNSHI? 79 CRGT T
MURICIPAL TY OF MAGNE AW AN
D STR CT OF PARRY SN A0

Page 68 of 329



- Extraclive Industrial
Village Resi

£ ep - Environmentat Protection
] 1 - nstitutionat

Bl M1 - General industrial

[l Mo - Disposal Ind

Bl ~M - muttiple Residential

[ /R - Rurat Residentiat

. RS - Shorefine Residential

. CV - Village Commercial

- CG - General Commercial
B c7 - Tounst Commerciai
u 0S - Open Space

THE SHORELINE RESIDENTIAL (RS)

PROPOSED TO BE REZONED
FROM THE ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION (EP) ZONETO

s

per.
¥ ¢M

I i
2

Pxi.:#ﬁ...,......_m.w.ww....

o




REPORT TO COUNCIL

Mayor and Council
From: Fire Chief Derek Young
Date of Meeting: April 10, 2024
Report Title: Quarterly Fire Department Report

Recommendation: THAT Council receives and approves this report as presented.

Call Volume:
As of March 31, 2024: 33 Calis for service.

Compared to years past:
As of

March 31, 2021: 42
March 31, 2022: 38
March 31, 2021: 38
March 31, 2020: 32

Call volume is slightly below the average for this time of year.

General update:

-Three members attended the Northeastern Fire Education Conference in Huntsville, gaining
valuable knowledge in firefighter cancer prevention through industry best practices. Other topics
included mental health programs, fireground rehabilitation, application of the Highway Traffic
Act and Book 7, and several other useful topics affecting the fire service.

-A Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment {HIRA) was completed in cooperation with our
community partners. The HIRA is a requirement for Emergency Management and is a process of
defining and describing hazards by characterizing their probability, frequency and severity and
evaluating adverse consequences, including potential loses and injuries. The Municipality is
expected to be fully compliant with Emergency Management Ontario this year and going
forward.

-The fire department provided medical standby for the SOS Drag Races on two occasions over
the winter. No incidents occurred and our services were not needed.

Page 1 of 2

Page 70 of 329



-The Community Risk Assessment has been started and will be complete by the deadline of July
1, 2024. This document identifies, analyzes, evaluates, and prioritizes fire-related risks to public
safety within our community.

Upcoming:

-Water rescue equipment will be switched out for the wildland firefighting equipment in the
coming days. Our area is forecasted to have a warmer than normal spring, with below normal
precipitation.

-Written and practical testing will take place in the coming months. Recruits will have their first
opportunity to challenge the tests to work towards certification.

Training:

-Two recruits finished the recruit training class in March. The first part of their certification
process will start this spring with the written testing through AS&E.

-All new firefighters received their certification in first aid and CPR.

-AS&E (Academic Standards and Evaluation) written testing took place in early January, with
several firefighters writing tests, moving us closer to becoming compliant with certification. Most
members have achieved their full certification. Many hours of training, self study, and testing are
required for this process and their efforts are appreciated.

Fire rating:

-April 1%t is the set date for daytime burning to end and starts the MNR fire season, moving the
fire rating to moderate. Although the ground may be saturated, or still frozen, the dead
vegetation can burn easily, and fire can spread rapidly. Daytime burning will not be allowed
without approval.

Conclusion:

2023 saw a record number of calls. Although 2024 has started off below average, call volume is
likely to increase and return to average levels. With the spring freshet nearly over and an
expected dry and warm spring ahead, emphasis will be placed on wildland firefighting training
and preparedness.

Respectfully Submitted,

Derek Youny

Derek Young,
Fire Chief.

Page 2 of 2

Page 71 of 329



REPORT TO COUNCIL

To: Mayor and Council

From: Jason Newman, Bylaw Officer
Date of Meeting: April 10, 2024

Report Title: First Quarter Report - Bylaw

Recommendation: THAT Council receives and approves this report for information only.

Introduction:

Current services have been consistent and continue to develop positively with management, staff
and Council in the Municipality of Magnetawan. Myself and Bryan are enjoying the opportunity
to support Magnetawan with meeting the demand for Municipal Law Enforcement.

Background:
Current reporting will be effective from January 1, 2024 to March 31, 2024, The start to 2024 has
been busy across the district and Magnetawan is consistent with these trends.

As noted in 2024 there was significant effort put in place to update numerous By-Laws, which
have resulted in updated and current legislation. Moving into 2024 there will be less demand in
this area, as these efforts should sustain for some time, or unless we identify need.

Some enforcement in 2023 and early 2024 has resulted in increased and more intrusive measures
for compliance. Unfortunately compliance was not cooperatively obtained and these methods
were required to mitigate these concerns. We await the judicial process for decision, remedy and
penaity.

The 2023 implemented Administrative Montetary Penalties (AMPS) have also been beneficial
already in 2024. It is also noted that based on this success, 5 other municipalities in the immediate
area are exploring these options and are expected to implement AMPS cooperatively prior to the
summer of 2024.

The addition of a second officer has been positive, and Bryan is developing well, and
demonstrating good skills and assessment.

The By-law Enforcement Department is in good shape moving into the spring and summer, and

we are prepared to respond as required to the increase of seasonal residents, and visitors to our
area’s.

Page r£2-0f 329



Calls For Service
Year to Date 2024

Animal - 11

Parking — 0

Other-3

Snow — 2

Property Standards - 1
Trailer-0

Noise - 0

FYI-0

Building - 5

Total =22
Conclusion:

Statistically we are trending slightly higher then 2023, it is expected calls will increase as
knowledge of the service continues to grow.

Animal calls have notably increased for year to date, and this trend will be monitored closely.
As we progress into the summer of 2024, we remain positive and ambitious to work with staff,
management, Council and resident to support Magnetawan in meeting the presenting By-Law
requirements and responsibilities.

Respectfully Submitted,

Jasovw Newman

Jason Newman
Senior By-law Enforcement Officer

Page -£3.0f 329



REPORT TO COUNCIL
Municipality of
Magnetawan

To: Mayor and Council

From: Chief Building Official Tyler Irwin

Date of Meeting: April 10, 2024
| Report Title: First Quarter Report
Recommendation:

THAT Council receives this report as presented for information only.

Background:

The purpose of this report is to update Council on Building Department matters such as:
e Building Permit activity within the Municipality {Jan 1* - Mar 31%),
¢ The general daily activities of the Building Department.

Evaluation:
From Jan 1* to Mar 31* a total of four (4) permits were issued for new construction. Although
the number seems low, it is on par with the number of permits issued prior to COVID-19.

Category of permits issued:
New single-family dwellings-----0

Seasonal 1
Sleep cabin 0
Park Model 0
Addition/ Renovation ----------—- 0
Garage/ Shed/ Boathouse ---- 3
Farm 0
Commercial 0
Demolition

Q1-Total Building Permit Fees- $10,080.00
Q1-Total Construction Value- $637,000.00

Q1- Five-year comparison

Year No. of Permits
2020 6

2021 11

2022 25

2023 12

2024 4

*Note- 2022 seen a significant higher number of permits due to one of the seasonal properties being brought into

Page 4-0f 329



Additional daily activities included;

Applicants can now apply on-line for a Building Permit. The new platform has been well
received, of eleven (11) applications received in the first quarter, seven (7) have been
through the portal. We will continue to work with CGIS to improve the capabilities of the
program. We have already sent a few suggestions with hopes to improve both the level
of service we provide and efficiency for applicants,

Updated files,

Added sample deck drawings to the website to assist applicants with their projects,

Responded to general inquires,

Completed property information reports,

Reviewed and processed applications,

Investigate complaints of building without a permit,

Issue orders for non- compliance and or building without a permit,
Conduct inspections for active building permits,

Inspector Goldring has been attending inspections, becoming familiarized with
construction plans, CBO Module (CGIS program) and the daily tasks within the
department. He was successful in his third exam which was Chief Building Official Legal.

CBO Irwin attended a virtual Part 9 Fire Protection course, both the course and exam were
successfully completed.

Respectfully Submitted,

Tyler Irwin

ceco

Page *#&0f 329



REPORT TO COUNCIL

Municipality of
Magnetawan
To: ' Mayor and Council
From: Public Works Superintendent Scott Edwards
Date of Meeting: April 10th 2024
Report Title: Public Works Department Quarterly Report (First Quarter)

Recommendation: THAT Council receives and approves this report as presented.

Background:

The First quarterly report for 2024 includes tasks completed for the Landfill and Roads
operations. Once again, the municipality has had an unseasonable winter season that resulted in
reduced operations in regards to sanding and plowing. Given the spring like conditions in
February and the start of March led to more gravel/ cold mix usage for potholes and the Roads
Department even switched out a culvert and although unusual does appear to be becoming a
trend.

Activities Undertaken — Roads Department

Winter Maintenance Although a less than average snowfall, to date the Roads Department was
out 14 times Plowing/Sanding and 17 times Sanding Only as compared to the entire last winter
of 33 times Plowing/Sanding and 11 Sanding. To note each time out plowing we do use the
sander, in total to date we used an estimated 4,500 tonnes of Sand/Salt mix. Comparing this to
last year’s entire winter season was an estimated 5,800 tonnes of Sand/Salt was used. Only one
full Snow Removal Operation took place in town this winter to which there is normally at least 2.
Culvert Steaming was at a minimal given the freeze/ thaw winter which also has limited the
normal flooding which is a benefit.

Parking on the Road has been reduced significantly given the increased notices and fines handed
out during this winter snow removal season.

JCB Backhoe {BH # 6} was delivered to the Roads Department in mid-March training provided by
Eric Bouchard of Elvaan Equipment Solutions. The older Case Backhoe (BH #5) has been
transferred to the Landfill.

Staff One of our Equipment Operators has resigned and moved on to a position in the private
sector. We are presently doing interviews of in-house Staff that are qualified and have applied.

Activities Undertaken — Landfill Department

Backhoe Snowblades The 2 Winter Backhoe Snow Blades which were approved during the 2023
Budget were purchased from J &) Equipment and have made a great impact on snow removal at
the Landfill in regards to time, fuel and wear and tear on the Backhoe.

Page~-#6-0f 329



Backhoe #3 2005 Case 580 This unit was placed on GovDeals and there was a lot of interest. To
note the minimum reserve was $35,000 and it sold for $35,000.

Blue Box Transition The Municipality has met the deadline to Opt In and continue services with
minimum changes to the public regarding the Blue Box Transition to Full Producer Responsibility.

Staff Status quo, no new updates to report.

Respectfully Submitted,

Seotr Edwarde

Scott Edwards
Public Works Superintendent

Page #7-of 329



N
REPORT TO COUNCIL
Municipality of
Magnetawan
To: Mayor and Council
From: Erica Kellogg, Deputy Clerk — Planning and Development
Date of Meeting: April 10, 2024
Report Title: 1%t Quarter Report

Recommendation: THAT Council receives and approves this report as presented for information
only.

Background: This update is the Planning and Development Department 1% quarter report for
2024. This report will serve to highlight various activities within the Department and will include
a review of current Planning Applications, Cemetery and Landfill activities.

In the 1% quarter of 2024, the total number of inquiries was 138.

Activities:

Human Resources; the successful candidate for the maternity leave Administrative Assistant —
General Finance position has been in place for one month. The transition has gone will and the
new Staff member was able to shadow for the month prior to the maternity leave commencing.
Staff are confident with continued training and support the candidate will continue to do well.

Pre-consultations: There have been a total of six pre-consultations, of which half were managed
in house by myself.

Consents: This quarter there have been a total of three new consent applications. These new
applications make a total of thirteen active consent applications.

Zoning Bylaw Amendments: Three new zoning applications have been received this quarter and
will be appearing before the Council soon.

Camp Klahanie OLT Case Management Conference (CMC) took place March 28%. The CMC
discussed five initial objections brought forward by the Appeilant, at the close of the CMC only
one objection will be addressed at the May 22" hearing.

4855 Highway 520: MHBC is the lead on the Employment Lands project. The last update is that
the MTO is requiring updates to our existing Traffic Study to reflect the entrance location
update, which is underway.

Short-term Accommodations: Application intake was slow in 2023, however the 2024 15t quarter
has seen a significant increase. Out of the total 13 applications nine licences have been issued,
The remaining applications have been identified as having building infractions and are working
with the Building Department to achieve compliance before licences are issued. With the change

Page..£80f 329




in weather, residents are gaining access to their seasonal properties which is bringing application
inquiries into the office daily, a good sign.

Economic Develgpment

The Magnetawan Tourism Attraction Survey was launched in the 1% quarter. Sent with each
property tax bill, the survey was created to help kick start the Magnetawan Tourism Association
{MAT) Board to learn from residents and visitor their thoughts about Magnetawan Tourism. To
date there have been a total of 147 responses. There has been a total of 47 respondents
interested in joining a tourism board in the future if/when created.

Cemetery: A site visit with the concrete contractor took place in March (before the snow came
back). The foundation work is siated to begin May 6. The concrete foundation will need to
cure and set before the columbariums are in place; however, it is hopeful the columbarium will
be installed June or July of this year. Once the columbarium is in place, Staff will work with
Sandhill Nursery to install a walkway to the columbarium (all work included in the 2024 budget).
Once the Bereavement Authority of Ontario has signed off on the project the Municipality will be
in a position to begin to sell niches within the columbarium.

Landfill: Staff have worked to mail out to Village residents 2024 curbside collection stickers. As
well the annual top up of numbered landfill cards has taken place.

Staff has worked with the Magnetawan Building Centre and Horticultural Society to create a
program wherein animal proof composters will be sold by the Municipality at a discounted rate.
The program will roll out to Magnetawan residents during the April 6' Seedy Saturday event here
in the Community Centre, hosted by the Horticultural Society. In addition to the purchase of a
‘at cost’ composter, we will be offering an additional incentive by way of Magnetawan Bucks
(Mag Bucks). The Mag Bucks will be a $10 coupon that can only be spent on composter supplies
at the Magnetawan Building Centre. Additionally, the Horticultural Society has offered to
support the composting program with an educational evening where Composting 101 will be
discussed. The goal of the program is to not only promote backyard composting as an ecological
friendly manner of waste disposal, but to also reduce waste consumption at both Landfill sites.

Respectfully Submitted,

Erica Keliag

Deputy Clerk — Planning and Development

Page 7@ of 329



REPORT TO COUNCIL

Municipality of
Magnetawan
To: Mayor and Council
From: Deputy Clerk Laura Brandt
Date of Meeting: April 10, 2024
Report Title: 1% Quarter Report Recreation and Communications

Recommendation: THAT Council receives this report as presented for information only.

Background: This is an update from January to March 2024 on the activities that have taken place
in Recreational and Communication during the first quarter of the year.

Activities;

Human Resources

Working with team members providing support and coaching and have been facilitating weekly
TED TALKS and Council Round Ups to ensure that Front line Staff are appraised of current issues
and messaging. As well as Staff is currently in the process of hiring summer students for the Locks
and Heritage Museum Centre. Five students will be returning from last year and there will be
three new additions to our Student Team this season.

Clerks Office

Staff have ensured that annual policies have been updated for 2024 including the Health and
Safety Policy Statement and Accessibility Policy Statement as well as submitted the Accessibility
reporting as per the legislation. The annual Broader Public Sector Reporting has been completed
and submitted for 2022 & 2023 in compliance with the Electricity Act 1998. One Magnetawan
Community Centre Board meeting has been conducted including the preparation of agenda and
minutes. Staff have conducted six meeting of Council in this quarter including the preparation of
agenda, agenda packages and minutes. Annual By-laws have been completed including the
Committee of Adjustment By-law along with the updating of several other outdated By-laws.
Staff are currently reviewing By-laws, Policies and Procedures and updating accordingly to ensure
that procedures are streamlined to improve delivery of services. Met with By-law Enforcement
Officer and surrounding municipalities in round table discussions regarding the implementation
of our AMPS By-law. Staff are currently working with Service Ontario to have the Mobile Service
attend our Municipality to help service our ratepayers.

Grant Funding Applications and Reporting
Staff have currently applied to 21 Grant Funding Streams for 2024 as well as the Municipality has

received monies from three annual allocations (NORDS, OCIF and OMPF) It should be noted that
the NORDS allocation expires in 2026. We are currently waiting on the outcome of 13 applications
with two of the applications currently in Stage 2. Six of the applications have been denied
funding. In addition to the above we are also waiting for the outcome of one grant application
from 2023 and one funding application was submitted by Lakeland Power on our behalf.

Page:80:0f 329



Staff have completed and submitted one annual grant funding report and two final reports for
funding received in previous years.

Cost of Amount Municipality
Project Anticipated Portion
Total | 5,735,288 3,317,033

2,338,983

1,568,947 1,568,947

& i

| Annual Allocation

Health and Safety

Conducting monthly health and safety inspections as per the legislation and working with
department heads and health and safety representatives to mitigate any concerns that arise.
Actively researched safety messaging for the Solar Eclipse that occurred April 8t and ensured
that any outside programming was cancelled for the day to ensure public safety. Facilitating Risk
Assessment/Job Hazard Analysis for Health and Safety Reps which is the next level of training
required and recommended by our Health and Safety consultant. The training will occur in May
and employees from surrounding Municipalities have been invited to attend the training sessions
and Staff are anticipating it being successful just like in previous years.

T

Currently working with our IT Provider to source new computer equipment for two department
heads as well as annual licensing for Adobe/Foxit. Also working with to ensure that we are
diligently protecting our information and our IT Provider will be providing a training session about
cyber security to Staff. Staff will also be working with our IT Provider to move forward with
additional antivirus protection and security measures considering the recent events at the Town
of Huntsville.

Communications

Prepared the February Newsletter that was included in the tax installment mail out and posted
on all social media platforms. Completed an interview with News Reporter Rocco Frangione to
help promote the upcoming “Out of Water” temporary art installation. Reached out to Explorer’s
Edge who have included our Music in the Park in their events calendar and forwarded our line up
to be included in the Summer Live Music Blog in June. Reached out to SPARC Network an agency
that helps sustain performing arts communities in rural and remote communities in Ontario to
help promote our events and programming. Signed up all upcoming Municipal Events and
Recreational Programming to the online event calendar for the North Bay Nipissing News.
Actively been posting hard copy posters in our Municipal displays and Canada Post of Municipal
Messaging as well as updating the Municipal Digital Signs with Municipal Messaging and
Community Events. Posted messaging on our Municipal Website and Electronic Mailer System
which includes 18 different messages through our Electronic Mailer System and updates to our
messaging on our Landfill, Planning, Treasury, Applications, By-law, and Recreation pages.
Additionally, Staff created a new AMP’S page and Senior Resources Page. Currently there are 490
Subscribers to our Electronic Mailer System. To note for the period from January 1, 2024, to
March 31, 2024, our webpages on our website had over 35,000 views from 8,874 users.

Page 8L.6f 329



L

Posted approximately 63 posts to Instagram and we currently have 196 followers. Posted
approximately 65 posts to Facebook including one paid boosted post for our Public Call for Artists
for Art in the Park and we currently have 1,821 followers. The paid boost cost $35 and had 36
link clicks and reached an additional 1,486 people through the sponsored ad. From the start of
January to the end of March our Municipal Facebook Postings reached over 25,000 people

Page iitle and screen class -

Municipality of Magnetawan

{not set)

Government - Municipality of Magnetawan
Search Results - Municipaiity of Magnetawan

Residents - Municipallty of Magnetawan

PLANNING & ZONING - Municipality of
Magnetawan

Agendas & Minutes - Municipality of
Magnetawan

Landfill and Recycling - Municipality of
Magnetawan

Explore - Municipality of Magnetawan

Statf Members - Municipality of Magnetawan

35.401
00 ef Tt

6,088

3772

1,632

1,401

1377

1,130

1in

999

758

665

Liasvs

8.874

tela

1848
93
680
582
681
441
336
570
473

489

Views per
user

3.99
Avg 0%

1.58
280
240
241
202
230
an
173
160

136

Average engagement
time

m 19s
g 11
14s
Am 41s
28s
S3s
28s

595

273

(including posts, stories, and ads) with 5,900 visits to our Municipal Facebook page.

Reach

Facebook reach (i}

257K + i
& D0g ‘
1

i

|

| |

2000 1- [} —]

e 1 Jan 21

Vislts
Facebook visits (1)
59K +i3s
200
i
150
" {1
\ | | !
L [y
L' S | | |
50 | 1A
] T
o
dan Jan 21

1
|
A ™ !I '
AW
f\ ]
Fas 10
A
| B,
¥
LAY
Fal: 10

SAar T

Event count

97,7207
of tota

21.389
6,168
3.862
4,665
3323
4,368

2767

2815
197

1982

& Export w

Page-82:0f 329

& Ewport =



Recreation

We currently have exercise classes running four times a week (Mondays and Thursdays) which
Staff participates in. We also have occurring weekly Pickleball on Tuesdays and Nordic Walking
twice a week {Mondays and Fridays) which is overseen by Dianne who volunteers her time.
Organized our Family Day Event that was held Saturday February 17t which had a wide array of
family fun activities including skating, a hot chocolate bar, lunch counter, snow painting, fire pit,
chainsaw carving and exotic animal show. This event had an attendance of approximately 80-
100 people and we received positive feedback regarding the event. Organized our last Dinner
and Learn Event that was held Friday March 8™. Jimmy once again did a great job catering and all
attendees received a homemade St. Patty’s themed paint your own cookie from Savour This. This
programming was very well received by our Seniors in our community and Staff has applied for
the same funding stream for 2024 to help build on the success of this Seniors Programming.
Organized our annual Easter Treats that are delivered to the Magnetawan Public School. The
treats were handmade by Savour This and were enthusiastically received by students. Organized
our Music in the Park Series for 2024 and all artists have been confirmed. Put out Public Call for
Artist for our Art in the Park Series for 2024 with the Burk’s Falls Art Club committing to every
other week and Staff are currently fueling questions from local artists about attending this
programming. Each year we have more artists interested in attending which is a positive
outcome. Currently trying to source a food vendor/concession stand to help elevate our Musicin
the Park, Art in the Park and Rollerskating programming. Staff have reached out to community
groups in hopes that they can use this as a fundraising opportunity. Applied to the Province for
the Ontario Senior of the Year Award on behalf of the Municipality. Currently working on the
planning of Canada Day which will be held on Saturday June 29, Confirmed the Drive-In Movie
Event Company and the Drive-In will be held Friday October 4'. Working with Carver Jake Rhodes
for our 2024 Public Art Installation. Staff has been working together with Albert and his team of
local artists on our Temporary Art Installation “Out of Water” Staff have developed information
sheets and has launched our programming. This installation will start being installed at the
Village Green in May and both the Magnetawan Public School and Whitestone Public School will
be involved in supplying 100 small artistic fish that will kick of the launch of this programming.
Working on launching our new Accessibility Project that was funded through the Enabling
Accessibility Program and all equipment has been ordered to complete this project. Worked with
Leslie from East Parry Sound Community Support Services to bring Stand Up Falls Prevention
Classes twice a week to our community for a 12 week period at the Magnetawan Friendship
Centre. This programming has been well received and Staff is currently working with Leslie to run
this program again after the 12 week period is completed. Staff are currently working with the
Muskoka Alzheimer's Society to hopefully facilitate hosting Minds in Motion programming in our
Municipality.

Upcoming

Organizing training for all students regarding their duties at the Locks and Heritage as well as
Staff is currently organizing Archery training for all students to ensure that the Archery
programming runs safely and effectively both training opportunities will occur in June. Waiting
for three funding streams to open for applications in the upcoming months and Staff are actively
sourcing and researching funding possibilities to help offset costs and fund new projects to
benefit the Municipality. Staff will also have two final reports for grant funding to be completed
in the next quarter. Staff will be launching all the summer programming including Archery, Art in
the Park, Music in the Park, Rollerskating, Rocksnake, Bike Lending, and Recreational Game

Page 83.6f 329



Lending along with opening the Locks and the Heritage Museum Centre. Will be applying for all
permits needed for the Canada Day Parade and Fall Fair Parade. Working with the Burk’s Falls Art
Club to promote and organize the NOAA Juried Art Show and Gala be held in September.
Organizing the Super Senior presentation to be held at the June meeting of Council. Finishing up
the organization of Canada Day, launching the event, and will oversee the event on June 29th,
Staff will continue to organize the Drive-In Movie event as October approaches as well as
organizing the Volunteer Dinner to be held sometime in the early Fall 2024. Will be attending
the AMCTO and FONOM conferences in May and June 2024. Staff will be conducting a
Magnetawan Community Centre Board Meeting later this month which includes preparing the
agenda and minutes. Launching our new Accessibility Project once the equipment arrives.

Staff will continue to support our “Out of Water” temporary art installation artists and will be
doing additional launches of the project as it progresses.

Respectfully Submitted

aura Brandt
Deputy Clerk Recreation and Communications

Page-84..0f 329



Report Date
2024-04-04 8:21 AM

Account # / Description

TAXATION: NON-ASSESSABLE
1-3-1000-1010 - TAXATION - INTERIM BILLING

Total TAXATION: NON-ASSESSABLE:

SUPPLEMENTAL TAXATION: FARMLAND
1-3-1106-2170 - SUPP FARMLAND: TAXABLE

Total SUPPLEMENTAL TAXATION: FARMLAND:

SUPPLEMENTAL TAXATION: RESIDENTIAL
1-3-1118-2170 - SUPP RESIDENTIAL: TAXABLE

Total SUPPLEMENTAL TAXATION: RESIDENTIAL:

SUPPLEMENTAL TAXATION: MANAGED FORES1
1-3-1120-2170 - SUPP MANAGED FORESTS: TAXABLE

Total SUPPLEMENTAL TAXATION: MANAGED FORESTS:

GENERAL TAXES
1-3-1250-3016 - GENERAL - AREA RATING TAXATION

Total GENERAL TAXES:

TAXES - ENGLISH PUBLIC SCHOOL
1-3-1255-3005 - ENG. PUB; SCH. - TAX SUPPS & OMITS

Total TAXES - ENGLISH PUBLIC SCHOOL:

TAXES - FRENCH SEPARATE SCHOOL
1-3-1258-3005 - FR. SEP. SCH. - TAX SUPPS & OMITS

Total TAXES - FRENCH SEPARATE SCHOOL:

DRAFT TAX ESTIMATES

1-3-1260-0001 - PRIOR YEAR TAX LEVY

1-3-1260-0002 - ASSESSMENT GROWTH NO TAX INCREASE
1-3-1260-0004 - 3% GENERAL TAX RATE INCREASE

Total DRAFT TAX ESTIMATES:

PENALTIES & INTEREST
1-3-1400-7130 - TREAS - PENALTIES & INTEREST

Total PENALTIES & INTEREST:

Municipality of Magnetawan
Budgetary Control

For the Period 2024-01-01 - 2024-03-11

Committed

Current

3.401,564.57
3,401,564.57

Page 1

Year to Date Budget '

34011 564,57
3,411 564 .57

242.41
242.41

+.588.01
£1:,588.01

{132.85)
1132.85)

87.56
87.56

4.892.12
1.892.12

454.20
454,20

5,618,658.00
69,603.00
195,646.00
5,883,907.00

14 815.66
141566

80,000.00
80,000.00

Page 85 of 329



Municipality of Magnetawan

Report Date Budgetary Control
2024-04-04 8:21 AM For the Period 2024-01-01 - 2024-03-31 Page 2
Account # / Description Committed Current Year to Date Budget
UNCONDITIONAL GRANTS
1-3-1500-5030 - TREAS - ONT. MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIP FUND 295,400.00 1,181,600.00
Total UNCONDITIONAL GRANTS: 295,400.00 1,181,600.00
CONDITIONAL GRANTS
1-3-1600-5046 - PROV GOVT - WAGE SUBSIDY - SEP 8,808.00
1-3-1600-5047 - PROV GOVT - RURAL ECONOMIC DEVELOP #1 2,215.00
1-3-1600-5077 - PROV GOVT - OCIF 43,774.00 228,395.00
1-3-1600-5080 - PROV GOVT - NORDS FUND 374,020.00
1-3-1600-5090 - ONTARIO STEWARDSHIP GRANTS 79,395.00
Total CONDITIONAL GRANTS: 43,774.00 692,833.00
FEES & CHARGES
1-3-1700-7102 - TREAS - TAX CERTIFICATES 44.25 309.75 1,500.00
1-3-1700-7104 - TREAS - MAPS| COPIES| ETC. 10.00
1.3-1700-7112 - TREAS - REVENUE - HISTORY BUOOKS 13.00 13.00 100.00
1-3-1700-7120 - TREAS - OTHER GG REVENUES 88.11 3,684.83
1-3-1700-7140 - TREAS - INVESTMENT INCOME 28,942 .36 100,000.00
1-3-1700-7150 - TREAS - DIVIDEND INCOME - LAKELAND 6,200.00 24,800.00
1-3-1700-7160 - TREAS - RENTAL - COMMUNICATION TOWER 110,62 331.86 1,327.00
1-3-1700-7170 - TREAS - HYDRO RE ROCKWYNN LANDING 100.00
1-3-1700-7172 - TREAS - HYDRO RE FIRE HALL SOLAR PANELS 116.72 4,500.00
Total FEES & CHARGES: 255,98 39,598.52 132,337.00
FIRE DEPARTMENT REVENUES
1-3-2000-722¢ - FD - 911 REVENUE 88.70 88.70 500.00
1-3-2000-7221 - FD - Insurance Recovery 12,000.00
1-3-2000-7230 - FD - FIRE DEPARTMENT REVENUE 75.00 555.00 6,000.00
Total FIRE DEPARTMENT REVENUES: 163.70 643.70 18,500.00
BUILDING REVENUES
1-3-2100-7200 - CBO - BUILDING PERMITS 6,400.00 12,757.80 180,000.00
1-3-2100-7210 - CBO - BUILDING INFORMATION REPORTS 200.00 600.00 1,000.00
Total BUILDING REVENUES: 6,600.00 13,357.80 181,000.00
BYLAW REVENUES
1-3-2200-5300 - BLEO - POA REVENUES 2,000.00
1-3-2200-7210 - BLEO - DOG LICENSES 40,00 140.00
1-3-2200-7220 - BLEO - TRAILER LICENCES 10,000.00

Page 86 of 329



Report Date
2024-04-04 8:21 AM

Account # / Description
Total BYLAW REVENUES:

ROADS REVENUE
1-3-3000-7320 - ROADS - ENTRANCE PERMITS
1-3-3000-7330 - ROADS - AGGREGATE LICENCE FEES

Totat ROADS REVENUE:

LANDFILL REVENUES
1-3-4020-7400 - LF - LANDFILL REVENUES
1-3-4020-7404 - LF - LANDFILL CARDS

Total LANDFILL REVENUES:

RECYCLING REVENUES
1-3-4030-7410 - RECY - RECYCLING REVENUE
1-3-4030-7420 - RECY - RECYCLING ELECTRONICS

Total RECYCLING REVENUES:

CEMETERY REVENUE
1-3-5010-7500 - CEM - CEMETERY REVENUE
1-3-5010-7510 - CEM - INTEREST REVENUE
Total CEMETERY REVENUE:

SHORT TERM ACCOMODATION REVENUE
1-3-6000-6600 - SHORT TERM ACCOMMODATIONS

Total SHORT TERM ACCOMODATION REVENUE:

RECREATION REVENUE
1-3-7000-7700 - REC - RECREATION FEES
1-3-7000-7745 - REC - MAGNETAWAN LOCKS REVENUE
Total RECREATION REVENUE:

COMMUNITY CENTRE AND PAVILION REVENUE
1-3-7300-7725 - REVENUE- MAG COM CENTRE & PAVILION
1-3-7300-7735 - REVENUE-AHMIC COMMUNITY CENTRE

Total COMMUNITY CENTRE AND PAVILION REVENUE:

HERITAGE CENTRE REVENUE
1-3-7600-7520 - HERITAGE - DONATIONS

Total HERITAGE CENTRE REVENUE:

Municipality of Magnetawan
Budgetary Control

For the Period 2024-01-01 - 2024-03-31

Committed

Current
40,00

3,885.27
3,885.27

140.00
10.00
150.0C

3,000.00
3,000.00

155.00

155.00

500.00
500.00

Year to Date

140.00

100.00
1.885.27
£ 985.27

875.00
66.55
941.55

50.00
552.84
702.84

.000.00
1.000.00
14.919.30)
919,30}

415,00

1.500.00
£.915.00

Page 87 of 329

Page 3

Budget
12,000.00

1,000.00
10,600.00
11,000.00

20,000.00
250.00
20,250.00

20,000.00
500.00
20,500.00

1,000.00
1,000.00
2,000.00

50,000.00
50,000.00

800.00
800.00

5,000.00
6.000.00
11,000.00

750.00
750.00



Report Date
2024-04-04 8:21 AM

Account # / Description

PLANNING REVENUES
1-3-8000-7800 - PLN - PLANNING REVENUE
Total PLANNING REVENUES:

CAPITAL REVENUES

1-3-8000-8001 - TRANSFER FROM ASSET MANAGEMENT RESER!

1-3-9000-8003 - TRANSFER-COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT RESER

1-3-8000-8005 - TRANSFER-OBLIGATORY RESERVE-GAS TAX

1-3-9000-8007 - TRANSFER FROM LANDFILL REHAB. RESERVE
Total CAPITAL REVENUES:

Revenue Totals:

LEGISLATIVE
1-4-1000-1010 - COUNCIL - SALARIES AND BENEFITS
1-4-1000-1011 - COUNCIL - INTEGRITY COMMISIONER EXPENSE!
1-4-1000-1310 - COUNCIL - CONFERENCES AND SEMINARS
1-4-1000-2010 - COUNCIL - MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES
1-4-1000-5018 - COUNCIL - DONATIONS
1-4-1000-7500 - COUNCIL - ROAD GRANTS

Total LEGISLATIVE:

ELECTIONS
1-4-1100-2010 - ELECTION - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES

Total ELECTIONS:

ADMINISTRATION

1-4-1200-1010 - ADMIN - WAGES AND BENEFITS
1-4-1200-1310 - ADMIN - CONFERENCES/TRAINING/MEMBERSHIF
1-4-1200-1320 - ADMIN - MEMBERSHIPS

1-4-1200-2010 - ADMIN - OFFICE & MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
1-4-1200-2025 - ADMIN - HEALTH & SAFETY

1-4-1200-2030 - ADMIN - CGIS SERVICES

1-4-1200-2050 - ADMIN - TELEPHONE

1-4-1200-2052 - ADMIN - CELL PHONE

1-4-1200-2120 - ADMIN - INSURANCE

1-4-1200-2130 - ADMIN - COMPUTER EXPENSES

Municipality of Magnetawan

Budgetary Control

Committed

For the Period 2024-01-01 - 2024-03-31

Current

1.500.00
1,500.00

3,417,814.52

11,133.90
1,509.99
201.86
3,800.00

16,645.75

34,550.25
870.36

477.65
5,192.23
737.52
448.45

2,362.82

Year to Date

6.200.00
6,200.00

3,857,251.06

16,672.59

10,616.93
290.10
4,375.98

31,955.60

77,026.14
6,162.21
(2,306.34)
2,306.10

10,540.58
2,186.41
862.73

13,605.85

Page 88 of 329

Budget

8,000.00
8,000.00

1,596,803.00
14,000.00
202,230.00
500,000.00
2,313,033.00

10,619,510.00

77,000.00
3,000.00
18,000.00
5,000.00
20,000.00
15,000.00
138,000.00

150.00
150.00

292,000.00
18,000.00

10,000.00
1,500.00
23,000.00
9,000.00
5,400.00
105,781.00
44,000.00



Report Date
2024-04-04 8:21 AM

Account # / Description

1-4-1200-2135 - ADMIN - WEBSITE EXPENSES
1-4-1200-2140 - ADMIN - COPYING EXPENSES
1-4-1200-2210 - ADMIN - LEGAL FEES-GENERAL
1-4-1200-2215 - ADMIN - LEGAL FEES-LABOUR
1-4-1200-2220 - ADMIN - UNION NEGOTIATION
1-4-1200-2225 - ADMIN - HR SERVICES
1-4-1200-8000 - ADMIN - CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Total ADMINISTRATION:

TREASURY

1-4-1300-1010 - TREAS - WAGES AND BENEFITS

1-4-1300-1310 - TREAS - CONFERENCES/TRAINING/MEMBERSH]|
1-4-1300-2010 - TREAS - TAXATION MATERIALS

1-4-1300-2200 - TREAS - ACCOUNTING/AUDIT

1-4-1300-2310 - TREAS - BANK CHARGES

1-4-1300-2320 - TREAS - PROPERTY ASSESSMENT

Total TREASURY:

RESERVE TRANSFERS

1-4-1400-9001 - RESERVE - TRANSFER-ASSET MNGMT RESERVE

1-4-1400-9003 - RESERVE - TRANSFER-COM ENHANCEMENT RE:

1-4-1400-9004 - RESERVE - TRANSFER-ELECTIONS RESERVE

1-4-1400-9006 - RESERVE - TRANSFER-LANDFILL CLOSURE RES

1-4-1400-9007 - RESERVE - TRANSFER-LANDFILL REHABILITATI
Total RESERVE TRANSFERS:

ASSET MANAGEMENT
1-4-1500-1010 - ASSET - WAGES AND BENEFITS
1-4-1500-2010 - ASSET - MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES

Total ASSET MANAGEMENT:

FIRE DEPARTMENT

1-4-2000-1010 - FD - WAGES & BENEFITS

1-4-2000-1310 - FD - CONFERENCES/TRAINING/MEMBERSHIPS
1-4-2000-1320 - FD - MEMBERSHIPS

1-4-2000-1410 - FD - VOLUNTEER TRAINING EXPENSES
1-4-2000-1500 - FD - REGIONAL TRAINING - CONTRACT
1-4-2000-2010 - FD - MATERIALS & SUPPLIES/LICENCES/MEDIC
1-4-2000-2012 - FD- PREVENTION MATERIALS

Municipality of Magnetawan
Budgetary Control

For the Period 2024-01-01 - 2024-03-31

Committed

Current

347.43
336.42

564.77
45,887.90
21,854.27

389.64

540.89

22,784.80

1,3565.55

1,355.55

16,194.60

1,574.64

601.10
4,170.41

1,292.37

¥iuir to Date

1.256.74
980.70
550.42

356.16
C.424.44

1°5.952.14

765548
512.87
f.780.29
5.681.71
213.10
£,543.04

1.386.49

1.354.68

1.354.68

38,781.69
319.23
10.69
923.13

4. 170.41
864.26
29237

Page 89 of 329

Page

Budget

6,000.00
7,000.00
5,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
500.06
71,000.00
618,181.00

250,000.00
5,000.00
17,000.00
16,600.00
4,000.00
94,172.00
386,772.00

225,000.00
25,296.00
8,000.00
20,000.00
50,000.00
328,296.00

25,000.00
2,500.00
27,500.00

230,000.00
8,000.00

7,000.00
17,500.00
7,000.00
10,000.00



Report Date
2024-04-04 8:21 AM

Account # / Description

1-4-2000-2018 - FD - PPE & FIRE SUPPLIES
1-4-2000-2029 - FD - HYDRO - 226 15TH & 16TH SIDERD N
1-4-2000-2053 - FD - COMMUNICATIONS TOWER
1-4-2000-2054 - FD - RADIO MAINTENANCE & LICENSING
1-4-2000-2056 - FD - RADIO UPGRADES
1-4-2000-2058 - FD - DISPATCH
1-4-2000-2120 - FD - OFFICE
1-4-2000-7130 - FD - EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
1-4-2000-7132 - FD - EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT
1-4-2000-7134 - FD - EQUIPMENT TESTING
1-4-2000-7230 - FD - MNR FIRE PROTECTION
1-4-2000-8000 - FD - CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Total FIRE DEPARTMENT:

FIRE MAG STATION

1-4-2005-2024 - MAG STATION - HEATING FUEL

1-4-2005-2030 - MAG STATION - HYDRO

1-4-2005-7140 - MAG STATION - MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS
Total FIRE MAG STATION:

FIRE AHMIC STATION

1-4-2006-2024 - AHMIC STATION - HEATING FUEL

1-4-2006-2030 - AHMIC STATION - HYDRO

1-4-2006-7140 - AHMIC STATION - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
Total FIRE AHMIC STATION:

ATV & MOBILE EQUIPMENT

1-4-2009-2070 - ATV & MOBILE EQUIP-REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE

Total ATV & MOBILE EQUIPMENT:

FIRE TRUCK#510 - 2012 DODGE RAM 2500
1-4-2010-2070 - TR510 - REPAIRS AND TESTING
Total FIRE TRUCK#510 - 2012 DODGE RAM 2500:

FIRE TRUCK #514 - 2021 FREIGHTLINER TANK
1-4-2014-2070 - TR514 - REPAIRS AND TESTING
Total FIRE TRUCK #514 - 2021 FREIGHTLINER TANK:

FIRE TRUCK #517 - 2013 CHEV EXPRESS VAN

Municipality of Magnetawan
Budgetary Control
For the Period 2024-01-01 - 2024-03-31

Committed Current

1,046.45
62.90
208.61
208.61

14.24

25,373.93

604.68
145.65
244,22
994 .55

186.45
58.51
244 96

382.53
382.53

356.16
356.16

920.93
920.93

Year to Date

2,007 .47
94.16
417.22
1.776.17

44,76
348.54
69.23

54,119.33

1,150.25
273.23
580.00

2,003.48

186.45
143.27
193.33
523.05

418.14
418.14

3,003.65
3,003.65

920.93
920.03

Page 90 of 329

Page 6

Budget
10,000.00

3,000.00
3,500.00
10,000.00
2,000.00
4,000.00
8,000.00
15,000.00
2,300.00
10,000.00
70,000.00
417,300.00

3,000.00
1,500.00
4,000.00
8,500.00

2,000.00
1,500.00
4,000.00
7,500.00

1,500.00
1,500.00

4,000.00
4,000.00

2,000.00
2,000.00



Report Date
2024-04-04 8:21 AM

Account # / Description

1-4-2017-2070 - TR517 - REPAIRS AND TESTING
1-4-2018-2070 - TR520 REPAIRS & TESTING

Total FIRE TRUCK #517 - 2013 CHEV EXPRESS VAN:

FIRE TRUCK #521 - 2004 FREIGHTLINER PUMP
1-4-2021-2070 - TR521 - REPAIRS AND TESTING

Total FIRE TRUCK #521 - 2004 FREIGHTLINER PUMP:

FIRE TRUCK #531 - 2019 PUMPER TRUCK
1-4-2031-2070 - TR531 - REPAIRS AND TESTING

Total FIRE TRUCK #531 - 2019 PUMPER TRUCK:

BUILDING DEPARTMENT

1-4-2100-1010 - CBO - WAGES AND BENEFITS
1-4-2100-1320 - CBO - MEMBERSHIPS
1-4-2100-1410 - CBO - TRAINING
1-4-2100-2010 - CBO - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES
1-4-2100-2030 - CBO - MILEAGE

1-4-2100-2210 - CBO - LEGAL FEES

Total BUILDING DEPARTMENT:

BUILDING- VEHICLE
1-4-2110-2045 - CBO VEHICLE - GPS MONITORING AND DATA
1-4-2110-2070 - CBO VEHICLE - REPAIRS & MAINT/LICENCE

Total BUILDING- VEHICLE:

BYLAW ENFORCEMENT

1-4-2200-1010 - BLEO - WAGES AND BENEFITS
1-4-2200-1410 - BLEO - TRAINING ‘
1-4-2200-2010 - BLEO - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES

1-4-2200-20116 - BLEQ - ANIMAL CONTROL EXPENSES
1-4-2200-2025 - BLEO - MILEAGE

1-4-2200-2210 - BLEO - LEGAL FEES

Total BYLAW ENFORCEMENT:

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

1-4-2300-1010 - ED - WAGES AND BENEFITS
1-4-2300-2010 - ED - MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
1-4-2300-2350 - ED - SIGNAGE

Municipalily of Magnetawan
Budgetary Control

For the Period 2024-01-01 - 2024-03-31

Committed Current

800.85
800.85

19,304.27

483.84

19,788.11

35.62

35.62

4,261.72

632.47

4,894.19

2,416.92

Yoarto Date

18.31

18.31

800.85
800.85

,649.04
188.00
9561.87
458.86

43247 7T

106.50

106.86

261.72

632.47

1894 19

391.58

Page 91 of 329

Budget

2,000.00
1,000.00
3,000.00

4,000.00
4,000.00

3,000.00
3,000.00

218,000.00
1,400.00
4,000.00
3,000.00
1,000.00

25,000.00

252,400.00

500.00
2,500.00
3,000.00

40,000.00
1,000.00
3,000.00
1,000.00
6,000.00
5,000.00

56,000.00

20,000.00
4,000.00
7,000.00



Report Date
2024-04-04 8:21 AM

Account # / Description

Total ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT:

COMMUNITY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT
1-4-2400-1010 - CEMC - WAGES AND BENEFITS
1-4-2400-1410 - CEMC - TRAINING
1-4-2400-2010 - CEMC - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES

Total COMMUNITY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT:

PROTECTION TO PERSONS & PROPERTY
1-4-2500-2010 - PROTECT - POLICING COSTS
1-4-2500-2030 - PROTECT - 911

Total PROTECTION TO PERSONS & PROPERTY:

RECREATION

1-4-2600-1010 - REC - WAGES AND BENEFITS
1-4-2600-2010 - REC - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES
1-4-2600-2015 - REC - EVENTS

1-4-2600-2300 - REC - ADVERTISING
1-4-2600-2400 - REC - PROGRAMMING
1-4-2600-8000 - REC - CAPITAL

Total RECREATION:

BRIDGES & CULVERTS

1-4-3011-2010 - A - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES
1-4-3011-3020 - A - RENTED EQUIPMENT-OTHER
1-4-3011-3040 - A - CULVERT/BRIDGE-ENGINEERING
1-4-3011-4010 - A - CONTRACTS

1-4-3011-8000 - A - CULVERT/BRIDGES- CAPITAL

Total BRIDGES & CULVERTS:

GRASS MOWING
1-4-3021-4010 - B1 - CONTRACTS

Total GRASS MOWING:

BRUSHING/TREE TRIMMING
1-4-3022-3015 - B2 - RENTAL OF CHIPPER
1-4-3022-8000 - BRUSHING/TREE TRIMMING/CAPITAL

Total BRUSHING/TREE TRIMMING:

Municipality of Magnetawan
Budgetary Control
For the Period 2024-01-01 - 2024-03-31

Current
2,416.92

Committed

100.74
100.74

38,751.00

38,751.00

5,131.97
116.59
1,895.84
13.17
2,247.76
9,320.54
18,725.87

503.71
503.71

Year to Date
5,391.58

169.66
169.66

39,422.52

39,422 .52

10,503.21
309.79
3,554.57
13.17
3,087.38
9,320.54
26,788.66

154,186.79
154,196.79

Page 92 of 329

Page

Budget
31,000.00

3,000.00
8,000.00
2,000.00
13,000.00

470,184.00
1,000.00
471,184.00

54,000.00
10,000.00
68,500.00
500.00
32,960.00
21,000.00
186,960.00

70,000.00
10,000.00
2,000.00
70,000.00
676,000.00
828,000.00

11,000.00
11,000.00

10,000.00
82,000.00
92,000.00



Report Date
2024-04-04 8:21 AM

Account # / Description

DITCHING
1-4-3023-3015 - B3 - RENTED EQUIPMENT-EXCAVATOR
1-4-3023-8000 - DITCHING CAPITAL

Total DITCHING:

COLD MIX PATCHING
1-4-3031-2010 - C1 - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES

Total COLD MIX PATCHING:

SWEEPING/CRACK SEALING
1-4-3032-4010 - C2 - CONTRACTS

Total SWEEPING/CRACK SEALING:

ROAD CONSTRUCTION/ROAD REPAIR
1-4-3034-8000 - C4 - CAPITAL PROJECTS

Total ROAD CONSTRUCTION/ROAD REPAIR:

CATCHBASIN VACUUMING
1-4-3035-4010 - C5 - CONTRACTS

Total CATCHBASIN VACUUMING:

DRAINAGE
1-4-3036-4010 - C6 - CONTRACTS

Total DRAINAGE:

GRAVEL PATCHING/WASHOUTS
1-4-3041-2010 - D1 - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES
1-4-3041-4010 - D1 - CONTRACTS

Total GRAVEL PATCHING/WASHOUTS:

GRADING
1-4-3042-4010 - D2 - CONTRACTS

Total GRADING:

DUST CONTROL
1-4-3043-2010 - D3 - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES
1-4-3043-4010 - D3 - CONTRACTS

Total DUST CONTROL:

Municipality of Magnetawan

Budgetary Control

For the Period 2024-01-01 - 2024-03-31

Committed

Current

Y

ir lo Dalo

Page 93 of 329

Page 9

Budget

10,000.00
380,000.00
390,000.00

34,000.00
34,000.00

70,400.00
70,400.00

380,000.00
380,000.00

1,500.00
1,500.00

3,800.00
3,800.00

60,000.00
8,200.00
68,200.00

40,000.00
40,000.00

100,000.00
50,000.00
150,000.00



Report Date
2024-04-04 8:21 AM

Account # / Description

GRAVEL
1-4-3045-2010 - D5 - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES
1-4-3045-3015 - D5 - EQUIPMENT RENTAL-OTHER
1-4-3045-4010 - D5 - CONTRACTS
Totai GRAVEL:

SNOW PLOWING
1-4-3051-1010 - E1 - WAGES AND BENEFITS
1-4-3051-2010 - E1 - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES
Total SNOW PLOWING:

SANDING/SALTING
1-4-3052-1010 - E2Z - WAGES AND BENEFITS
1-4-3052-2010 - E2 - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES
1-4-3052-4010 - E2 - CONTRACTS
Total SANDING/SALTING:

CULVERT THAWING
1-4-3053-1010 - E3 - WAGES AND BENEFITS
1-4-3053-2010 - E3 - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES
Total CULVERT THAWING:

STANDBY
1-4-3054-1010 - E4 - WAGES AND BENEF{TS

Total STANDBY:

ROAD PATROL
1-4-3072-1010 - RP - WAGES AND BENEFITS

Total ROAD PATROL:

OVERHEAD

1-4-3101-1010 - J - WAGES AND BENEFITS

1-4-3101-1310 - J - CONFERENCES/LICENCING/MEMBERSHIPS
1-4-3101-2010 - J - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES

1-4-3101-2020 - J - SAFETY SUPPLIES

1-4-3101-2021 - J - PREMIUM GASOLINE INVENTORY CLEARING
1-4-3101-2022 - J - CLEAR DIESEL INVENTORY CLEARING
1-4-3101-2023 - J - DYED DIESEL INVENTORY CLEARING
1-4-3101-2024 - J - HEATING

Municipality of Magnetawan
Budgetary Control

For the Period 2024-01-01 - 2024-03-31

Committed

Current

10,523.97

10,523.97

2,890.08
6,886.50
4,591.00
14,367.58

1,498.56
1,498.56

4,135.86
4,135.86

34,472.71

466.01
957.45
63.13
3,777.68
8,411.94
1,466.14
2,298.02

Page 10
Year to Date Budget

290,000.00
20,000.00
123,000.00
433,000.00
33.201.37 60,000.00
2.412.26 25,000.00
35,613.63 85,000.00
13,953.16 30,000.00
6,886.50 58,000.00
4,591.00 40,600.00
25,430.66 128,000.00
9,000.00
500.00
9,500.00
3,564.34 7.000.00
3.564.34 7,000.00
7.842.08 7,000.00
7.842.08 7.000.00
64,388.14 410,000.00
5,239.53 15,000.00
1,468.90 11,200.00
1,340.96 14,000.00
5.346.40 40,000.00
21,268.72 90,000.00
6.063.81 80,000.00
5,883.30 22.,000.00

Page 94 of 329



Municipality of Magnetawan

Report Date Budgetary Control
2024-04-04 8:21 AM For the Period 2024-01-01 - 2024-03-71 Page 11
Account # / Description Committed Current Yiar to Date Budget
1-4-3101-2029 - J - Hydro - 226 15th & 16th Side Rd N 500.00
1-4-3101-2030 - J - HYDRO 495.27 1.000.86 5,800.00
1-4-3101-2045 - J - GPS MONITORING AND DATA 487.43 1.462.29 8,500.00
1-4-3101-2053 - J - COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT AND TOWER 208.61 518.93 3,500.00
1-4-3101-2054 - J - RADIO LICENSE (BASE) 208.61 208.61 500.00
1-4-3101-2070 - 226 15/16 SIDE RD - OVERHEAD 609.63 £09.62 1.000.00
1-4-3101-2080 - J - SMALL TOOLS AND SUPPLIES 367.97 7,000.00
1-4-3101-2090 - J - LOAN INTEREST EXPENSE- 2016 RDS PROJ 8,854.00
1-4-3101-2110 - J - DUES & SUBCRIPTICONS 10.68
1-4-3101-2120 - J - OFFICE 400.60 687.04 3,500.00
1-4-3101-2150 - J - CONSULTING FEES 25,000.00
1-4-3101-2350 - J - SIGNAGE 178.08 474.58 17,000.00
1-4-3101-2400 - J - BUILDING MAINTENANCE 1,433.61 2.038.17 33,000.00
1-4-3101-3050 - J - LINE PAINTING 9,200.00
1-4-3101-4010 - J - CONTRACTS 5,000.00
1-4-3101-4020 - J - INSURANCE 43,021.00
1-4-3101-8000 - J - CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 7.693.60 96,000.00
Total OVERHEAD: 55,934.92 147 072,12 949,575.00

GRADER - 2012 JOHN DEERE
1-4-3211-2070 - GR - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 20,000.00

Total GRADER - 2012 JOHN DEERE: 20,000.00

COMPACTOR - 2003 CATERPILLAR

1-4-3213-2070 - COM - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 64.06 64.06 3,000.00
1-4-3213-2072 - COM - FLOATING COSTS 4,200.00
Total COMPACTOR - 2003 CATERPILLAR: 64.06 64.06 7,200.00

DOZER - CASE 850K
1-4-3214-2070 - DOZ - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 64.06 64.00 2,000.00

Total DOZER - CASE 850K: 64.06 54.06 2,060.00

BACK HOE #3 - 2005 CASE 580 4WD
1-4-3216-2070 - BH3 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 970.76 1,000.00

Total BACK HOE #3 - 2005 CASE 580 4WD: 970.76 1,000.00

BACK HOE #4 - 2012 JOHN DEERE 410J
1-4-3217-2070 - BH4 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 754.56 207.98 10,000.00
Total BACK HOE #4 - 2012 JOHN DEERE 410J: 754.56 207.98 10,000.00

Page 95 of 329



Report Date
2024-04-04 8:21 AM

Account # / Description

BACK HOE #5 - 2014 CASE 590
1-4-3218-2070 - BHS - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
1-4-3218-8000 - BH5 - CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Total BACK HOE #5 - 2014 CASE 590:

WHEEL LOADER - 2016 CASE
1-4-3219-2070 - LOADER - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
1-4-3212-8000 - LOADER - CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Total WHEEL LOADER - 2016 CASE:

TRUCK #20 - 2017 CHEVROLET SILVERADO 150
1-4-3220-2070 - TR20 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE/LICENCES

Total TRUCK #20 - 2017 CHEVROLET SILVERADO 150:

TRUCK #22 - 2016 FREIGHTLINER TANDEM
1-4-3222-2070 - TR22 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE/LICENCES

Total TRUCK #22 - 2016 FREIGHTLINER TANDEM:

TRUCK #23 - 2022 DODGE RAM 2500 CREW CAB
1-4-3223-2070 - TR23 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE/LICENCES

Total TRUCK #23 - 2022 DODGE RAM 2500 CREW CAB:

TRUCK #26 - 2022 FREIGHTLINER TANDEM
1-4-3226-2070 - TR26 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE/LICENCES

Total TRUCK #26 - 2022 FREIGHTLINER TANDEM:

TRUCK #27 - 2014 FREIGHTLINER TANDEM
1-4-3227-2070 - TR27 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE/LICENCES

Total TRUCK #27 - 2014 FREIGHTLINER TANDEM:

TRUCK #28 - 2018 WESTERN STAR
1-4-3228-2070 - TR28 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE/LICENCES

Total TRUCK #28 - 2018 WESTERN STAR:

TRUCK #29 - 2019 WESTERN STAR
1-4-3229-2070 - TR29 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE/LICENCES

Total TRUCK #29 - 2019 WESTERN STAR:

Municipality of Magnetawan
Budgetary Control

For the Period 2024-01-01 - 2024-03-31

Committed

Current

407.04
407.04

201,994.00
201,994.Cc0

983.25
983.25

294.59
294.59

1,501.48
1,501.48

3,005.62
3,005.62

2,579.91
2,579.91

Year to Date

407.04
407.04

201,994.00
201,994.00

121.09
121.09

5,264.99
5,264.99

961.57
961.57

3,332.77
3,332.77

3.836.39
3,836.39

3.105.67
3,105.67

Page 96 of 329

Page 12
Budget
7,000.00

198,000.00
205,000.00

5,200.00

5,200.00

2,320.00
2,320.00

12,760.00
12,760.00

1,000.00
1,000.00

8,760.00
8,760.00

17,760.00
17,760.00

15,760.00
15,760.00

9,760.00
9,760.00



Municipality of Magnetawan

Report Date Budgetary Control
2024-04-04 8:21 AM For the Period 2024-01-01 - 2024-03-31 Page 13
Account # / Description Committed Currenl Year to Date Budget
TRUCK #30 - 2022 DODGE 1500 4X4 TRUCK
1-4-3230-2070 - TR30 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 2,000.00
Total TRUCK #30 - 2022 DODGE 1500 4X4 TRUCK: 2,000.00

TRUCK #31 DODGE RAM 1500

1-4-3231-2070 - TR 31-2023 REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE 297.64 2,000.00
Total TRUCK #31 DODGE RAM 1500: 297.64 2,000.00

BROOM
1-4-3236-2070 - BROOM - REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 646.18 646.18 9,000.00
Total BROOM: 646.18 346.18 9,000.00

FLOAT

1-4-3240-2070 - FL - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 5,000.00
Total FLOAT: 5,000.00

PARKING LOT

1-4-3700-2010 - PARKING - MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES 500.00
Total PARKING LOT: 500.00

STREETLIGHTS
1-4-3800-5012 - STREET - MAGNETAWAN STREET LIGHTS 1,007.14 ' 031.74 20,000.00
1-4-3800-5014 - STREET - AHMIC HARBOUR STREET LIGHT 102.25 1,000.00
1-4-3800-5016 - STREET - ROCKWYNN LANDING LIGHT 31.09 97.84 500.00
Total STREETLIGHTS: 1,038.23 £231.83 21,500.00

GARBAGE COLLECTION

1-4-4010-4010 - GARBAGE - CONTRACTS 4,036.29 4.036.29 23,918.00
Total GARBAGE COLLECTION: 4,036.29 1.036.29 23,918.00
LANDFILL
1-4-4020-1010 - LF - WAGES AND BENEFITS 15,048.60 1:.082.91 164,000.00
1-4-4020-1410 - LF - TRAINING 500.00
1-4-4020-2010 - LF - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES 112.24 446.67 15,000.00
1-4-4020-2020 - LF - LATRINE RENTALS/CLEANING 152.64 305.28 2,200.00
1-4-4020-2024 - LF - PROPANE HEAT 382.99 720.21 2,300.00
1-4-4020-2080 - LF - SMALL TOOLS 11.18 436.95 200.00
1-4-4020-2120 - LF - OFFICE 157.63 270.43 3,100.00
1-4-4020-2400 - LF - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 2,000.00

Page 97 of 329



Report Date
2024-04-04 8:21 AM

Account # / Description

1-4-4020-2420 - LF - LANDFILL SURVEILLANCE
1-4-4020-3040 - LF - ENGINEERING FEES
1-4-4020-4020 - LF - INSURANCE
1-4-4020-4022 - LF - RUBBISH/MISC ITEM DISPQOSAL BIN
1-4-4020-5020 - LF - MONITORING WELL COSTS-CROFT
1-4-4020-5025 - LF - MONITORING WELL COSTS-CHAPMAN
1-4-4020-8000 - LF - CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Total LANDFILL:

RECYCLING
1-4-4030-1010 - RECY - WAGES AND BENEFITS
1-4-4030-1410 - RECY - TRAINING
1-4-4030-2010 - RECY - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES/COMPOSTING
1-4-4030-2015 - RECY - LATRINE RENTALS/CLEANING
1-4-4030-2024 - RECY - PROPANE HEAT
1-4-4030-2080 - RECY - SMALL TOOLS
1-4-4030-2120 - RECY - OFFICE
1-4-4030-2400 - RECY - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
1-4-4030-2420 - RECY - LANDFILL SURVEILLANCE
1-4-4030-4012 - RECY - RECYCLING CURBSIDE
1-4-4030-4014 - RECY - RECYCLING DEPOT
1-4-4030-4018 - RECY - HOUSEHOLD HAZARDQUS WASTE DEPO
1-4-4030-4020 - RECY - INSURANCE
1-4-4030-8000 - RECY - CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Total RECYCLING:

WATER SYSTEMS
1-4-4300-1010 - W-SYS - WAGES AND BENEFITS
1-4-4300-2010 - W-SYS - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES

Total WATER SYSTEMS:

CEMETERY
1-4-5010-1010 - CEM - WAGES AND BENEFITS
1-4-5010-2010 - CEM - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES
1-4-5010-2400 - CEM - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
1-4-5010-4020 - CEM - INSURANCE
1-4-5010-8000 - CEM - CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Total CEMETERY:

Municipality of Magnetawan
Budgetary Control
For the Period 2024-01-01 - 2024-03-31

Current
102.15

Committed

8,801.51
3,505.64
3,894.36

32,168.94

9,758.81

98.74
152.64
342.33

11.18

51.89

59.88

4,735.26
9,067.80

24,278.53

511.12
247.34
758.46

604.21

900.54
1,504.75

Year to Date
542.47

8,801.51
3.505.64
3,894.36

55.006.43

22,440.88

158.25
305.28
627.05
11.18
71.17

179.64
4,735.26
9.067.80

37,596.51

1,370.55
1,757.07
3,127.62

888.16
214.15

900.54
2,002.85

Page 98 of 329

Budget

550.00
10,000.00
5,145.00
94,000.00
16,000.00
18,000.00
585,000.00
917,995.00

99,000.00
500.00
3,000.00
2,200.00
2,500.00
100.00
3,500.00
2,000.00
500.00
29,500.00
70,000.00
15,000.00
5,145.00
173,500.00
406,445.00

5,171.00
6,500.00
11,671.00

25,000.00
4,000.00
8,000.00

878.00

66,400.00

104,278.00



Report Date
2024-04-04 8:21 AM

Account # / Description

HOMES FOR THE AGED
1-4-6010-2010 - HOME - EASTHOLME

Total HOMES FOR THE AGED:

SOCIAL/FAMILY SERVICES
1-4-6200-2710 - SOCIAL - DSSAB

Total SOCIAL/FAMILY SERVICES:

FRIENDSHIP CLUB

1-4-6250-1010 - FRIENDSHIP CLUB - WAGES AND BENEFITS
1-4-6250-2010 - FRIENDSHIP CLUB-MATERIALS/SUPPLIES
1-4-6250-2024 - FRIENDSHIP CLUB - HEATING FUEL
1-4-6250-2030 - FRIENDSHIP CLUB-HYDRO

1-4-6250-2050 - FRIENDSHIP CLUB - TELEPHONE
1-4-6250-2400 - FRIENDSHIP CLUB-REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
1-4-6250-4020 - FRIENDSHIP CLUB - INSURANCE

Total FRIENDSHIP CLUB:

PROPERTY - HWY 520
1-4-6350-4030 - PROPERTY - PLANNING
1-4-6350-8000 - PROPERTY - CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Total PROPERTY - HWY 520:

HEALTH SERVICES
1-4-6400-2010 - HEALTH - HEALTH UNIT
1-4-6400-2020 - HEALTH - LAND AMBULANCE
Total HEALTH SERVICES:

WHARFS

1-4-7100-2020 - WHARFS - DOCKS-ROCKWYNN LANDING
1-4-7100-2400 - WHARFS - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
1-4-7100-8000 - WHARFS - CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Total WHARFS:

PARKS

1-4-7200-1010 - PARKS - WAGES AND BENEFITS
1-4-7200-1410 - PARKS - TRAINING
1-4-7200-2010 - PARKS - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES
1-4-7200-2012 - PARKS - FLOWERS

Municipality of Magnetawan
Budgetary Control
For the Period 2024-01-01 - 2024-03- 11

Committed Current N io Date
65,194.75 (i 19475
65,194.75 115,194.75

20897

205.48

190.65 360.42
127.01% 190.52
317.66 3655359
7,898.00 1.847.00
7,898.00 847.00
2520317 486.56
630.00

540.10 692.95

Page 99 of 329

Budget

259,357.00
258,357.00

326,001.00
326,001.00

2,000.00
1,500.00
3,500.00
2,500.00
900.00
3,000.00
4,500.00
17,900.00

10,000.00
100,000.00
110,000.00

47,388.00
249,287.00
296,675.00

800.00
4,000.565
125,000.00
129,800.00

253,541.00
2,000.00
10,500.00
3,000.00

Page 15



Report Date
2024-04-04 8:21 AM

Account # / Description

1-4-7200-2020 - PARKS - SAFETY & HEALTH
1-4-7200-2022 - PARKS - EQUIPMENT FUEL
1-4-7200-2024 - PARKS - HEATING

1-4-7200-2030 - PARKS - HYDRO

1-4-7200-2045 - PARKS - GPS MONITORING AND DATA
1-4-7200-2400 - PARKS - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
1-4-7200-3030 - PARKS - GENERATOR EXPENSES
1-4-7200-4020 - PARKS - INSURANCE

Total PARKS:

PARKS OVERHEAD
1-4-7205-2030 - P - HYDRO

Total PARKS OVERHEAD:

PARKS TRUCK #10 - 2010 DODGE 1500
1-4-7210-2070 - TR10 - REPAIRS

Total PARKS TRUCK #10 - 2010 DODGE 1500:

PARKS TRACTOR #2 - JOHN DEERE 2720
1-4-7213-2070 - TRACTOR 2 - REPAIRS
1-4-7213-2075 - TRACTOR 2 - SNOWBLOWER REPAIRS

Total PARKS TRACTOR #2 - JOHN DEERE 2720:

PARKS TRACTOR #3 - KUBOTA 2610
1-4-7214-2070 - TRACTOR 3 - REPAIRS

Total PARKS TRACTOR #3 - KUBOTA 2610:

PARKS TRUCK #12- 2018 DODGE 5500
1-4-7218-2070 - TR12 - REPAIRS

Total PARKS TRUCK #12- 2018 DODGE 5500:

PARKS TRUCK #13 - 2020 GMC SIERRA 1500
1-4-7219-2070 - TR13 - REPAIRS
1-4-7221-2070 - TR #21 - REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE

Total PARKS TRUCK #13 - 2020 GMC SIERRA 1500:

PARKS TRAILERS
1-4-7225-2070 - PARKS TRAILERS - REPAIRS

Total PARKS TRAILERS:

Municipality of Magnetawan
Budgetary Control
For the Period 2024-01-01 - 2024-03-31

Committed Current
300.47
1,249.41
423.31

106.85
559.68

28,382.99

26.52
26.52

86.50
86.50

73.58

73.58

Year to Date

300.48
786.07
1,782.67
833.89
320.55
31.437.98

69,271.15

57.78
57.78

155.16
155.16

542.34
542.34

850.79

850.79

Page 100 of 329

Page 16

Budget
2,500.00

9,000.00
5,000.00
1,500.00
11,000.00
300.00
18,670.00
317,011.00

2,500.00
2.500.00

2,500.00
500.00
3,000.00

3,000.00
3,000.00

3,500.00
3,500.00

3.000.00
5,000.00
8,000.00

500.00
500.00



Report Date
2024-04-04 8:21 AM

Account # / Description

COMMUNITY CENTRE AND PAVILION
1-4-7300-1010 - HALL - WAGES AND BENEFITS
1-4-7300-2010 - HALL - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES
1-4-7300-2024 - HALL - HEATING FUEL
1-4-7300-2030 - HALL - HYDRO/STOVE PROPANE
1-4-7300-2400 - HALL - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
1-4-7300-3020 - HALL - ZAMBONI EXPENSES
1-4-7300-3030 - HALL - GENERATOR EXPENSES
1-4-7300-4020 - HALL - INSURANCE

1-4-7300-8000 - HALL - CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Total COMMUNITY CENTRE AND PAVILION:

LIBRARY
1-4-7400-5012 - LIBRARY

Total LIBRARY:

LOCKS

1-4-7500-1010 - LOCKS - WAGES AND BENEFITS
1-4-7500-2010 - LOCKS - MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES
1-4-7500-2400 - LOCKS - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE

Total LOCKS:

HERITAGE CENTRE
1-4-7600-1010 - HERITAGE - WAGES AND BENEFITS
1-4-7600-2010 - HERITAGE - REPAIRS AND SUPPLIES
1-4-7600-2030 - HERITAGE - HYDRO
1-4-7600-4020 - HERITAGE - INSURANCE

Total HERITAGE CENTRE:

AHMIC COMMUNITY CENTRE
1-4-7700-1010 - AHMIC - WAGES AND BENEFITS
1-4-7700-2010 - AHMIC - MATERIALS/SUPPLIES
1-4-7700-2024 - AHMIC - HEATING FUEL
1-4-7700-2030 - AHMIC - HYDRO
1-4-7700-2400 - AHMIC - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
1-4-7700-4020 - AHMIC - INSURANCE
1-4-7700-8000 - AHMIC - CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Total AHMIC COMMUNITY CENTRE:

Municipality of Magnetawan
Budgetary Control
For the Period 2024-01-01 - 2024-03-51

Committed Current ¥i

10,022.41
254.81
2,240.02
1,264.80
897.93

14,679.97

224.76
75.78

300.54

366.45
114.23
90.00

570.68

i o Dote

£5.264.94

545.89

5.966.51

460.56

4,705.37

i, 943,27

224.76
146.63

371.39

570.58
280.16
200.69

051,45

Page 101 of 329

Budget

76,909.00
9,000.00
18,000.00
15,000.00
20,000.00
500.00
3,500.00
15,616.00
43,000.00
201,525.00

82,072.00
82,072.00

28,800.00
2,000.00
2,000.00

32,800.00

29,000.00
1,500.00
1,275.00
1,953.00

33,728.00

2,005.00
1,500.00
3,000.00
1,500.00
2,000.00
2,081.00
15,500.00
27.,596.00

Page 17



Municipality of Magnetawan

Report Date Budgetary Control
2024-04-04 8:21 AM For the Period 2024-01-01 - 2024-03-31 Page 18
Account # / Description Committed Current Year to Date Budget
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
1-4-8010-1010 - PLN - WAGES AND BENEFITS 7,983.42 16,494.17 55,000.00
1-4-8010-2210 - PLN - LEGAL / ONLAND 4,911.43 4.941.97 30,000.00
1-4-8010-5012 - PLN - OFFICIAL PLAN/ZONING BYLAW/2ND DWE 419.76 419.76 31,000.00
1-4-8010-5014 - PLN - GENERAL 4,500.00
Total PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT: 13,314.61 21,855.90 120,500.00
SHORT TERM ACCOMODATIONS
1-4-8015-1010 - SHORT TERM ACCOM - WAGES & BENEFITS 20,000.00
1-4-8015-2210 - SHORT TERM ACCOM - LEGAL 5,000.00
1-4-8015-4010 - SHORT TERM ACCOM - CONTRALCTS 15,000.00
Total SHORT TERM ACCOMODATIONS: 40,000.00
TO BE RECOVERED
1-4-8400-8020 - 2B RECOV-{I/S) DEBT- ROADS 130,000.00
Total TO BE RECOVERED: 130,000.00
Expense Totals: 694,350.71 1,379,579.59 10,619,510.00
Net Surplus (Deficit): 2,723,463.81 2.477.671.47

Accounts Printed: 338

Page 102 of 329



Municipality of
Magnetawan
RESOLUTION NO. 2024 - APRIL, 10, 2024

Moved by:
Seconded by:

WHEREAS the Municipality of Magnetawan has received a request to support an application for consent to create
an easement located off Nelson Lake Road which is @ Municipally maintained road, Magnetawan (Mcliroy) 4944
040 0060270000). The property is legally described as Part Lots 69 and 70, Con 8 Township of Spence hereinafter
referred to as “the Lands”;

WHEREAS the Municipal planning consultant has provided a report in support of the application with conditions;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan supports in principle the
consent application for the Lands, which is valid only for a period of six (6) months; subject to the following
conditions:

* That the foregoing conditions be fulfilled within two years tm?e of decision of the Planning Board;
to

+ Draft Reference Plan to be approved by the Municipality pr ragigeration;

« Two (2) true certified paper copies of the registered pla amglectronic version for the proposed severed
parcel delineating the road right of way be prepared rio Land Surveyor with a certification that it is a
true copy be provided to the Municipality for reviewgfnd oval which conforms substantially with the

application as submitted;
« Draft copy of the deeds (with all schedule
e A copy of the original executed transfer (deed

gproved by the Municipality prior to registration;
all schedules be provided to the Municipality;

* Payment of all taxes, municipal legal fees, planning fees and fees as per the current Fees and Charges By-law,
Park Land Dedication By-law and all other fees associated with the processing of this application;

* That the Applicant receive confirmation of a suitable entrance from the Municipality of Magnetawan.

* Confirmation from the North Bay Mattawa Conservation Authority (NBMCA) that the proposed Beneficiary Lot
can be adequately serviced by individual on-site septic systems;

Carried Defeated Deferred Sam Dunnett, Mayor
[Meémber of Council Yea Nay Absent
Bishop, Bill
Hetherington, John
Hind, Jon

Kneller, Brad

Mayor: Dunnett, Sam

Page 103 of 329



311 George 5t. N. Suite 200
Peterborough, ON K9J) 3H3

T 705.876.8340 | F 705.742.8343

ot
ECOVUE

consufling services inc.

e ——— www.ecovueconsulting.com

Planning Report

To:  Mayor and Council, Municipality of Magnetawan

Kent Randall & Chris Conti {EcoVue Consulting),
From: . .
Township Planning Consultants

Subject: Application for Consent {Mcllroy)

Property Part of Lots 69 and 70, Concession B, Geographic Township of Spence, Municipality of
Location: Magnetawan
Nelson Lake Road

EcoVue 412503

File No.:
Date: March 21, 2024

1.0 Recommendation

We recommend that Council receive the report dated March 21, 2024 from EcoVue Consulting Services
regarding consent application - Mcllroy, that Council approve the application, and that provisional consent
be given subject to the following conditions:

1. That prior to registration, the Applicants shall complete a plan of survey of the proposed severed
parcel delineating the road right of way acceptable to the Municipality of Magnetawan
(Municipality}).

2. That the Applicants provide a draft copy of the of the deed (with all schedules) to be approved by
the Municipality prior to registration.

3. That all taxes, municipal, legal, and planning fees associated with the processing of this
application including fees under By-law 2011-11, 2011-16 and current Municipal Fees & Charges
By-law be paid;

4. That the Applicants satisfy the Municipality and obtain the required approvals for any required
improvements to the driveway and an entrance onto Nelson Lake Road.

5. That the Applicants provide confirmation from the Municipality of Magnetawan Roads Foreman
with respect to entrance Municipal fees and disbursements (legal, engineering, planning), if any
incurred by the Municipality with respect to this application. Payment of these subject fees is the
responsibility of the Applicants.

Page 104 of 329



A
Report to Council
E V Application for Consent (Mcllroy)
CO E Municipality of Magnetawan
consulling services Inc, March 21, 2024
=

2.0 The Application

James Mcliroy and Bonnie Eng (Applicants) have applied on behalf of Gregory and Janice Black (owners}
to create an easement over the Black’s property in order to provide driveway access from the Applicants’
property to Nelson Lake Road. According to the application, the driveway already exists and the purpose
of the consent is to legalize the access.

The Applicants’ property is located at Part Lot 70, Concession B, former Township of Spence while the
owner’s property is located at Part Lot 69, Concessions B. The proposed easement will have frontage of
9.14 metres on Nelson Lake Road and a length of approximately 79.38 metres. It will run in a mainly

north/south direction to connect the Applicants’ property to Nelson Lake Road.

The total area of the easement will be approximately 725.53 square metres. The retained parcel will have
an area of approximately 40 hectares. According to the application, both the severed and retained parcels
are currently vacant.

The purpose of the proposed consent is to legalize an existing driveway which provides access from the
Applicants’ property to Nelson Lake Road through the owner’s property. There is no intent to change the
use of any of the parcels.

As such, the proposal is for a technical severance which will not create any new development
opportunities or result in any change in use of the lands.

Nelson Lake Road is a municipal road that is maintained year round.

3.0 Subject Property

The subject property (the land owned by the Blacks and the location of the proposed easement) has an
area of approximately 40 hectares and is located fo the southwest of the intersection of Nipissing Road
and Nelson Lake Road. The northern part of the property is intersected by a portion of Nelson Lake Road
which runs westward and tums south along western boundary of the subject property. Nelson Lake Road
joins Blacks Road to the south of the property boundary.

The Applicants’ property is approximately 20 hectares in size and it is located to the north of the subject
property, to the northeast of the intersection of Nipissing Road and Nelson Lake Road. The proposed
easement is intended to connect the southeast portion of the Applicants’ property with Nelson Lake Road
through the subject property.

Much of both the subject property and the Applicants’ lands are wooded. According to information from
the Applicants, their property is used mainly for recreational purposes.

Page 105 of 329



Report to Council

E C OV E Application for Consent (Mcllroy)
Municipality of Magnetawan

consulling services Inc. March 21,2024

T

The surrounding area is characterized mainly by large properties with extensive wooded areas. Some
scattered residences located close to Nelson Lake Road. Some residences are located along roads and
on the shoreline of the lakes that are scattered throughout the larger area.

According to available information, an abandoned mine site is located to the northeast of the Applicants’
property. The subject property is within the 1 kilometre buffer area of the mine according to Schedule D
to the Magnetawan Official Plan. However, it appears that proximity to the mine will not impact the
proposal.

4.0 Planning Analysis
4.1 The Planning Act

The Planning Act, R.S.0., 1890, c.P 13, (Act), through Section 3 (5) (a), requires all decisions that affect
a planning matter to be consistent with policy statements that are in effect on the date of the decision.
Through this provision, the decision regarding the proposed consent must be consistent with the
Provincial Policy Statement (PPS).

Furthermore, the authority for municipalities to grant consents emanates from Section 53 (1) of the Act
which states:

(1) An owner, chargee or purchaser of land, or such owner’s, chargee’s or purchaser’s agent
duly authorized in writing, may apply for a consent as defined in subsection 50 (1) and the
council or the Minister, as the case may be, may, subject fo this section, give a consent if
satisfied that a plan of subdivision of the land is not necessary for the proper and orderly
development of the municipality. 2021, c. 25, Sched. 24, s. 4 (1).

Consents are required to have regard for matters in Section 51 (24) of the Act through reference in
Section 53 (12). Section 51 (24) states the following:

(24) In considering a draft plan of subdivision, regard shall be had, among other
matters, fo the health, safety, convenience, accessibility for persons with disabilities

and welfare of the present and future inhabitants of the municipality and fo,

(a) the effect of development of the proposed subdivision on matters of
provincial interest as referred to in section 2;

(b) whether the proposed subdivision is premature or in the public interest;

Page 106 of 329



Report to Council

E Application for Consent {Mcliroy)

COV E Municipality of Magnetawan

: consulling serviges inc. March 21, 2024
S

{c) whether the plan conforms to the official plan and adjacent plans of
subdivision, if any;

(d) the suitability of the land for the purposes for which it is to be subdivided;

(d.1) if any affordable housing units are being proposed, the suitability of the
proposed units for affordable housing;

(e} the number, width, location and proposed grades and elevations of
highways, and the adequacy of them, and the highways linking the highways in the
proposed subdivision with the established highway system in the vicinity and the
adequacy of them;

h the dimensions and shapes of the proposed lots;

(g} the restrictions or proposed restrictions, if any, on the land proposed to be
subdivided or the buildings and structures proposed to be erected on it and the

restrictions, if any, on adjoining land;

(h) conservation of natural resources and flood control;
(i the adequacy of utilities and municipal services;

)] the adequacy of school sites;

(k) the area of land, if any, within the proposed subdivision that, exclusive of
highways, is to be conveyed or dedicated for public purposes;

()] the extent to which the plan’s design optimizes the available supply, means
of supplying, efficient use and conservation of energy; and

{m) the interrelationship between the design of the proposed plan of subdivision
and site plan control matters relating to any development on the land, if the land is
also located within a site plan control area designated under subsection 41 (2) of
this Act or subsection 114 (2) of the City of Toronto Act, 2006. 1994, c. 23, s. 30;
2001, ¢. 32, 5. 31 (2); 2006, ¢c. 23, s. 22 (3, 4); 2016, c. 25, Sched. 4, s. 8 (2).

Page 107 of 329



-
Report to Council
Application for Consent (Mcliroy)
ECOV E Municipality of Magnetawan
consulling services inc. March 21. 2024
,,-—w

Through Sections 51 (24) (c) and (g) consents must conform to the applicable Official Plan and Zoning
By-law.

The proposed consent is a technical consent for an easement that will legalize an existing driveway and
will not change the use of the properties or create new development opportunities. The above provisions
of Section 51 (24) must be addressed, but given the nature of the consent, not all are directly relevant
and not all require detailed analysis.

The above-noted requirements of the Act are appropriately addressed through the sections of this report
that follow.

4.2 Provincial Policy Statement (2020)

4.2.1 Managing and Directing Land Use to Achieve Resilient and Efficient Development and
Land Use Patterns

Section 1.1.1 states in part that healthy, livable and safe communities are sustained by promoting efficient
development and land use patterns, accommodating an appropriate range and mix of land uses, including
recreation, parks and open space, and avoiding development and land use patterns which may cause
environmental or public health and safety concerns.

The proposed consent will facilitate existing use of the Applicants’ property and legalize an existing
driveway. It will provide for the continuation of existing permitted uses. Furthermore, the proposal will
ensure that the entrance onto Nelson Lake Road by the Municipality meets all requirements. The proposal
should not cause any environmental, public health or safety concerns and will ensure that if there are any
concerns for the entrance they will be addressed.

4.2.1.1 RURAL LANDS AND AREAS IN MUNICIPALITIES

The provisions in Section 1.1.4 (Rural Areas in Municipalities) and Section 1.1.5 (Rural Lands in
Municipalities) of the PPS are relevant for the proposed consent.

Section 1.1.4.1 refers to building on local character, conserving biodiversity, and considering the
ecological benefits provided by nature. The proposed consent will maintain existing land uses, and is
consistent with local character. it is not expected to negatively affect biodiversity or ecological functions.

Section 1.1.5.2 sets out the permitted uses for rural lands in municipalities which include the management
and use of resources, resource-based recreational uses and locally appropriate residential development.

Page 108 of 329



Report to Council

E C OV E Application for Consent (Mcllroy)
Municipality of Magnetawan

consulling services inc, March 21‘ 2024

S

The application will facilitate the continuation of the recreational use of the property. It does not propose
a change in use and therefore, it will provide to continuation of a permitted use.

4.2.2 Natural Heritage
Section 2.1 of the PPS provides policies for the protection of natural heritage features and functions.

While the subject property and the Applicants’ property contain woodlands, they have not been identified
as a significant feature. In the Magnetawan Official Plan, the subject property is included in an area
identified as a deer wintering yard, stratum 2. The Official Plan includes policies to ensure protection of
deer habitat. These are addressed in more detail later in this report and any requirements as they relate
to the proposal will be met.

However, the proposed consent will create an easement to legalize an existing driveway and is not
expected to require any significant tree removal or alteration to the site. It is not expected to cause any
significant change in the vegetation or characteristics of the site and therefore. is not expected to have a
negative effect on deer habitat or other natural heritage features. Therefore, our opinion is that the
proposed consent is consistent with the policies in Section 2.1.

4.2.3 Minerals and Petroleum

Section 2.4 of the PPS contains policies for Minerals and Petroleum. The subject property is included in
the Magnetawan Official Plan in an area of Aggregate and Mineral Resources.

Section 2.4.2.1 states the following:

2.4.2.1 Mineral mining operations and petroleum resource operations shall be identified and
protected from development and activities that would preciude or hinder their expansion or continued
use or which would be incompatible for reasons of public health, public safety or environmental
impact.

The proposed consent is intended to maintain the existing recreational use of the properties and should
not affect the potential for mineral mining operations on the property.

4.24 Mineral Aggregate Resources

Section 2.5 sets out provisions for the protection of Aggregate Resources. Through Section 2.5.1 they
are to be protected for the long term.

Page 109 of 329



Report to Council
Application for Consent (Mcliroy)

‘
E COVE E Municipality of Magnetawan

consulling services inc. March 21, 2024

/"\/

Since the proposal is only for a technical consent that will not result in significant physicai change to the
property and will not affect the use, the proposal should not affect the protection of aggregate resources.

4.2.5 Human Made Hazards
Section 3.2 of the PPS provides policies for human-made hazards. Section 3.2.1 of the PPS states:

3.2.1 Development on, abutting or adjacent to lands affected by mine hazards; oil, gas and salt
hazards; or former mineral mining operations, mineral aggregate operations or petroleum resource
operations may be permitted only if rehabilitation or other measures to address and mitigate known
or suspected hazards are under way or have been completed.

As noted previously, the Applicant’s property is within the buffer area of an abandoned mine. It is not
clear if there has been rehabilitation of the mine site, but given the nature of this application, it should not
be restricted by this policy because of the proximity of the mine. The proposal is for a technical consent
which will not cause significant physical change or change the use of the subject property or the
Applicant’s property.

Based upon the considerations above, our opinion is that the proposed consent is consistent with the
PPS.

43 Municipality of Magnetawan Official Plan

The subject property and Applicants’ property are designated as Rural Area with an identification of
Aggregate and Mineral Resources in the Municipality of Magnetawan Official Plan {(MMOQP).

4.3.1 Aggregate and Mineral Resources

Section 4.14 of the MMOP provides policies for Aggregate and Mineral Resources. In section 4.14.1 it
states that areas with high aggregate resource and mineral potential are identified on Schedule A. It
further states:

Development of these areas for purposes other than resource extraction will not be permitfed except
where it can be shown that the proposed development has a greater public interest than the extraction
of the resource and will not adversely affect the availability of the resource and fong-term viability of the

aggregate industry in the future.

This section also includes provisions for development in or adjacent o areas of known mineral or
aggregate resources.

Page 110 of 329



‘ Report to Council

E V Application for Consent (Mcllroy)
CO E Municipality of Magnetawan
consulting services ng, March 21, 2024

T ————

However, the proposed consent is not intended to facilitate any development of the Applicants’ property
or the owner’s property. The proposed consent is only for an easement to legalize the use of an existing
driveway. The use of the properties will not change. Therefore, the proposed consent will not offend the
policies in Section 4.14.1 of the MMOP.

4.3.2 Deer Habitat

As noted previously, the properties are also identified as Deer Wintering Yard, stratum 2 in Schedule B
of the MMOP.

Section 4.6 of the MMOP includes policies related to deer habitat. The policies indicate that development
in these area must be sensitive to the impact on deer wintering yards and the removal of vegetation
should be minimized. The policies also state that new lots should avoid areas of dense conifer cover and
be of sufficient size to provide a suitable development area. Further provisions for development in these
areas are also included.

However, the proposed consent is not intended to result in significant change to the properties, No new
development opportunities will result from the proposal. The proposed consent will only create an
easement which will legalize the use of an existing driveway. No significant removal of vegetation is
proposed.

Therefore, given the nature of the proposal, our opinion is that it conforms to the above policies.
4.3.3 Rural Area Designation

The permitted uses for the Rural Area designation are set out in Section 5.2.1 and include forest
management, conservation, parkland, fisheries resource management, hunt camps and others. The
current recreational use of the property is consistent with these types of uses.

Section 5.2.8 includes policies aggregate extraction and it sets out requirements for applications for
aggregate extraction operations. Since the proposal is only for a technical consent that is intended to
legalize an existing driveway, and no change in use of the property is intended, these policies do not
apply to the proposal. The proposed consent should not affect any potential future use of the property to
extract aggregate.

Page 111 of 329



Report to Council

EC OV E Application for Consent (Mcllroy)
) = Municipality of Magnetawan
consulting services inc. March 21, 2024

’-‘_\_—/

4.3.4 Consent Policies

Section 7.1 of the Official Plan contains policies that govern consent applications. It states that consents
shall only be considered if they are minor, do not require the extension of municipal services and they
comply with the Objectives and General Development policies and the applicable Land Use policies in
them MMOP. The proposed technical consent is minor, is not proposing any municipal services or new
services to the properties or any change in use. The proposed consent complies with all applicable
policies including those that apply to the Rural Areas designation.

Section 7.1.1 provides the criteria for the creation of new lots through consent applications. However, the
proposal is not intended to create a new lot. The application will only create an easement for access
purposes to the Applicants’ property. Therefore, the policies in Section 7.1.1 do not directly apply to the
proposal.

In consideration of the above, our opinion is that the proposal conforms to the consent policies in the
MMOP.

Sections 7.2 and 7.3 of the MMOP provide policies for Subdivisions and Condominiums and Parkland
Dedication respectively. These sections are not applicable to the proposed consent.

The remaining sections of the MMOP deal mainly with procedural matters and other policies that are not
directly applicable to the application. Based upon the above considerations, our opinion is that the
proposed consent complies with the MMOP.

4.4 Municipality of Magnetawan Zoning By-law No. 2001-26
The subject property and the Applicants’ property are both zoned Rural (RU) in Magnetawan Zoning By-
law 2001-26 (MZB).

The permitted uses in the Rural zone are set out in Section 4.6.1 of the MZB. They include a wide range
of uses including farms, hunt camps, logging, public parks, golf courses, resource management activities
and detached dwellings. Standards for lots and for development in areas zoned Rural are also included.

The proposed consent will not change the use of the recreational use of the property which is consistent

with the permitted uses noted above.

Page 112 of 329



b _

Report to Council

E V Application for Consent (Mcllroy)

CO E Municipality of Magnetawan

consulling services inc, March 21' 2024
R

Much of the remainder of MZB involves standards for other zones and procedural matters that do not
apply specifically to the proposal. The proposed ZBA does not conflict with these provisions.

In consideration of the above, our opinion is that the proposed consent complies with all applicable
requirements of the MZB.

45 Summary of Planning Considerations

In view of the above, the proposed consent is consistent with the applicable requirements of the PPS and
complies with all requirements of the Official Plan. The proposed consent also complies with Zoning By-
law No. 2001-26.

With regard to Section 51 (24) of the Planning Act:

» The proposed consent is not expected to affect matters of provincial interest as required in Section
51 (24) (a);

e Pursuant to Section 51(24) (b) the consent is not premature, and it is in the public interest,

e The consent conforms to the Official Plan as required in section 51 (24) (c) and the land is suitable
for the purpose of the consent as required in Section 51 (24) (d),

¢ The road access is appropriate for the use of the property and consent will facilitate iegal access
pursuant to Section 51 (24) (&),

» The dimension and shapes of the subject parcel is appropriate as required in Section 51 (24) (f),

e Pursuant to Section 51 (24) (g) the consent complies the Zoning By-law and other applicable
restrictions,

e The proposed consent is not expected to impact the conservation of natural resources and flood
control as required in Section 51 (24) (h).

s Pursuant to Section 51 (24) (i) the proposed consent should not affect utilities and services
available for the property except for legalizing the existing driveway to provide access.

Page 113 of 329



Report to Council
EC OV Application for Consent (Mcliroy)
Municipality of Magnetawan

consultlng ..erwces inc. March 21, 2024

+ Regarding Section 51 (24) (j) the proposed consent is not expected to impact the need for school
sites.

» The proposed consent is not expected to require a dedication of land for public purposes pursuant
to Section 51 (24) (k).

» Pursuant to Section 51 (24) () the proposed consent impact the supply, use or conservation of
energy.

Therefore, in view of the above, the proposed consent has appropriate regard for Section 51 (24) of the
Act.

Our planning opinion is that the consent is consistent with, or complies with all applicable planning
provisions, subject to the conditions listed in the recormmendation.

5.0 Recommendations

That the consent application by James Mcllroy and Bonnie Eng to create an easement for driveway
access to Nelson Lake Road within the Municipality of Magnetawan be approved and that the provisional
consent be recommended to the Central Almaguin Planning Board subject to the conditions contained in
this report.

Respectfully Submitted,

ECOVUE CONSULTING SERVICES INC.

Mok £

{ Kent’\Randall B.E.S. MCIP RPP .
ownship Planning Consultant
p g %

W

ris Confi, M.
Senior Planner

Page 114 of 329



CENTRAL ALMAGUIN PLANNING BOARD

63 Marie Street, P.0. Box 310 South River ON POA 1X0
Phone: 705-386-2573 Email: admin@centralaph.ca
Christine Hickey, Secretary - Treasurer

SUBMITTING YOUR APPLICATION TO THE CENTRAL ALMAGUIN PLANNING BOARD OEFICE

This application form is to be used i the Central Almaguin Planning Board is the consent
granting authority.

For any assistance with the consent process, please refer to the policy documents and the
CAPB application guidelines. The documents may be found on the CAPB website -
www.centralaph.ca -

Submission of your completed and signed Application Form may be done by Canada Post mail,

in person (63 Marie Street, Box 310 South River) or by courier.

Submit one (1) single-sided original completed Application Form, with all signatures
and Commissioned Declaration. Sketch must show the parcel(s) ta he severed and the parcel
to be retained, with metric measurements,

- A complete application MUST include a Council resolution {organized municipalities)
supporting the consent in principal and include a list of conditions required, if any

- Please provide 10 copies of - the completed application form, council resolution of support,
and supporting documents, if any -

- The fee to accompany the application is $700.00 per lot created, per lot addition or per
right of way.

Please Note:

Applications received for land in the Unorganized Townships will require a Planner’s Review, This review
ensures that declsions made are consistent with applicable legisiation, the applicotion is presented to the
Board after this review has been completed, The cost of this review and any required studies or other
consultation will be ot the expense of the opplicant{s). A $1,000.00 deposit Is required to cover planner fees,
Once completed, any amount remaining will be returned to the applicant, If there are monies owing, the
applicant will be responsible for the additional fees. :

Fee is payable by cheque to Central Almaguin Planning Board or by Etransfers to
centrolalmaguinplan@hotmail.com. Plegse ensure that your full name and property address

are noted in the message. '
Page 1] 11

Page 115 of 329




CONSENT APPUCATIONS WILL ONLY BE ACCEPTED AND PROCESSED once all applicable
information is provnded

A file number will be assigned once your application is deemed complete by CAPB staff. This
file number should be quoted in all communication on the Consent application.

Email communication and a letter acknowledging receipt of your fee and advising that the

application is complete and ready to process will be sent to you after the apphcatson is
deemed complete by staff,

A Notice of Meeting advising the date on which the Consent({s) will be heard by the Central
Almaguin Planning Board, will be included in this mailing. itis the applicant/agents
responsibility to post the Notice of Meeting Posters on the subject site for public view.

Page 2|11

Page 116 of 329




CENTRAL ALMAGUIN PLANNING BOARD

Marie Street, P.0. Box 310
South River Ontario POM 1X0
705-386.2573  Email: admin@centralapb.ca
Website: http://caph.ca

AN APPLICATION FOR CONSENT UNDER SECTION 53 OF THE PLANNING ACY, R.50. 1990 c.P.13
FILE#B /
PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE AND COMPLETE ALl APPROPRIATE BOXES.
1. APPLICANT INFORMATION
Applicant(s):
Name(s} of Property Owner({s): Gregory Thomas Black and Janice Elaine Black

Phone #: Home: 1 708 915-9146 Mobile: Business:

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 456, Legal, Alberta

Postal Code: TOG 1L0 Email Address: gregory.black@tc.gc.ca

Agent for the Applicant .- ... ... — G —mSEHE ———ie. - R
The property owner{s} may appoint a person or an agent to act on their behalf for processing this application
and attending the meeting at which it will be considered, or a person wha is to be contacted about the

appiication for communication. This may be a person or firm acting on behalf of the property owner(s). Owner
authorization is required in Section 11 of this form if the applicant is an agent appointed by the owner,

Name of Contact Person/Agent: james Ivor Mciroy

Phone #: Home: Mobile: 416-998-6708 Businas_:

Address: 5 Westcroft Drive, Toronto, Ontario

Postal Code; M1E 3A2 Email Address:

2. LOCATION OF THE SUBJECT LAND (District of Parry Sound)

Tax Roll Number:

Municipality / Unincorporated Township: Magnetawan

Municipal Address {Civic Address):

Legal Description: Concession: B Lot Number: 69 Registered Plan:

Page 3|11

Page 117 of 329




Lot(s): Reference Plan: Part{s):

Parcel Number: PIN: 52133-0375

IMPORTANT: if there are existing easements or restrictive covenants affecting the subject land, provide the
legal description and its effect to the subject land. Attach a copy of relevant documentation.

3. PURPOSE OF THE APPLICATION:

3.1 Type and Purpose of proposed transaction(s) that requires the Consent:
Create a new lot (or re-establish an existing parcel} /___ Lot Addition / __x_Easement

Other: Charge ___/ Release a Mortgage Lease

3.2 Name of party(s), if known, to whom the land or interest in land Is to be transferred, leased or charged:

An easement for 3 driveway is being granted to James vor Mcllroy and Bonnie Eng owners of PIN
32133-0730 for registered access to their property being PT LT 70 CON B SPENCE AS IN RO68804 {Firstly):

3.3 If a lot addition, identify the fands to which the parcel will be added n/a

3.4 Mortgage, Charges or other Encumbrances:  n/a

4, DESCRIPTION OF SUBJECT LAND AND SERVICING INFORMATION

4.1 Description / Size SEVERED RETAINED
Frontage (m) QM S 1

]
Area {ha) FLg.8T L2 "o, o Aq
4.2 Existing Use of Property: Vacs~t land Vocant land
4.3 Existing Bullding or Structures _
and date of construction nja A4

Page 4|11

Page 118 of 329




4.4 Proposed Use of the Severed
and Retained Parcels

Drive vy

Unten \ord

4.5 Road Access:

Provincial highway MANDATORY:
Provide written comments from MTO
North Bay. 705-497-5401

Ne[sﬁn Lat& ?L&
M i fp‘“‘-[ Mo

Melsn (ab, R
mu.a.'\'lﬁfq\\\i mfﬂ-“t‘iﬂt‘-

Municipal road, maintained all year

v’

Municipal Road, seasonaily
maintained

Other Public Road (e.g. Local Roads
Board)

Right of Way / Easement™*( IF ACCESS
TO THE SUBJECT LAND IS BY
PRIVATE ROAD OR OTHER PUBLIC
ROAD OR RIGHT OF WAY advise the
status of the easement (permanent
registered or prescriptive}, name
who owns the land or road, who is
responsible for its maintenance and
whether it is seasonal or year round.

A(c,_ss)o RN S21%3- o3
15 ounr e s,_b"‘ﬂj: londs

vin an exi&-\n‘ﬁ d.r;ue',uh\’

MNRF Road Allowance [Written
report from the MNRF if an MNRF
road allowance is used for access to
the subject land. North Bay Office:

705-475-5550]

4.6 Water Access Lots: Describe the parking and docking facilities to be used and the approx.im;te
distance of these facilities for the subject land and the nearest public road.

4.7 Water Supply

SEVERED

RETAINED

Publicly owned and operated piped
water system

h/4

fa

Privately owned and operated
individual well

Privately owned and operated
communal weil

Lake or other water body

Other means

Does your property abut a lake?

PageS|11

Page 119 of 329




{is the lake deemed by the Ministry
of the Environment Conservation and
Parks (MOECP) to be at capacity for
phosphorus load ? **1-800-461-6290
for enguiries] .

4.8 Sewage Disposal

RETAINED

Publicly owned and operated
sanitary sewage system

g

nq

Privately owned and operated
individual septic tank

Attach documentation of the results
of the review by the North Bay
Mattowa Conservation Autherity

Privately owned and operated
communal septic tank

Privy

Cther Means

{e.g. Advanced Treatment System})
** (Septic System over 10,000 litres
requires Ministry of the Environment
Conservation and Parks study and
permit..

1-800-461-6290 for enquiries }

4.9 Other Services
(indicate which service(s) are
available)

SEVERED

RETAINED

Electricity

Afa

A fa

School Bussing

nfa

nita

GauEge Collection

Ale

A {4

4.10 Ifaccess to the subject land is. by private road or right of way was indicated in section 4.4, indicate who
owns the land or the road, who is responsible for its maintenance and whether i

all year.

Access to the Jands If vig a private driveway which fronts Nelson
Lake Road. The easement applied for herein would provide legal
access for the property to Nelson Lake Road.

Page 120 of 329

t is maintained seasonally or




5. LAND USE

5.1 What is the existing Official Plan designation{s)? (Not applicable to lands in unorganized township)

Aggregate & Mineral

5.2 What is the Zoning, if any, on the subject land? (Not applicable to lands in unorganized township)

Rural

If the subject land covered by a Minister’s Zoning Order, what is the Plan and registration number? n/a

5.3 Are any of the following uses or features an the subject land or within 500 meters of the subject land,
unless otheswise specified? Please check the boxes that apply.

Use or Feature

On the Subject Land

Within 500 meters of subject
land, unless otherwise specified
by the applicable agency, then
indicate approximate distance.

An agricultural operation including *
livestock facility or stockyard
[MANDATORY: Attach MDS work
sheets from OMAFRA

niq

LA

A landfill

f\iq

n/s

A sewage treatment plant or waste
stabilization plant

Als

n {4

A provincially significant wetland
{North Bay Mattawa Conservation
Authority or the Ministry of the
Environment Conservation and Parks]

n /e

n{a

A provincially significant wetland
‘within 120 meters of the subject land
{North Bay Mottawa Conservation
Authority or the Ministry of the
Environment Conservation and Paris]

ni=

nfﬁ

Flood Plain

wia

ni§

A rehabilitated mine site

AL

nls

A non-operating mine site within one
kilometer of the subject land

n (s

n (4

An active mine site

rlg

Al

- An industrial or commercial use, and
specify the use (eg gravel pit)

Al

n fa

An active railway line

Als

nis

Utikity corridors {Natural Gas / Hydro}

Ala

P4

A municipal of federal airport -

g

fre

Page 121 of 329

Page 7111




6. HISTORY OF SURJECT LAND

6.1 Has the subject land ever beeﬁ the subject of an appiication for approval of a Plan of Subdivision or
Consent under the Planning Act? NO

If yes, and if known, please provide the application file number and the decision made on the application.

Year the property was created? {if known} unknown

6.2 If this application is a re-submission of a previous consent application, what is the original consent
application number and how has it been changed from the original application?

n/a

7. CURRENT APPLICATION

7.11s the subject land currently the subject land of 2 proposed Official Plan or Official Plan Amendment that
has been submitted to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing for approval?

No

If yes and if known, specify the file number and status of the application

7.2 Is the subject land the subjection of an application for a Zoning ByJaw Amendment, Minister’s Zoning
Order amendment, Minor Variance, Consent or approval of a Plan of Subdivision?

NO

ff yes and if known, specify the file number and status of the application.

Page 8|11

Page 122 of 329




8. SKETCH: The application MUST BE ACCOMPANIED BY A *SKETCH / SITE PLAN showing the following:

a. The boundaries and dimensions of the subject land praposed to be severed as well as the parcel to be
retained, including the location of existing structures and driveway(s), other permanent features.

b. The boundaries and dimensions of any land awned by the owner of the subject land and that abuts the
subject land, the distance between the subject land and the nearest township lot line or landmark, such as a
railway crossing or bridge

¢. The location of all land previoushlf severed from the parcel originally acquired by the current owner of the
subject fland

d. The approximate location of all natural and artificial features on the subject land and adjacent lands that in
the opinion of the applicant may affect the application, such as buildings, railways, roads, watercoursas,
drainage ditches, river or stream banks, wetlands, wooded areas, wells and septic tank.

f. The location, width and name of any roads within or abutting the subject land, indicating whether it is an
unopened road allowance, a public traveled road, a private road or right of way

8. If access to the subject land is by water only, location of the parking and boat docking facilities to be used
h. The location and nature of any easement affecting the subject land

9. OTHER INFORMATION: Is there any other information that you think may be useful to the Board or other
agencies reviewing the application? If so, explain below or attached on a separate page.

Page 9|11

Page 123 of 329




10. AFFIDAVIT OR SWORN DECLARATION {ai! applicant(s)

L, . OFTHE

iN THE DISTRICT OF - MAKE OATH AND SAY THAT THE INFORMATION
CONTAINED N THIS APPLICATION IS TRUE AND THAT THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE DOCUMENTS
THAT ACCOMPANY THIS APPLICATION 1S TRUE.

SWORN OR DECLARED BEFORE ME

AT THE
INTHE OF
THIS DAY OF S
#&uﬁ Toor (Kcl\m,
A COMMISSIONER OF OATHS Applmnt
| Y
JEr A
&Af\‘l « 6\3‘

Page 10|11

Page 124 of 329




11. AUTHORIZATION OF AGENT (if applicable)

11.1 if the applicant is not the owner of the land subject in this application, written authorization of the
property owner authorizing the particular person to act as their agent to make the application and represent
them at the meeting when the Board considers this matter, must be submitted with this application form OR
the authorization section below be completed.

AUTHORIZATION OF OWNER FOR AGENT TO MAKE THE APPLICATION

|,_&;1ﬁ;-n&.a Baf o> Bt Elow Blak. , AM THE OWNER OF THE LAND THAT IS THE SUBJIECT

OF THIS APPLICATION FOR CONSENT AND HEREBY AUTHORIZE Jamrs Ty M Ttyoy ard Bonnic Gj

TO MAKE THIS APPLICATION ON MY BEHALF.

DATED: _gq: 302023 SIGNATURE OF PROPERTY OWNER /67'7 ‘

G‘r?ﬂ-r’y Tromar Blak

Janice Black

wira. ©
11.2 K the apphcant is not the owner of the land that is the subject of this appf'“txon comple‘?et— the

authorization of the owner concering personal information set out below.

APPOINTMENT AND AUTHORIZATION OF AN AGENT AND CONSENT TO PROVIDE PERSONAL INFORMATION

l, t;ﬂs, rqTVoones Bleck o) TBnie, Elen Fhef, AM THE OWNER OF THE LAND THAT IS THE SUBJECT OF
THIS APPLICATION FOR CONSENT AND FOR THE PURPOSES OF THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND
PROTECTION OF PRIVACY ACT, | AUTHORIZE “SemasTer M. 34 Loy 003 Reante Cra TO SUBMIT
THE INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR THIS PURPOSE.

DATED_Sept. 30/2023 SIGNATURE OF PROPERTY OWNER /éf ;
_.ﬂwm. T B [ '-.L

JM Black
N'%am..‘. E.lmﬁ:. Elac k.

12. CONSENT OF OWNER TO THE USE AND DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL 1

|/WE, (@q' Thones Rlack a3 Tonce, Clase M, M/ARE THE OWNER(s} OF THE LAND THAT IS THE SUBIECT
OF THIS CONSENT APPLICATION AND FOR THE PURPOSES OF THE MUNICIPAL FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND
PROTECTION OF PERSONAL PRIVACY ACT, [/WE AUTHORIZE AND CONSENT TO THE USE BY OR THE DISCLOSURE
TO ANY PERSON OR PUBLIC BODY OF ANY PERSONAL INFORMATION THAT IS COLLECTED UNDER THE
AUTHORITY OF THE PLANNING ACT FOR THE PURPOSES OF PROCESSING THIS APPLICATION.

e
DATED__Sept 3012023 SIGNATURE OF PROPERTY OWNER % ek
G-rq_jn-\‘ Wf Ek;_?
Janiee Black

Tonite Tlowa Bk,

Page 11]11

Page 125 of 329










Page 128 of 329



RESOLUTION NO. 2024 - APRIL, 10, 2024

Moved by:

Seconded by:

WHEREAS the Municipality of Magnetawan has received a request to support an application for consent for

creation of one new lot located at 46 Thompson Road which is a municipal road, Magnetawan(Stevenson 4944
010 0031080000). The property is legally described as Con B Lot 91 Township of Chapman hereinafter referred to
as “the Lands”;

WHEREAS the Municipal planning consultant has provided a report in support of the application with conditions;
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan supports in principle the
consent application for the Lands, which is valid only for a period of six (6) months; subject to the following
conditions:

That the foregoing conditions be fulfilled within two years of the notice of decision of the Planning Board;
Draft Reference Plan to be approved by the Municipality pr gistration;

Two (2) true certified paper copies of the registered plan a ctronic version for the proposed severed
lot be prepared by an Ontario Land Surveyor with a certificati is a true copy be provided to the
Municipality for review and approval which conforms syfs with the application as submitted;

Draft copy of the deeds (with all schedules) to be aggfov he Municipality prior to registration;

A copy of the original executed transfer (deg chedules be provided to the Municipality;

That the applicant establish a separate wai to service the residential building on the proposed
severed lot;

Payment of all taxes, municipal legal fees, plannifig fees and fees as per the current Fees and Charges By-law,
Park Land Dedication By-law and all other fees associated with the processing of this application;

That the Applicant receive confirmation of a suitable entrance from the Municipality of Magnetawan;

That a Zoning By-law Amendment be submitted to rezone to demonstrate the existing development and the
proposed lots comply with the Zoning By-law and all applicable legislation and Building Code as applied;
Confirmation from the North Bay Mattawa Conservation Authority (NBMCA) that the proposed Severed and
Retained Lots can be adequately serviced by individual on-site septic systems;

That the applicant provide confirmation to the satisfaction of the Municipality the existing shed has been
relocated and complies with the minimum standards of the Zoning By-law.

Carried Defeated Deferred Sam Dunnett, Mayor

Member of Council Yea Nay Absent

Bishop, Bill

Hetherington, John

Hind, Jon

Kneller, Brad

Mayor: Dunnett, Sam

Page 129 of 329



THE MUNICIPALITY OF MAGNETAWAN

STAFF REPORT
TO: Erica Kellogg, Deputy Clerk — Planning & Development
Municipality of Magnetawan
FROM: Patrick Townes, BA, BEd and Jamie Robinson, BES, MCIP, RPP
MHBC Planning Limited
DATE: April 10, 2024
SUBJECT Consent Application — 46 Thompson Road (Stevenson)

Municipality of Magnetawan

Recommendation

That Council recommend to the Planning Board, that the Consent application for the subject
lands located at 46 Thompson Road (Stevenson), be provisionally approved subject to the
following conditions:

1.

That the applicant meet all financial requirements of the Municipality, including the
payment of the balance of any outstanding taxes, including penalties and interest be
paid;

That a draft survey of the proposed retained and severed lots be provided to the
Municipality for review and approval;

That a registrable description of the severed lot and a copy of the Reference Plan be
deposited to the Land Registry office and be submitted to the Municipality;

That the owner obtain approval of a Zoning By-law Amendment to demonstrate the
existing development and the proposed lots comply to the Zoning By-law;

That the existing shed be relocated to comply with the minimum standards of the Zoning
By-law;

That the applicant pay to the Municipality a parkland contribution fee for each
residential lot to be created as cash-in-lieu of a parkland contribution pursuant to
Section 53 (13) of the Planning Act, R.S.0. 1990 ¢. P. 13;

That the Applicant establish a separate water supply to service the residential building
on the proposed severed lot; and,

Page 130 of 329



8. That the conditions of Consent be fulfilled within two years from the date of the giving
of the notice by the Central Almaguin Planning Board.

Proposal / Background

A Consent Application has been submitted for the subject lands located at 46 Thompson Road
in the Municipality of Magnetawan. The purpose of the Consent application is to create one
new rural residential lot on the subject lands, and to also separate the existing development
that is currently located on the subject lands.

The subject lands, the proposed severed lot and the proposed retained lot are shown on Figure
1. The proposed retained lot is outlined in green and the proposed severed lot is outlined in
red. Thompson Road is located to the south of the subject lands and Old Nipissing Road is
located to the east of the subject lands.

Figure 1: Proposed Lot Configuration

TRETAINED LANDS
i 39.3ha / 97ac

The proposed lot areas and lot frontages are shown on Table 1.

Table 1: Proposed Lot Areas and Frontages

Proposed Retained Lot | Proposed Severed Lot #1

Page 131 of 329



Lot Area 39 hectares 2.4 hectares
Lot Frontage 900 metres 248 metres

The owner has indicated that there are two existing detached dwellings and accessory buildings
on the subject lands. The locations of the existing development and the location of the
proposed lot line to divide the subject lands is shown in detail on Figure 2. It is understood that
there is a zoning non-compliance matter on the subject lands, due to their being two single
detached dwellings on the same property which is not permitted in the Zoning By-law. Following
the proposed Consent, one existing detached dwelling is to be located on its own lot. It is also
understood that the the “status” of the existing detached dwelling are unknown, and that due to
the nature of the buildings they may not meet the definition of a detached dwelling in the Zoning
By-law or the Ontario Buildoing Code (i.e. mobile homes). The owner will need to confirm this
in order to demonstrate zoning compliance through a condition of provisional Consent. An
existing storage building on the proposed iot line is to be removed.

Figure 2: Existing Development

e m——————— -
— ~—

LANDS TO BE REZONED
RR WITH EXCEPTION
FOR SIDE YARD
SETBACK

5
[FXISTING SHED q __ﬂl 2
% »
@ EXISTING
\y\

' EXISTING PORTABLE
STORAGE UNIT
TO BE REMOVED

-~

EXISTING
DWELLING

LANDS TO BE REZONE
. RU WITH EXCEPTION _ -~
OR SIDE YARD _ -~

ETBACK -~

el

-
rd

Each of the existing detached dwellings are serviced with their own septic system, however
they share a well for water supply.

Area Context

The subject lands are located south of the Village of Magnetawan and are on the north-west
corner of Old Nipissing Road and Thompson Road.

Page 132 of 329 3



The surrounding land uses include the following:

North: The Village of Magnetawan and rural residential uses.
East: Rural residential uses.

South: Rural residential uses.

West: Ahmic Lake and rural residential uses.

Policy Analysis

Provincial Policy Statement

The following is a review of the land use policy framework related to the subject lands and the
Consent application.

The Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) is a document that guides development in the Province.
The subject lands are located in a rural area of the Municipality and outside of the Village of
Magnetawan and are considered to be Rural Lands by the PPS. The PPS identifies a number
of permitted land uses on rurai lands in municipalities which include limited residential
development and lot creation that is locally appropriate.

Section 1.6.6.4 of the PPS provides policies that apply to development on individual well and
septic. This policy states that individual on-site sewage services and individual on-site water
services may be used for a new development provided that site conditions are suitable for the
long-term provision of such services with no negative impacts. The existing dwellings are
currently serviced by two separate septic systems and share one well. It is recommended that
a condition of provisional Consent be included that requires the applicant to establish a
separate water supply for the proposed severed lot.

Section 2.0 of the PPS contains policies related to the wise use and management of resources
and must be considered when reviewing the proposed Consent Application. Ontario’s long-term
prosperity, environmental health, and social well-being is dependent on protecting water and
natural heritage features.

Section 2.1.8 of the PPS contains policies regarding development adjacent to natural heritage
features and areas. The subject lands contain an unevaluated wetland on the western portion
of the property and on the proposed retained lot. No additional development is proposed
through this application and the proposed Consent is to separate the existing development on
the subject lands. As a result an Environmental Impact Study is not required.

Subject to the recommended conditions of provisional Consent, the proposed Consent is
consistent with the PPS.

Page 133 of 329



Municipality of Magnetawan Official Plan

The Municipality's Official Plan provides direction pertaining to growth within Magnetawan. The
policies in the Plan address the environment, cultural and built heritage, natural resources and
servicing and transportation. In accordance with Schedule A - Land Use to the Official Plan, the
subject lands are designated Rural and Environmental Protection. The majority of the subject
lands is also within the Aggregate & Mineral Resources overlay.

Figure 3: Excerpt of Schedule A — Land Use

Aggregate & Mineral Resources

- Environmental Protection Rural

Schedule B to the Official Plan indicates that the subject property is located entirely within the
Deer Wintering Area (Stratum 2), has an unevaluated wetland on the western extent of the
property and has Significant Flora Fauna on the property as shown in Figure 4.

Page 134 of 329 f’



Figure 4: Excerpt of Schedule B - Environmental Features
\ j b NI Y

Subject Property

ot|90

=
O

Deer Wintering Area (Stratum 2) ®  Significant Flora & Fauna @  Other Wetland

From the review of the site plan submitted with the application in relation to Schedule B, it
appears that the “Significant Flora Fauna” and the “Other Wetland” portions of the subject lands
are contained entirely on the proposed retained lot and no new development is proposed in
these features.

Section 4.5 of the Municipality’s Official Plan contains policies regarding wetlands. Section 4.5
states the following:

Wherever possible these areas should be left in their natural state. Where it can be
demonstrated to the satisfaction of Council that there is no reasonable alternative for the
logical development of lands other than to develop a portion of a locally significant
wetland, the Municipality will impose site plan control to ensure that the appropriate
mitigation measures are employed to minimize the impact on the wetland. No
development or site alteration will be permitted in or within 120 metres of any areas
identified as potential provincially significant wetlands until an evaluation is completed
by a qualified wetland evaluator using the Ontario Wetland Evaluation System: Northern
Manual to conform its significance, as well as to address any significant impacts through
completion of an Environmental Impact Assessment.

The Consent application does not propose new development or site alteration within 120 metres
of the unevaluated wetland on the subject lands. The existing development on the retained lot
is located greater than 400 metres from the lands identified as Environmental Protection.

Schedule B also identifies the subject lands in a Deer Wintering Area (Stratum 2). Section 4.6
of the Official Plan contains polices for Deer Habitat and states:

Within the significant deer habitat areas shown on Schedule B new lots should avoid
areas of dense conifer cover or be of a sufficient size to provide a suitable development
area including access and services, outside the most significant deer wintering habitat

Page 135 of 329

6



areas described above. The minimum lot size shall be 90 metres frontage and 90 metres
depth.

The proposed severed lot and retained lot exceed these values and the application does not
propose to remove any existing vegetation on the subject lands.

Section 4.10 of the Official Plan states that development within 50 metres of the boundary of
an unevaluated wetland shall require an Environmental Impact Study. No additional
development is proposed through this application and the proposed Consent is to separate the
existing development on the subject lands. As a result an Environmental Impact Study is not
required.

Section 4.14 of the Official Plan contains policies for Aggregate and Mineral Resources. A
portion of the subject lands is within an Aggregate and Mineral Resources overlay. Section
4.14 1 states that where development is proposed in or adjacent to an area of known mineral
or aggregate resources, the development shall be set back and buffered sufficiently. Based on
a review of aerial photography, there are no existing pits or aggregate reserves within 300
metres of the subject lands. Furthermore, it is suggested that the extraction of resources from
the site would not be viable due to the presence of existing residential development within this
area.

Section 5.2 of the Official Plan contains policies for Rural Areas in the Municipality. Section
5.2.1 recognizes residential dwellings as a permitted use.

Section 7.1.1 of the Official Plan contains criteria that are applicable to consent applications
that create new lots. Table 2 below summarizes the consent policies.

Table 2: Official Plan Section 7.7.1 Summary

Policy 7.7.1
Severance Criteria

Does the Application Conform?

a) A registered plan of subdivision is not
necessary for the orderly development of
the lands.

A Plan of Subdivision is not required. The proposal
is for one retained lot and one severed lot.

b) The lot size and setback requirements
will satisfy specific requirements of this
Plan and meet the implementing zoning
by-law requirements.

c) The proposed lot must front on a publicly
maintained road or, within the Shoreline
designation, between existing lots on an

A Zoning By-law Amendment is recommended as
a condition of provisional Consent. A summary of
the zoning review is included in Table 3 of this
Report.

Amendments are required for the following:

e Reduction to the interior side yard for the
existing detached dwellings.

¢ Reduction to required lot area for the
proposed severed lot.

Access is provided to the proposed lots via
Thompson Road which is a year-round municipally
maintained road.

Page 136 of 329 "'




Policy 7.7.1
Severance Criteria

Does the Application Conform? ]

existing private road with a registered right-
of-way to a municipally maintained road or
be a condominium unit, which may be
created on private roads having access to
a municipal year round road.

d) Lots for hunt camps, fishing camps,
wilderness tourist camps or similar uses
may be permitted on unmaintained
municipal road allowances or on private
right of ways to publicly maintained roads
provided that the appropriate agreements
are in place to ensure that the Municipality
has no liability with respect to the use of
these roads.

The proposed lots are developed with existing|
detached dwellings and are not proposed to be
used for hunt camps, fish camps etc.

e) The lot must have road access in a
location where traffic hazards such as
obstructions to sight lines, curves or
grades are avoided;

The proposed lots appear to not create a traffic
hazard as the proposed lots are developed with
existing residential uses.

f) The lot size, soil and drainage conditions
must allow for an adequate building site
and to allow for the provision of an
adequate means of sewage disposal and
water supply, which meets the
requirements of the Building Code, the lot
must have safe access and a building site
that is outside of any flood plain or other
hazard land.

The existing development on the proposed lots are
serviced by existing private sewage services. Both
dwellings utilize the same drilled well for water
services.

Approval from the North Bay Mattawa
Conservation Authority (NBMCA) is required to
confirm that the severed lot can be adequately
serviced by its own independent drilled well.

g) Notwithstanding subsection c), lots
created for seasonal or recreational
purposes may be permitted where the
access to the lot is by a navigable
waterbody provided that Council is
satisfied that there are sufficient facilities
for mainland parking and docking.

Not applicable. The proposed lots are not for a
seasonal residential use.

h) Any lot for permanent residential use
shall be located on a year round
maintained municipal road or Provincial
highway.

The proposed lots would be accessed by a year-
round maintained municipal road. The proposed
lots are developed with existing residential uses.

i) In the Rural designation, new lots created

by consent shall be limited to the following:

i. The Township wil permit the

creation of up to eight new lots per

year. The new lots must comply with

the regulations as set out in the
implementing Zoning By-law.

There have been less than eight new lots created
in Rural designation to date. The subject lands is
over 100 acres and therefore eligible for the
creation of two new lots. The proposed Consent
conforms to this policy.

Page 137 of 329 3



Policy 7.7.1
Severance Criteria

Does the Application Conform?

ii. two lots per original hundred acre
lot;

iii. one lot for each 50 acre parcel
which existed as of the date of
approval of this Plan; and

iv.  infilling between existing residences
within 300 metres of each other on
the same side of a municipal road or
Provincial highway

j) The creation of any lot will not have the
effect of preventing access to or land

locking any other parcel of land.

The severed and retained lots will not prevent
access to, or land lock, any other parcel of land.

k) Any severance proposal on land
adjacent to livestock operations shall meet |

| in accordance with the MDS Guidelines
and shall demonstrate that the proposed
water supply has not been contaminated
| from agricultural purposes.

The subject lands are not adjacent to livestock
operations. The proposed severed and retained
the Minimum Distance Separation Formula | lots are developed with existing residential uses.

Subject to the recommended conditions of provisional Consent, the proposed Consent

conforms to the Official Plan.

Municipality of Magnetawan Zoning By-law

The subject lands are currently zoned Rural (RU) and Environmental Protection (EP). Table 2
provides a summary of the performance standards of the Zoning By-law for the Rural Zone and

the proposed lot areas and lot frontages for the proposed severed and retained lots.

Table 3: Zoning By-law Performance Standards

Zone Standard Proposed Lots

Rural (RU) Proposed Proposed

Zone Retained Lot Severed Lot
Minimum Lot Frontage [ 134 m 900.5 m 2479 m
Minimum Lot Area 10 ha 39.3 ha 2.4 ha
Minimum Front Yard 15 m 204 m 10.3 m (Existing)

.. . 7.5 m (east) > 15 m (east)
Minimum Side Yard 15m > 15 m (west) 7.2 m (west)
Minimum Rear Yard 15 m >15m >15m
1 0,

Maximum Lot 25% 595 9 >25 %
Coverage i 1 -

Page 138 of 329

9



A Zoning By-law Amendment is recommended as a condition of provisional Consent to ensure
that the existing development and the proposed lots comply to the Zoning By-law. The
minimum lot area of the RU Zone is 10 hectares. The proposed severed lot has a lot area of
2.4 hectares and therefore a rezoning is required to recognize the reduced lot area. The
minimum interior side yard for the RU Zone is 15 metres. The existing detached dwellings are
located closer to the proposed interior side lot line than 15 metres and therefore a rezoning is
required to recognize this reduced interior side yard.

As referenced, there remains a question to the status of the existing detached dwellings on the
subject property. Through the satisfying of the conditions of provisional Consent, the owner
will need to demonstrate to the Municipality that the existing residential buildings meet the
requirements for a detached dwelling in the Zoning By-law and the Ontario Building Code.

Comments from Departments

Please note that comments were received and are provided below.

Road Department. No concerns received at the time of this report

Fire Chief. No concerns

Building Department: Both dwellings would need separate sewage systems and potable water
sources. Construction plans including but not limited to, foundation and decks, application,
site plan, and Permit Fee is required. Unless the manufacture can provide foundation and
anchorage plans a Professional Engineer will need to review and seal the drawings. The
mobile home will also need to meet CSA Z2402.1. The Ontario Building Code has
approximately 2400 changes coming around the end of March/ 2024 and a new Code in
2025. Depending on the changes and updates its possible other requirements may need to
be met.

By-law Department: No concerns

Summary

Subject to the recommended conditions of provisional Consent, the Consent application is
consistent with the PPS and conforms to the Municipality’s Official Plan. It is recommended
that Council support the proposed application and recommend that the Planning Board approve
the application, subject to the recommended conditions of provisional Consent contained in this
Report.

Respectively submitted,

Patrick Townes, BA, BEd Jamie Robinson, BES, MCIP, RPP
Planning Consultant, MHBC Planning Consultant, MHBC

Page 139 of 329 "



FILE#B.............

APPLICATION FOR CONSENT
Under Section 53 of the Planning Act

Note to Applicants: This application form is to be used if the CENTRAL ALMAGUIN PLANNING BOARD is the consent
granting authority. In this form the term “subject” land means the land to be severed and the land to be

retained.

[ ]
Completeness of the Application

The information in this form that must be provided by the applicant
is indicated by black arrows on the left side of the section
numbers. This information is prescribed in the Schedule to COntario
Regulation 197/96 made under the Planning Act. The mandatory
information must be provided with the appropriate fee. If the
mandatory information and fee are not provided, the CAPB will
return the application or refuse to further consider the application
until the information and fee have been provided.

The application form also sets out other information that will assist
the CAPBE and others in their planning evaiuation of the consent
application. To ensure the quickest and most complete review, this
information should be submitted at the time of application. In the
absence of this information, it may not be possible to do a complete
review within the legislated time frame for making a decision. As a
result, the application may be refused.

Submission of the Application

¢ One application form is required for each parcel to be
severed.

* A complete application form MUST include a council
resolution from the organized municipality stating the
pre-consult requirements have been met to its
satisfaction and be accompanied by a list of
conditions the municipality requires.

<> Please Print and Complete Appropriate Box(es)

s  Theapplicable fee is $675 per lot created, per Lot Addition
or per Right of Way — effective January 1, 2017

¢ 10 copies of the completed application form and 10 copies
of the sketch are required by the CAPB. The copies may
be used to consult with other ministries or agencies that
may have an interest in the application.

+  Please remember to include your property rol! number

Measurements are to be in metric units.
1 ft = 3048 meters; 1 acre = 0.404686 hectare

For Help

To help you understand the consent process and information
needed to make a planning decision on the application, refer to the
Guide.

You can also call;

Susan L. Amold, Secretary - Treasurer

Central Almaguin Planning Board

63 Marie St, P. O. Box 310

South River, On POA 1X0 705 386 - 2573

e-mail: centralalmaguinplan@hotmail .com

Web Page for forms: www.strongtownship.com
Office hours: Wednesdays- 9:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m.

1. Application Information - MUNICIPAL TAX - ROLL # 494404000301500

91.1

Name of Owner(s). An owner’ s authorization is required in Section 11.1, if the applicant is not the owner.

Name of Owner(s)

Home Telephone No. Business Telephone No.

DENNIS STEVENSON 705-773-2024
Address Postal Code
Box 316 Magnetawan, ON POA 1PO

1.2 Agent/Applicant: Name of the person who is to be contacled about the application, if different than the owner.
(This may be a person or firm acting on behalf of the owner.)

e-mail -

Name of Contact Person/Agent

Home Telephone No, Business Telephone No.

JOHN JACKSON 705-746-5667
Address Postal Code Fax No.
1 MALL DRIVE, UNIT 2 PARRY SOUND, ON P2A 3A9

2. Location of the Subject Land (Complete applicable boxes in 2.1)

> 21 District %ocal l\gpnicipality.fUnorganized
ownshi
PARRY SOUND MAGNE‘FI"AWAN

Former Municipality Section of Mining Location No.

CHAPMAN

Concession Number(s) Lot Number{s)
CONB LOT 91

Registerad Plan No, Lot(s)/Block(s)

Reference Plan No. Part Number(s}

2.2

> X No

T [1]4]]
Yes If Yes, describe the easement or covenant and its effect.

Municipal Address Parcel Number

46 THOMPSON ROAD

)T g

1101{06/96)

Page 140 of 329

Page 1



3. Purpose of this Application

34 Type and purpose of proposed transaction (check appropriate box)
Transfer Creation of a new lot X Addition to a lot An easement Other purpose
Other Acharge A lease A correction of title

3.2 Name of person(s), if known, 1o whom land or interest in land is to be transferred, leased or charged

3.3 If a lot addition, identify the lands to which the parcel will be added.

4. Description of Subject Land and Servicing Information (Complete each subsection.)

> 4.1 Description Frontage (m.) Severed £248.5 +899.9 Retained
Depth (m.) +342 402
Area (ha.) 5.7 HA 36 HA
" 42 Use of Property Res Res
o pe Existing Use(s)
Proposed Use(s) Res Res
~
= g:::g'&g:s" Existing {Date of Construction) Unknown SLLOELT)
Existing .
Proposed Existing
4 M. .
N . (Ac‘r:l:g:sappropriale Provincial Highway

space
pace) Municipal road, maintained all year 2 X

Municipal road, seascnally maintained

Other public road {e.g. LRB)

Right of way

Water Access (if so, describe below)

Describe in section 9.1, the parking and docking facilities to be used and the approximate distance of these facilities
from the subject land and the nearest public road.

4.5 Water Supply Publicly owned and operated
> piped water system

Privately owned and operated X
individual well S

Privately owned and operated
communal well

Lake or other water body

Cther means
46 Sewage Publicly owned and operated
Disposal i
> (Check sanitary sewage system
appropriate Privately owned and operated
space) individual septic tank’ X X

Privately owned and operated
communal septic system

Privy

Other means

(1) A certificate of approval from the North Bay Mattawa Conservation Authority submitted
with this application will facilitate the review.

4.7 Other Services . X X
Check if the Electricity
service is . X X
available School Bussing

Garbage Collection

4.8 If access to the subject land is by private road, or right of way was indicated in section 4.4, indicate who owns the land or road, who is
responsible for its maintenance and whether it is maintained seasonally or all year.

NIA

- Page 14101 329




5. Land Use

5.1

>

5.2

53

O 0ODDDCDODOUDUDUDUOTU DD

What is the existing official plan designation(s), if any, of the subject land?
Rural, Environmental Protection.

What is the zoning, if any, of the subject land? Ifthe subject land is covered by a Minister-s Zoning order, what is the regulation number?
SHORELINE RESIDENTIAL

Are any of the following uses or features on the subject land or within 500 metres of the subject land, unless otherwise specified.
Please check the appropriate boxes, if any apply.

Within 500 Metres of Subject

On the Land, unless otherwise specified
Use or Feature Subject Land (indicate approximate distance)
An agricultural operation including livestock facility or stockyard
A landfill
A sewage treatment plant or waste stabilization plant
A provincially significant welland (Class 1, 2 or 3 wetland)
A provincially significant wetland within 120 metres of the subject land ALL N/A

Flood plain

A rehabilitated mine site

A non-operating mine site within 1 kilometre of the subject land
An aclive mine site

An industrial or commercial use, and specify the use(s)

An active railway line

A municipal or federal airport

Utility corridors

6. History of the Subject Land

6.2

der the Pl ¥
oS %suxje egn efl?\ ng\?v% e“§ #e&ea i naopsEr:Fgr:?v? g {hag Bﬁ%?é rygsaagalq:at}losnu Iel}’\'l?rl'g e?rag r{ﬁgn elé%lgr{ maede gl!11 ﬂu'é’ gp%ﬁéation.

If this application is a re-submission of a previous consent application, describe how it has been changed from the original application
Yes

s the ot end v, been s Bleched 5 20EHCRUNTMICLIBRIE P SIAR'Y PLASRI AN SH SRR HDNSE NS BRRInBAR L,

Yes

7. Current Applications

> . S e subject land currently the subject of a proposed oficia plan or omcial plan amendmen al has been submitied 10 the Mimister Tor approvar?
o No Yes Unknown__If Yes and if Known, specify the Ministry file number and status of the application.
NO

7.2 s the subject land the subject of an application for a zoning by-law amendment, Minister’ s zoning order amendment, minor variance,

> consent L
or approval of a plan of subdivision?
Q No Yes Unknown  If Yes, and if Known, specify the appropriate file number and status of the application.
NO

1101 {8198 F‘;ge 3

Page 142 of 329



8. Sketch (Use the attached Sketch Sheet) To help you prepare the sketch, refer to the attached Sample Sketch.
> The application shall be accompanied by a sketch showing the following:

O the boundaries and dimensions of the subject land, the part that is to be severed and the part that is to be retained

@ the boundaries and dimensions of any land owned by the owner of the subject land and that abuts the subject land the
distance between the subject land and the nearest township lot line or landmark, such as a railway crossing or bridge

O the location of all land previously severed from the parcel originally acquired by the current owner of the subject land

O the approximate location of all natural and artificial features on the subject land and adjacent lands that in the opinicn of
the applicant may affect the application, such as buildings, railways, roads, watercourses, drainage ditches, river or
stream banks, wetlands, wooded areas, wells and septic tanks

O the existing use(s) onad jacent lands

O the location, width and name of any roads within or abutting the subject land, indicating whether itis an unopened road
allowance, a public travelled road, a private road or a right of way

@ ifaccess to the subject land is by water on  ly, the location of the parking and boat docking facilities to be used

Q the location and nature of any easement affecting the subject land

9. Other Information

Is there any other information that you think may be usefu! to the CAPB or other agen cies in reviewing this application? If so, explain below or
atrach on a separate page.

10. Affidavit or Sworn Declaration

> I, JOHN JACKSON ofthe TOWNOFPARRY  SOUND
inthe ___ DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND ____ rake oath and say {or solemnly declare) that the information
contained in

this application is true and that the information contained in the documents that accompany this application is true.

Sworn (or declared) before me

atthe _ TOWNOF PARRY SOUND

in the DISTRICT OF PARRY SOUND

this __ 6th_ day of November 2 023

Commissioner of Oaths U Agent

Patrick James Christis, a Commiasioner, ste,,

Previnca of Ontado, for John Jackson Planner Inc,
Explres October 12, 2024

1101(08/56) Page 4



14. Authorizations

1.1 Ifthe applicant is not the owner of the land that is the subject of this application, the written authorization of the owner that the applicant is
) authorized to make the application must be included with this form or the authorization set out befow must be completed.

Authorization of Owner for Agent to Make the Application

I, DENNIS STEVENSON , am the owner of the land that is the subject of this application for
a consent and | authorize JOHN JACKSON PLANNER INC. to make this application on my
behalf,
November 6, 2023 y !2 - 95:@
Date T Signature of Owner

11.2 I the applicant is not the owner of the land that is the subject of this application, complete the authorization of the owner concerning
personal informaticn set out below.

Authorization of Owner for Agent to Provide Personal Information

I, DENNIS STEVENSON , am the owner of the land that is the subject of this
application for a consent and for the purposes of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, | authorize
JOHN JACKSON as my agent for this application, to provide any of my
personal information that will be included in this application or coliected during the processing of the application.
November 6, 2023 ), ()il
Date = ~ Signature of Owner

12. Consent of the Owner

» Complete the consent of the owner conceming personal information set out below.

Consent of the Owner to the Use and Disclosure of Personal Information

l, DENNIS STEVENSON . am the owner of the land that is the subject of this consent application and for the
purposes of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, | authorize and consent to the use by or the
disclosure to any person or public body of any personal information that is collected under the authority of the Planning Act for
the purposes of processing this application.

November 6, 2023

Y Date
T Signature of Owner

The CAPB will assign a File Number for complete applications and this should be used in all communications.

Applicant’s Checklist; Have you remembered to attach:
Q 10 copies of the completed application form?
O 10 copies of the skeich?
Q 1 copies of the North Bay Mattawa Conservation
Authority comments regarding Septic system
O The required fee payable to the Central Almaguin Planning Board

Forward to: CENTRAL ALMAGUIN PLANNING BOARD, PQ.Box 310, South River, ON PQA 1X0

10 1[ 0588 Page o

Page 144 of 329






RURAL
SEVERED
8.7ha{ 14ac
RESIDENTIAL
RETAINED LANDS
36.0ha / 89ac

SKETCH FOR ol e
CONSENT RS R

1-Th KING WILLIAM STREET
HUNTSVILLE ONTARIO MH It+
L GO SD-9092 FAX: HON 760-2004
WFORWSALANNING CA

REVISIONS

STEVENSON e qogn T

Page 146 of 329




NOTE: THIS DETAIL

FOR REFERENCE
ONLY; BUILDING
LOCATIONS AND SIZES
ARE APPROXIMATE
LANDS TO BE REZONED
RR WITH EXCEPTION
FOR SIDE YARD
SETBACK
EXISTING SHED
TO BE REMOVED
EXISTING SHED
EXISTING
% Q- DWELLING~
EXISTING
DWELLING

»
™
I AT { WAy WEY WAP (M1S)
COMNCESION B. LOT 91 ] ﬂ.‘:\Y tﬂMm‘mgmalus
FORMER TOWNSHTI OF CHATMAN KIMG WILLIAM STHEF o
DETAIL 1 NOW IN THE MUNICIPALITY OF | L ORTAN P 14

e

! 1
MAGNETAWAN WAYNE OHT F0K: FHOR HP-50%L
b}

STEVENSON P a g‘é@?ﬁfﬁrﬁ& 4 71 86 f Lcrgms éﬂz@




ServiceOntario

PRINTED CON 27 MAR, 2024 AT 10:56:01
FOR EK

SCALE
0 80 160 240 320 400 480
mealers

PROPERTY INDEX MAP
PARRY SOUND(No. 42)

LEGEND

FREEHOLD PROPERTY

LEASEHOLD PROPERTY

LIMITED INTEREST PROPERTY
CONDOMINIUM PROPERTY

RETIRED PIN (MAP UPDATE PENDING)

PROPERTY NUMBER 0449
BLOCK NUMBER DB8Q50
GEOGRAPHIC FABRIC

EASEMENT

THIS IS NOT A PLAN OF SURVEY

NOTES

REVIEW THE TITLE RECORDS FOR COMPLETE
PROPERTY INFORMATION AS THIS MAP MAY
NOT REFLECT RECENT REGISTRATIONS

THIS MAP WAS COMPILED FROM PLANS AND
POCUMENTS RECORDED IN THE LAND
REGISTRATION SYSTEM AND HAS BEEN PREPARED
FOR PROPERTY INDEXING PURPOSES ONLY

FOR DIMENSIONS OF PROPERTIES BOUNDARIES SEE
RECORDED PLANS AND DOCUMENTS

ONLY MAJOR EASEMENTS ARE SHOWN

REFERENCE PLANS UNDERLYING MORE RECENT
REFERENCE PLANS ARE NOT ILLUSTRATED

19:> Ontario

Page 148 of 329




RESOLUTION NO. 2024 - APRIL 10, 2024
Moved by:

Seconded by:

WHEREAS the Municipality of Magnetawan has received a request to support an application for
consent for the creation of one new lot located at Simmons Lake Road which is a private road,
Magnetawan(Antonik 4944 030 00400700). The property is legally described as Con 1 Lot 12 Township
of Croft hereinafter referred to as “the Lands”;

WHEREAS the Municipal planning consultant has provided a report in support of the application with

conditions;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of Magnetawan supports in

subject to the following conditions:

« That the foregoing conditions be fulfilled within two years otice of decision of the Planning

« Draft Reference Plan to be approved by the Municipality pri reg®tration;

o Two (2) true certified paper copies of the registered pla arfglectronic version for the proposed
provided to the Municipality for review and a vagwhic®€onforms substantially with the
application as submitted;

principle the consent application for the Lands, which is valid only for a period of six (6) months;
Board;
severed lot prepared by an Ontario Land Surveyor wi ation that it is a true copy be

Draft copy of the deeds {with all schedules) t roved by the Municipality prior to registration;

» A copy of the original executed transfer (deed) with all schedules be provided to the Municipality;

* Confirmation from the North Bay Mattawa Conservation Authority (NBMCA) that the proposed
Retained Lot can be adequately serviced by individual on-site septic systems;

® Payment of all taxes, municipal legal fees, planning fees and fees as per the current Fees and

Charges By-law, Park Land Dedication By-law and all other fees associated with the processing of

this application;

The entering into a Site Plan Agreement, to be registered on title for the proposed Retained Lot;

+ That the Applicant enter into a Limited Service Agreement with the Municipality to be registered on

title.

Carried__ Defeated_ Deferred__ Sam Dunnett, Mayor
Member of Council Yea Nay Absent
Bishop, Bill
Hetherington, John
Hind, Jon

Kneller, Brad

Mayor: Dunnett, Sam

Page 149 of 329



STAFF REPORT

TO: Erica Kellogg, Deputy Clerk — Planning & Development
Municipality of Magnetawan

FROM: Patrick Townes, BA, BEd and Jamie Robinson, BES, MCIP, RPP
MHBC Planning Limited

DATE: April 10, 2024

SUBJECT Consent Application ~ 354 Simmons Lake Road (Antonik)
Municipality of Magnetawan

Recommendation

That Council recommend to the Planning Board, that the Consent application for the
subject lands located at 354 Simmons Lake Road (Antonik), be provisionally approved
subject to the following conditions:

1. That the applicant meet all financial requirements of the Municipality, including
the payment of the balance of any outstanding taxes, including penalties and
interest be paid;

2. That a draft survey of the proposed retained and severed lots be provided to
the Municipality for review and approval;

3. That a registrable description of the severed lot and a copy of the Reference
Plan be deposited to the Land Registry office and be submitted to the
Municipality;

4. That the owner demonstrate that the existing development on the subject
property complies to the standards of the RS Zone;

5. Confirmation from the North Bay Mattawa Conservation Authority (NBMCA)
that the proposed retained lot can be adequately serviced by an individual on-
site septic system and an individual on-site water system;

6. That the applicant pay to the Municipality a parkland contribution fee for each
residential lot to be created as cash-in-lieu of a parkland contribution pursuant
to Section 53 (13) of the Planning Act, R.S.0. 1980 c. P. 13; and,

7. That the conditions of Consent be fulfilled within two years from the date of
the giving of the notice by the Central Almaguin Planning Board;

Page 150 of 329



Proposal /Background

An application for Consent has been submitted by Robert Antonik, the owner of the
subject lands located at 354 Simmons Lake Road in the Municipality of Magnetawan.
The subject lands are legally described as Part Lot 12, Concession 1, Registered Plan
42R-4538, former Township of Croft, District of Parry Sound. The location of the
subject lands are outlined on Figure 1.

Figure 1: Subject Lands

The subject lands are currently developed with an existing detached dwelling that is
serviced by an existing septic system and water services. The purpose of the
application is to create one {1) new shoreline residential lot on the subject lands. The
proposed Consent application sketch is shown in Figure 2. The proposed retained lot
is to be vacant and located on the west portion of the subject lands and the proposed
severed lot contains an existing dwelling on the east portion of the subject lands.

Page 151 of 329



Figure 2: Proposed Lot Configuration

354 Summons Lake Rd

A summary of the proposed retained lot and proposed severed lot is provided in Table
1.

Table 1: Proposed Lot Statistics

Proposed Lot Lot Area Lot Frontage
Retained Lot 2.83 ha 143 m
Severed Lot | 2.43ha 109 m

The subject lands are designated Shoreline and Rural on Schedule A — Land Use in
the Official Plan. The subject lands are also entirely within Deer Yard (Stratum 1), as
shown on Schedule B - Environmental Features in the Official Plan. The subject lands
are zoned Shoreline Residential (RS) in the Zoning By-law.

The subject lands are accessed via Simmons Lake Road which is a private road as
identified on Schedule C — Transportation of the Official Plan.

Page 152 of 329



The existing detached dwelling is to be located on the severed lot, on the eastern
portion of the subject lands.

Area Context

The subject lands have lot frontage on Newel Lake on the north portion of the subject
lands. The surrounding land uses in the general area include the following:

North: Newell Lake and shoreline residential lots
East: Newell Lake and shoreline residential lots
South: Bells Lake and shoreline residential lots
West: Simmons Lake and shaoreline residential lots
Policy Analysis

Provincial Policy Statement

The Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) is a document that provides policy direction on
matters of Provincial interest concerning land use planning. Ontario has a policy led
planning system and the PPS sets the foundation for regulating the development and
use of land in the Province. Policies are set out to provide for appropriate development
while also protecting resources of provincial interest, public health and safety, and the
quality of the natural and built environment. When making land use planning decisions,
Pianning Authorities must ensure that decisions are consistent with the PPS.

The subject lands are located outside of a settiement area and are considered by the
PPS to be ‘Rural Lands’. The PPS, specifically Section 1.1.5.2, recognizes limited
residential development, including lot creation that is locally appropriate, as permitted
uses on Rural Lands. The existing and propesed development on the subject lands
is considered resource based recreational uses and are permitted in the context of the
PPS.

Section 1.1.5.4 of the PPS indicates that development that is compatible with the rural
landscape and can be sustained by rural service levels should be promoted. The future
shoreline residential use on the retained lot would be compatible with the surrounding
land uses and would not negatively impact the character of the area. The proposed
retained lot would be serviced by individual on-site sewage and water services which
is the typical servicing approach for this area of the Municipality.

Section 1.6.6.4 provides policies that apply to development serviced by individual on-
site sewage and water services. It states that individual on-site sewage services and
individual on-site water services may be used for a new development provided that
site conditions are suitable for the long-term provision of such services with no
negative impacts. The severed 